


Since the very first step under

“Venus” trademark, we have been attaining sustainable growth

and comprehensive array of businesses, through the principle of

“Integrity, Quality, Service”

and good corporate governance on the basis of sufficiency.

Today, we are determined to pursue development

and keep moving forward so as to be of the best benefit

to all stakeholders and Thai society at all times.
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(Unit : Million Baht)

Saha-Union Public Company Limited
(Consolidated) 2009 2008 2007

Total Revenues 9,335.1 13,140.9 15,647.0

Total Sales 8,617.6 12,208.6 14,861.2

Gross Profit 1,481.9 1,472.8 1,846.2

Net Profit (Loss) 982.3 281.5 551.7

Total Assets 18,909.9 19,560.3 20,041.2

Total Liabilities 4,120.5 5,014.6 4,880.4

Total Shareholder’s Equity 14,789.4 14,545.7 15,160.8

Earning Ratio (%) 10.52% 2.14% 3.53%

Earning per Share (Baht) 3.39 0.97 1.90

Book Value (Baht) 46.49 45.70 46.91

Net Assets Value (Baht) 46.49 45.70 46.91

Return on Assets (%) 5.11% 1.42% 2.76%

Return on Equity (%) 7.35% 2.10% 4.07%

Debt to Equity Ratio (Times) 0.31 0.38 0.36

Saha-Union Public Company Limited 2009 2008 2007

Total Revenues 3,495.7 5,142.3 7,187.7

Total Sales 2,380.9 4,438.0 6,038.8

   Export 529.1  1,176.2  1,941.4

   Local  1,851.8  3,261.8 4,097.4

Gross Profit 207.3   275.7 372.9

Net Profit (Loss) 774.7  279.9  277.3

Earning per Share (Baht)  2.58  0.93 0.92

Dividend per share (Baht)  1.50 1.00 1.25

Book Value (Baht) 34.27 32.13  33.05
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Board of Directors Report
......................................................................................................

Mr. Damri Darakananda

Chairman

Thai economy in the first half of 2009

contracted in comparison with that of 2008 due to the

persistent world financial crisis taken place since ending

2008. In the second half, however, the country’s economy

recovered as a result of economic recovery worldwide,

accompanied by the state’s stimulative measures that

encouraged business expansion and confidence among

manufacturers and consumers. Employment rate, private

consumption, import and export also reaped the

favorable benefits of the situation. Industrial and

agricultural sectors expanded relatively, especially

electronic, petrochemical, automobile and rubber

industries. Still, private investment was still low as

investors were wary of economic and political

instabilities, including the problem concerning Map Ta

Phut Industrial Estate. Despite an obvious sign of

improvements in the second half, Thai economy in 2009

generally contracted by 2.3% when compared to 2008,

while trade balance and current account balance

registered a surplus, thus affirming a solid financial stability.

Other factors influencing Thai economy included

crude oil prices. The average world crude oil price in

2009 stood at USD 61.90 per barrel, or a year-on-year

decrease of 35.8%. This was resulted from decreasing

oil demand according to economic downtrend, and from

the less active oil market speculation. Nevertheless, crude

oil prices have been accelerating since the second quarter.

It was then expected that oil prices in 2010 would be

higher than the present ones. The value of Baht against

USD has continually appreciated since the end of the

first quarter, due to inflow of foreign investment capital

in response to an expected fall of interest rates and

economic recovery in this region. The average exchange

rate of Baht against USD in December was Baht 33.23

per USD, and tended to appreciate steadily. Lending and

deposit interest rates decreased from last year’s as the

policy rates were adjusted downward for three times at

the beginning of the year to stand at 1.25%. Inflation

rate in general contracted by 0.9% continuously over the

first three quarters, but eventually rose in the fourth

quarter. In December, the inflation rate was as high as

3.5%.

Although uncertainties from global and national

economic situations had impacted the operations of

some business groups under Saha-Union Group, other

business groups could expand favorably. In addition,

the implementation of the new management policy

toward lean manufacturing and sales has enabled its

group companies to promptly adjust their strategies to

circumstances.
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The Company’s businesses in Thailand that

were sensitive greatly to circumstances included those

relating to manufacture of electronic parts and auto parts,

the operating results of which dropped so drastically

and constantly that there was a need to reduce their

production capacities. In the second half, both businesses

improved rapidly, to the extent that production capacities

were to resume. Business groups getting good results

were rubber products, vacuum bottles, and stainless steel

products, which reaped the benefits of decreasing costs

of raw materials and unwavering purchase orders in

spite of sluggish economy. Textile business has, in the

wake of corporate downsizing in 2009, showed the sign

of improving performance.

In 2009, power plants in the People’s Republic of

China had satisfactory operating results when compared to

the previous year. This was because of the slight-but-

steady expansion of China’s economy which stimulated

continual demand for electricity and steam, while coal

prices fell in line with those of oil. With regard to energy

business in Thailand, the natural gas power plant in

Ratchaburi Province, in which the Company held 10%

stake, had started its commercial operation in 2008,

with satisfactory results as planned.

As for the 2009 operating results of Saha-Union

Public Company Limited, its separate financial statements

registered the total revenue of Baht 3,496 million,

divided into revenue from sales and services of Baht

2,381 million and other revenue of Baht 1,115 million.

When compared to that of 2008, the total revenue

decreased by Baht 1,646 million. The Company’s net

profit was Baht 774.7 million, increasing by Baht 494.8

million from last year. On the other hand, its consolidated

financial statements showed the total revenue of Baht

9,335 million, decreasing by Baht 3,806 million from

last year. The net profit attributable to the equity holders

of the parent was Baht 982 million, increasing by Baht

701 million from the previous year. As of ending 2009,

the Company had Baht 2,880 million liabilities and Baht

10,280 million shareholders’ equity, equal to the

debt-to-equity ratio of 0.28 : 1 against 0.58 : 1 in 2008.

The figures confirmed the highly stable financial status

of the Company.

In 2010, it is anticipated that Thai economy will

grow in consistent with world economic expansion, which

shows a promising sign of recovery. In particular, China’s

economy is expected to escalate extensively. The

Company therefore plans to expand its businesses in

China with such projects as the real estate project in

Jiashan (near Shanghai) and two projects for boosting

production capacity of chemical products, Citric Acid

project and Phthalic Anhydride project. Nonetheless, the

Company is well aware of significant risk factors against

businesses in 2010, i.e. the political unrest that is

expected to take some time to resolve and the Map Ta

Phut industrial estate problem, both of which have great

impacts on confidence toward expansion of investment.

It also recognizes the fact that some economic indices

have risen at the end of the year, for example crude oil

prices, inflation rate, Baht value, prices of such raw

materials as rubber and plastic pellets, shortage of labor

forces in some businesses, including the government’s

policy to review its economic stimulus measures. These

factors certainly affect costs and competitiveness of the

group companies during this period where recovery

is still volatile. The Company thus takes all of the

aforementioned as its great concerns.

The Board of Directors would like to thank

all the management and employees of Saha-Union Group

for their collective dedications in all aspects to

overcome problems and obstacles so that the Company

is able to carry on its operations with greater

performance and prosperity. Also, we would like to thank

our shareholders, business partners, and all parties for

their continual supports of the Company’s businesses.

The Board of Directors is determined to manage the

businesses for best results and to develop the Company’s

investment businesses toward stability, favorable

returns, and maximum benefits of the shareholders at

all times.

Mr. Damri Darakananda

Chairman
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Mr. Damri Darakananda

Chairman

Age  77

Education •  Complete Middle School

Experiences  •  1972 - 1990 President, Saha – Union Corporation Limited •  1991 - 1993 Vice Chairman, Saha-Union Corporation

Limited •  1994 - 1996 Executive Chairman, Saha–Union Public Company Limited •  1992 - 2000 Director, Bangkok Bank Public

Company Limited •  1996 - 2009 Chairman, Union Energy (China) Company Limited •  October 2007 – May 2009 Director, Union

Plastic Public Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha – Union Group Companies  •  1977 – Present Chairman, Saha – Union International (U.S.A.) Limited •  1984 – Present

Chairman, Saha – Union International (Taipei) Limited •  1993 – Present Chairman, Union Thread Industries Company Limited •  1993

– Present Chairman, Union Industries Corporation Limited •  April 2008 – Present Chairman, Saha–Union Public Company Limited

•  1995 – Present Chairman, Saha – Union Investment (China) Company Limited •  Director, Companies in Saha – Union Group

Years of directorship 37 years

Mr. Panas Simasathien

Vice Chairman (Administration)

Age 77

Education  •  Ph.D. in Accounting, University of Illinois, U.S.A. •  M.S. in Accounting, University of Illinois, U.S.A. •  B.A. (Cum Laude)

in Business Administration, Claremont Men’s College, California, U.S.A. •  Certificate of Accountancy, Thammasat University

Experiences  •  1972 – 1978 Director General, Comptroller - General’s Department •  1978 – 1982 Director General, Revenue

Department •  1982 – 1992 Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Finance •  1982 – 1992 Chairman, Krung Thai Bank Public Company

Limited •  1992 Minister of Finance •  1993 – 1995 Chairman, the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand (EGAT)

Current Positions

Saha – Union Group Companies  •  May 2001 – Present Chairman, Union Technology Company Limited •  May 2001 – Present

Chairman, Computer Union Company Limited •  January 2007 – Present Vice Chairman (Administration), Saha–Union Public Company

Limited •  January 2007 – Present Chairman, Union Energy Company Limited •  April 2007 – Present Vice Chairman, Union Textile

Industries Public Company Limited •  December 2008 – Present Chairman, Union Technology (2008) Public Company Limited

•  December 2009 – Present Chairman, Union Plastic Public Company Limited

Other Companies  •  Director, Siam Cement Public Company Limited • Vice Chairman and Executive Chairman, Siam Piwat Company Limited

Other Positions •  Chairman, the National Economic and Social Development Board (NESDB) •  Chairman, Council of State Group 12,

the Council of State

Years of directorship  16 years

Mr. Sompop Amatayakul

Vice Chairman (Audit and Evaluation of Domestic Business) and

Chairman of Audit Committee/Independent Director

Age 69

Education  •  Honorary Doctorate’s Degree in Accounting, Thammasat University •  Honorary Doctorate’s Degree in Business

Administration, the National Institute of Development Administration (NIDA) •  Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration, University of

the Thai Chamber of Commerce •  Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy, Thammasat University, 3
rd
 Year Student

Experiences  •  1994 – 1996 President, Saha–Union Public Company Limited •  1996 – 1997 Deputy Minister, Ministry of Industry

•  Chairman, Bangkok Metropolitan Bank Public Company Limited •  Chairman, State Railway of Thailand •  General Manager, IBM

(Thailand) Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha – Union Group Companies  •  1999 – Present Independent Director, Union Plastic Public Company Limited •  1999 – Present

Independent Director, Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited •  2000 – Present Independent Director, Union Pioneer Public

Company Limited • 2000 – Present Chairman, Audit Committee/Independent Director, Union Technology (2008) Public Company Limited

•  December 2007 – Present Vice Chairman (Audit and Evaluation of Domestic Business) Chairman, Audit Committee/Independent

Director, Saha – Union Public Company Limited

Other Companies •  Chairman, Audit Committee, Esso (Thailand) Public Company Limited •  Executive Chairman, B.B Business

Management Company Limited

Years of directorship 11 years
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Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana

Vice Chairman (Finance and Investments)

Age 62

Education  •  Master’s Degree in Management, SASIN Graduate Institute of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn University

•  Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting,  Chulalongkorn University •  Management Information System, International Labour Organization

•  Dynamic Management for International Executives Program, International Management Development Department of Syracuse University, U.S.A.

Experiences  •  1999 – 2004 Chairman, Union Thai – Nichiban Company Limited •  1999 – 2004 Chairman, Union Zojirushi Company

Limited •  1999 – 2006 Chairman, Union Plastic Public Company Limited •  1999 – 2007 President, Saha–Union Public Company

Limited •  2002 – 2006 Managing Director, Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha – Union Group Companies  •  1999 – Present Chairman, Union Pioneer Public Company Limited •  1999 – Present Chairman,

Union Nifco Company Limited •  2007 – Present Chairman, Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited •  2007 – Present

Vice Chairman, Finance and Investments, Saha–Union Public Company Limited •  2007 – Present Vice Chairman, Union Plastic Public

Company Limited •  2007 – Present Vice Chairman, Union Technology (2008) Public Company Limited •  Director, Companies in Saha

– Union Group

Years of directorship 16 years

Mr. Chutindhon Darakananda

Vice Chairman (Investments in China)

Age 50

Education  •  Master’s Degree in Business Administration, SASIN Graduate Institute of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn University

•  Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial Engineering, Stanford University, U.S.A.

Experiences  •  1992 – 2008 Vice Chairman, Union Spinning Mills Company Limited •  1992 – 2008 Vice Chairman, Venus Thread

Company Limited •  1993 – 2007 Director, Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited •  1993 – 2007 Director, Union Pioneer

Public Company Limited •  2001 – March 2009 Director, Union Energy (China) Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha – Union Group Companies  •  1997 – Present Director, Saha Union Holding Company Limited •  1997 – Present Director, Union

Business Management Company Limited •  2002 – Present Vice Chairman, Union Thread Industries Company Limited •  2002 – Present

Vice Chairman, Union Industries Corporation Limited •  March 2008 – Present Vice Chairman (Investments in China), Saha-Union

Public Company Limited •  2009 – Present Director, Union Spinning Mills Company Limited •  Managing Director, Union Distributor

Company Limited •  Director, Union Rubber Products Corporation Limited •  Director, Thai Rubber Enterprise Company Limited

•  Director, Companies in Saha - Union Group

Years of directorship 19 years

Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai

Audit Committee Member/Independent Director

Age 66

Education  •  Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting, Thammasat University •  Certificate, The Joint State – Private Sector Regular Course,

National Defence College (Class 377)

Experiences  •  1968 – 1979 Director, Budget Department, Thai Farmers Bank Public Company Limited •  1982 Vice President, Saha

– Union Corporation Limited •  Chairman, Union Securities Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha – Union Group Companies  • 1999 – Present Audit Committee/Independent Director, Saha-Union Public Company Limited

Other Companies  • 1984 – Present Director, Chiangmai Night Bazaar Company Limited •  1986 – Present Executive Chairman, Rajburi

Sugar Company Limited •  Executive Chairman, Tipamas Company Limited •  Executive Chairman, Rajburi Etanol Company Limited

Years of directorship 16 years
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Miss Pakinee Prettitumrong

Audit Committee Member/Independent Director

Age 60

Education  •  Bachelor’s Degree in Economics, Thammasat University

Experiences  •  1983 – April 2008 Director, Union Industries Corporation Limited •  1994 – April 2008 Director, Union Thread

Industries Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha - Union Group Companies  •  1994 – Present Director, Venus Button Company Limited •  1996 – Present Director, Union Button

Corporation Limited •  1998 – Present Audit Committee Member/Independent Director, Saha-Union Public Company Limited •  1999

– Present Audit Committee Member/Independent Director, Union Technology (2008) Public Company Limited

Years of directorship 11 years

Mr. Chakchai Panichapat

Independent Director/Advisor

Age 71

Education  •  Master’s Degree in Electrical Engineering, University of Texas, Austin, Texas, U.S.A. •  Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical

Engineering (2
nd
 Honors), Chulalongkorn University

Experiences  •  Deputy Secretary General, The Board of Investment •  2000 – March 2009 Director, Union Energy Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha - Union Group Companies  •  October 2000 – Present Advisor/Independent Director, Saha-Union Public Company Limited

Other Companies in SET  •  1998 – Present Chairman, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Independent Director and Audit

Committee Member, Kang Yong Electric Public Company Limited •  1999 – Present Chairman, Audit Committee, Independent Director

and Nomination and Remuneration Committee, City Recreation and Sports Public Company Limited •  2002 – Present Chairman,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Independent Director and Audit Committee Member, Central Pattana Public Company Limited

•  2006 – Present Directors and Executive Director, Amata Corporation Public Company Limited

Other Companies  •  2006 – Present Chairman, Magnecom Precision Technology Public Company Limited •  Chairman, Precipar

Company Limited •  Chairman, Amata Water Company Limited •  Chairman, Amata Vietnam Company Limited (Registered in Vietnam)

•  Director, Amata Hong Kong Company Limited (Registered in Hong Kong) •  Director, San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited •  Director,

San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Limited

Years of directorship 9 years

Mr. Yanyong Tangchitkul

Independent Director

Age 57

Education  •  Master’s Degree in Business Management (Honor), the National Institute of Development Administration (NIDA)

•  Management Development Program, Indiana University, U.S.A. •  Bachelor’s Degree in Economics, Thammasat University

Experiences •  1989 – Present Managing Director, Niyom Service Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha - Union Group Companies •  March 2009 – Present Independent Director, Union Pioneer Public Company Limited •  September

2009 – Present Independent Director, Saha-Union Public Company Limited

Other Companies  •  1989 – Present Managing Director, Niyom Service Company Limited

Years of directorship 3 months
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Mr. Thitivat Suebsaeng

President

Age 56

Education  •  Ph.D. in Chemistry, Marquette University, U.S.A. •  M.Sc. in Inorganic Chemistry, Chiangmai University •  B.Sc. in

Chemistry, Chiangmai University

Experiences  •  2003 - 2004 Director, Union Education Management Company Limited (China) •  2003 - 2007 Managing Director, Saha

- Union Investment (China) Company Limited •  2008 – December 2009 Chairman, Union Plastic Public Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha - Union Group Companies  •  2002 – Present Director, Union Energy (China) Company Limited •  2004 – Present Director, 7

Power Plants in China •  2007 – Present Chairman, Union Zojirushi Company Limited •  2007 – Present Chairman, Union Stainless Steel

Products Company Limited •  2007 – Present Chairman, Union Thai - Nichiban Company Limited •  July 2007 – Present Director, Union

Nifco Company Limited •  2008 – Present President, Saha-Union Public Company Limited •  March 2008 – Present Chairman, Union

Garment Company Limited •  March 2008 – Present Director, Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited •  April 2008 – Present

Director, Union Pioneer Public Company Limited •June 2008 – Present Director, TenCate-Union Protective Fabrics Asia Limited •  August

2008 – Present Director, Union Technology (2008) Public Company Limited

Years of directorship 6 years

Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul

Director

Age 53

Education  •  Master’s Degree in Computer Science, University of Illinois at Urbana – Champaign, U.S.A. •  Bachelor’s Degree (First

Class Honor) in Economics, Chulalongkorn University

Experiences  •  1994 – 2006 Director and Secretary, Union Energy Company Limited •  1994 – 2006 Director and Secretary, Union

Energy (China) Company Limited •  1999 – 2006 Director, Union Pioneer Public Company Limited •  1999 – 2007 Executive Director

and Assistant Managing Director, Saha-Union Public Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha - Union Group Companies  •  1993 – Present Managing Director, Uni - Fibre Company Limited •  1995 – Present Director, Union

Textile Industries Public Company Limited •  1996 – Present Director, Thai Rubber Enterprise Company Limited •  1999 – Present

Director, Saha-Union Public Company Limited •  2004 – Present Managing Director, Computer Union Company Limited •  2007 –

Present Managing Director, Saha Union Holding Company Limited •  2008 – Present Director, Union Thread Industries Company Limited

•  2008 – Present Director, Union Industries Corporation Limited •2009 – Present Director, Union Zojirushi Company Limited •  2009

– Present Director, Union Spinning Mills Company Limited •  Director, Companies in Saha - Union Group

Other Companies  •  1989 – Present Director, Processing Center Company Limited

Years of directorship  10 years

Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda

Director

Age 48

Education  •  Bachelor’s Degree in Chemical Engineering, Georgia Institute of Technology, U.S.A.

Experiences  •  1991 – March 2009 Director and Executive Director, Union Energy (China) Company Limited •  1993 – February 2009

Managing Director, Union Industries Corporation Limited •  2002 – February 2009 Managing Director, Union Thread Industries Company

Limited •  December 2003 – March 2009 Director, Union Kotec Molds Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha - Union Group Companies  •  1994 – Present Director, Saha–Union Public Company Limited •  1994 - Present Director, Union

Energy  Company Limited •  1999 – Present Director, Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited •  1999 – Present Director, Union

Plastic Public Company Limited •  1999 – Present Director, Union Spinning Mills Company Limited •  1999 – Present Director, Saha

Union Holding Company Limited •  March 2009 – Present Director, Union Industries Corporation Limited •  March 2009 – Present

Director, Union Thread Industries Company Limited •  Managing Director, Venus Thread Company Limited •  Director, Union Thai -

Nichiban Company Limited •  Director, Union Zojirushi Company Limited •  Director, Union Rubber Products Corporation Limited

•  Director, Thai Rubber Enterprise Company Limited •  Director, Companies in Saha - Union Group

Other Companies  • 2001 - Present Director, Chiangmai Night Bazaar Company Limited

Others  •  Executive Director and Director, The Federation of Thai Industries

Years of directorship 21 years
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Mr. Bovornrat Darakananda

Director

Age 46

Education  •  Master’s Degree in Electrical and Management Engineering, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, U.S.A. •  Bachelor’s

Degree in Electrical and Management Engineering, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, U.S.A.

Experiences  •  1993 – December 2006 Director, Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited •  1993 – December 2006 Director,

Union Pioneer Public Company Limited •  1994 – December 2006 Director and Executive Director, Union Energy Company Limited

•  Vice President, Saha - Union International (Georgia) Inc. •  General Manager, Saha - Union Investment (China) Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha - Union Group Companies  •  1994 – Present Director, Saha-Union Public Company Limited •  1996 – Present Director and

Manager, Union Energy (China) Company Limited •  1997 – Present Director, Union Thread Industries Company Limited •  1997 –

Present Director, Union Industries Corporation Limited •  2001 – Present Managing Director, Union Spinning Mills Company Limited

•  2001 – Present Director, Venus Thread Company Limited •  Director, Companies in Saha - Union Group

Years of directorship 18 years

Mr. Vacharaphong Darakananda

Director

Age 44

Education  •  Bachelor’s Degree in Physics, Harvey Mudd College, California, U.S.A.

Experiences  •  Assistant Manager, Venus Thread Company Limited •  1999 - 2000 General Manager, Saha-Union Public Company

Limited (Sriracha Operation) •  2001 – December 2006 Director, Union Textile Industries Public Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha - Union Group Companies  •  1988 – Present Director, Union Industries Corporation Limited •  1990 – Present Director, Union

Thread Industries Company Limited •  1990 – Present Director, Computer Union Company Limited •  1992 – Present Managing

Director, Union Technology Company Limited •  1994 – Present Director, Saha-Union Public Company Limited •  1994 – Present

Director, Union Spinning Mills Company Limited •  1994 – Present Director, Venus Thread Company Limited •  2007 – Present Director,

Union Plastic Public Company Limited •  2007 – Present Director, Union Pioneer Public Company Limited •  2007 – Present Managing

Director, Union Technology (2008) Public Company Limited •  2007 – Present Director, Union Thai-Nichiban Company Limited

•  Director, Union Micronclean Company Limited •  Director, Union Garment Company Limited •  Director, Computer Union System

Company Limited •  Director, Companies in Saha - Union Group

Years of directorship 17 years

Mr. Nantiya Darakananda

Director

Age 41

Education  •  Master’s Degree in Business Administration, SASIN Graduate Institute of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn

University •  Bachelor’s Degree in Applied Physics, University of California, Davis, U.S.A.

Experiences  •  1993 – April 2008 Director, Union Industries Corporation Limited •  1993 – April 2008 Director, Union Thread

Industries Company Limited

Current Positions

Saha - Union Group Companies  •  1993 – Present Director, Union Pioneer Public Company Limited •  1996 – Present Director,

Saha-Union Public Company Limited •  1996 – Present Director, Union Button Corporation Limited •  1998 – Present Director, Union

Plastic Public Company Limited

Other Companies  •  1994 – Present President, Venus Technology Company Limited • 1997 – Present Director, Star Edu Company Limited

• 2005 – Present President, Venus Gas Technology Company Limited • 2009 – Present President, V2 Logistics Company Limited

Years of directorship 13 years
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Related Person Relationship

Mr. Damri Darakananda and Family

Mr. Chutindhon Darakananda, Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda

Mr. Bovornrat Darakananda, Mr. Vacharaphong Darakananda

Mr. Damri Darakananda and Mr. Nantiya Darakananda  Cousin
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Thai Institute of Directors Certification Programs

Awarded Diploma (Thailand Institute of Directors : IOD)

by passing theName
Examination of Director Director Finance for Audit Role of the

Australian IOD Accreditation Certification Non-Finance Committee Compensation

Program Program Director Program Committee

(DAP) (DCP) (FND) (ACP) (RCC)

Year No./Year No./Year No./Year No./Year No./Year

Mr. Damri Darakananda - 18/2004 - - - -

Mr. Panas Simasathien - - 2/2000 - - -

Mr. Sompop Amatayakul - 75/2008 - - - -

Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana - 18/2004 - - - -

Mr. Chutindhon Darakananda - 17/2004 - - - -

Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai - 32/2005 - - - -

Miss Pakinee Prettitumrong - 2/2003 - - - -

Mr. Chakchai Panichapat - 5/2003 72/2006 19/2005 25/2009 3/2007

Mr. Yanyong Tangchitkul - 79/2009 - - - -

Mr. Thitivat Suebsaeng - 21/2004 - - - -

Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul 2001 - 9/2001 1/2003 10/2005 -

Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda 2001 - 5/2001 - - -

Mr. Bovornrat Darakananda - 18/2004 - - - -

Mr. Vacharaphong Darakananda - 2/2003 69/2006 - - -

Mr. Nantiya Darakananda - 2/2003 - - - -

................................................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................................................

IOD’s Accreditation and Certification Training Program
of the Board of Directors About the Responsibility and Skills of being the Director
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Board of Director’s Structure

............................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................................................

Board of Directors Mr. Amnuay Viravan Honorary Chairman

Mr. Damri Darakananda Chairman

Mr. Panas Simasathien Vice Chairman (Administration)

Mr. Sompop Amatayakul Vice Chairman (Audit and Evaluation of Domestic Business)

and Chairman of Audit Committee/Independent Director

Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana Vice Chairman (Finance and Investments)

Mr. Chutindhon Darakananda Vice Chairman (Investments in China)

Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai Audit Committee/Independent Director

Miss Pakinee Prettitumrong Audit Committee/Independent Director

Mr. Chakchai Panichapat Independent Director/Advisor

Mr. Prajuab Reonchaidee Independent Director (Passed away on August 24
th
, 2009)

Mr. Yanyong Tangchitkul Independent Director (To be appointed on September 24
th
, 2009)

Mr. Thitivat Suebsaeng Director and President

Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul Director

Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda Director

Mr. Bovornrat Darakananda Director

Mr. Vacharaphong Darakananda Director

Mr. Nantiya Darakananda Director

Mrs. Sirinun Sansanakom Company Secretary

Audit Committee/ Mr. Sompop Amatayakul Chairman/Independent Director

Independent Director Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai Committee/Independent Director

Miss Pakinee Prettitumrong Committee/Independent Director

Nomination and Remuneration Mr. Sompop Amatayakul Chairman

Committee Mr. Damri Darakananda Committee

Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai Committee

Risk Management Committee Mr. Thitivat Suebsaeng Chairman

Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul Committee

Mr. VacharaphongDarakananda Committee

Mrs. Srinual Sombatpraivan Committee and Secretary

Executives Mr. Panas Simasathien Vice Chairman (Administration)

Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana Vice Chairman (Finance and Investments)

Mr. Chutindhon Darakananda Vice Chairman (Investments in China)

Mr. Thitivat Suebsaeng President

Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul Director

Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda Vice President

Mr. Bovornrat Darakananda Vice President

Mr. VacharaphongDarakananda Vice President

Mrs. Supung Tangsujaritpunt Assistant to the President

Mrs. Srinual Sombatpraivan Account and Finance Department Manager

Remarks: 1. Mr. Prajuab Reonchaidee Passed away on August 24
th
, 2009

2. Mr. Yanyong Tangchitkul To be appointed for Independent Director on September 24
th
, 2009
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Direct Investment of Saha-Union
in Group Companies as at 31 December 2009

...................................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................................................

Group of Business Company’s Name Registered Capital  Issued Capital Paid-up per Investment

(Baht)  (Baht)  Shares (Baht) %

Saha-Union Public Company Limited       3,000,000,000       3,000,000,000 10.00

Manufacturing

Textiles Union Textile Industries Public Co., Ltd.              600,000,000             600,000,000 10.00 49.882

Union Garment Co., Ltd.                50,000,000                50,000,000 100.00 99.987

Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd.              200,000,000             200,000,000 100.00 25.000

Union Button Corp., Ltd.                85,000,000                85,000,000 100.00 10.714

Union Micronclean Co., Ltd.                   5,000,000                  5,000,000 10.00 25.001

Zhejiang Saha-Union Feilun Thread Industry Co.,Ltd.  US$ 4,000,000  US$ 4,000,000 US$ 1 37.000

Shanghai Saha-Union Thread Industry Co.,Ltd.  RMB 23,500,000  RMB 23,500,000 RMB 1 45.000

Shanghai Saha-Union Spinning Mill No.7 Co.,Ltd.  RMB 128,000,000  RMB 128,000,000 RMB 1 40.000

Jiangsu Zhonglian-Union Carpet Co.,Ltd.  RMB 56,915,779  RMB 56,915,779 RMB 1 25.000

Plastics & Rubber Union Pioneer Public Co., Ltd.                75,000,000                75,000,000 10.00 48.958

and Metal Union Plastic Public Co., Ltd.              250,000,000             250,000,000 10.00 49.521

Union Thai - Nichiban Co., Ltd.                15,000,000                15,000,000 100.00 40.273

Union Zojirushi Co., Ltd.              140,000,000             140,000,000 100.00 51.000

Union Stainless Steel Products Co., Ltd.                40,000,000                40,000,000 100.00 98.000

Union Nifco Co., Ltd.              100,000,000             100,000,000 100.00 30.002

Union Rubber Products Corp.. Ltd.                20,000,000                20,000,000 100.00 99.997

Thai Rubber Enterprise Co., Ltd.                32,000,000                32,000,000 100.00 50.693

Computer & Saha - Union Public Co., Ltd. (Sriracha Operation)

Electronics Parts Union Technology (2008) Public Co., Ltd.              600,000,000             600,000,000 10.00 93.072

Computer Union Co., Ltd.              100,000,000             100,000,000 100.00 97.532

Energy Ratchaburi Power Co., Ltd.           7,325,000,000          7,325,000,000 100.00 10.000

Jiashan - Union Cogeneration Co.,Ltd.  US$ 10,640,000  US$ 10,640,000 US$ 1 56.928

Jiyang - Union Cogeneration Co.,Ltd.  US$ 17,000,000  US$ 17,000,000 US$ 1 45.000

Wuxi - Union Cogeneration Co.,Ltd.  US$ 44,200,000  US$ 44,200,000 US$ 1 25.701

Yixing - Union Cogeneration Co.,Ltd.  US$ 60,000,000  US$ 60,000,000 US$ 1 40.000

Shangyu Hangzhou - Union Cogeneration Co.,Ltd.  RMB 200,000,000  RMB 200,000,000 RMB 1 25.000

Huanan - Union Spring Cogeneration Co.,Ltd.  RMB 80,000,000  RMB 65,000,000 RMB 1 25.000

Yunnan Energy Luliang-Union Power Co., Ltd.  US$ 24,658,660  US$ 24,658,660 US$ 1 40.000

Yunnan Energy Qujing-Union Power Co., Ltd.  US$ 28,080,000  US$ 28,080,000 US$ 1 45.192

Trading & Investment and Services

Trading Uni - Fibre Co., Ltd.              120,000,000             120,000,000 100.00 25.667

Union Universe Co., Ltd.                   7,500,000                  7,500,000 100.00 49.865

Investment Saha - Union Holding Co., Ltd.           1,200,000,000          1,200,000,000 100.00 99.540

Union Equity Co., Ltd.              160,000,000             160,000,000 10.00 99.794

Textport International Co., Ltd.                12,500,000                12,500,000 100.00 85.200

Union Technology Co., Ltd.              100,000,000             100,000,000 10.00 100.000

Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd.              200,000,000             200,000,000 10.00 25.068

Union Industries Corp., Ltd.              150,000,000             150,000,000 100.00 25.000

Union Energy Co., Ltd.                12,500,000                12,500,000 10.00 99.259

Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd.              245,000,000             245,000,000 100.00 100.000

Uni - Agro Co., Ltd.                65,000,000                65,000,000 100.00 30.000

Services Union Sime Darby (Thailand) Co., Ltd.                   4,000,000                  4,000,000 100.00 18.950

Union Printing Co., Ltd.                30,000,000                30,000,000 10.00 94.735

Venus Shoes Co., Ltd.                72,000,000                72,000,000 100.00 76.000

Union Human Resources Development Co., Ltd.                   1,000,000                     250,000 2.50 99.998

Discontinued Union Shoes Co., Ltd.                24,000,000                24,000,000 24.00 61.697

Operation Uni - Sole Co., Ltd.                   3,500,000                  3,500,000 100.00 32.000

Union Construction Co., Ltd.              200,000,000             200,000,000 100.00 2.373

Overseas Saha-Union International Ltd. (Hong Kong)  HK$ 330,000,000  HK$ 330,000,000 HK$ 100 99.985

Saha-Union International (Taipei) Ltd.  NT$ 5,000,000  NT$ 5,000,000 NT$ 25 10.000

Saha-Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd.  US$ 45,000,000  US$ 45,000,000 US$ 1 100.000

Taixing Union Zond Chemicals Co.,Ltd.  US$ 16,200,000  US$ 16,200,000 US$ 1 30.000

Yixing - Union Biochemical Co.,Ltd.  US$ 8,200,000  US$ 8,200,000 US$ 1 15.000

Jiashan-Union Development Co., Ltd.  US$ 41,000,000  US$ 41,000,000 US$ 1 39.000

-
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Investment per SU Investment Book Value Market Value Investment  Registration Nature of Business

share (Baht) at cost (Baht) per share (Baht) per share (Baht) Market Value (Baht) Date

34.27 19.80 10 Aug. 1972 Investment, Financial Services and Distributor of SU Group’s Products

10.73 321,180,863.41 11.82 8.50 254,398,200.00 21 Mar. 1977 Spinning, Weaving and Dyeing

140.71 70,344,917.52 167.13 167.13 83,554,303.68 26 Apr. 1974 Manufacture of Garments

93.13 46,563,324.78 151.72 151.72 75,860,000.00  4 Jun. 1971 Manufacture of Threads

143.92 13,107,200.00 263.15 263.15 23,965,596.80 28 May 1969 Manufacture of Buttons

10.00 1,250,405.30 83.56 83.56 10,445,584.92 24 Jan. 1996 Manufacture of Clothes for Cleanroom

38.58 57,096,200.00 31.42 31.42 46,501,600.00  20 Jun. 2003 Thread Dyeing

4.72 49,950,403.03 4.26 4.26 45,049,500.00 18 Nov. 2004 Manufacture of Textile products

4.85 248,254,963.09 4.73 4.73 242,176,000.00 16 Jan. 2006 Spinning

4.52 159,014,087.91 12.88 12.88 453,582,685.36 21 May 2007 Manufacture of Automobile Carpets

14.46 53,084,046.25 56.38 59.00 216,637,380.00  8 Oct. 1973 Manufacture of Rubber Threads, Elastic Braids & Webbing

19.02 235,432,531.30 21.11 15.50 191,892,015.00  3 Jan. 1969 Manufacture of Plastic Products & Molds

318.92 19,266,000.00 2,954.51 2,954.51 178,481,949.10 21 Jun. 1973 Manufacture of Tapes

100.92 72,058,538.14 415.86 415.86 296,923,208.28 18 Aug. 1986 Manufacture of Vacuum Bottles, Lunch Boxes/Lunch Jars

133.70 52,411,447.56 197.13 197.13 77,274,565.74 16 Dec. 1988 Manufacture of Pipes

105.18 31,556,005.62 359.26 359.26 107,786,622.24  3 Nov. 1988 Manufacture of Plastic Products

80.56 16,110,854.50 106.29 106.29 21,257,362.26 24 Mar. 1971 Manufacture of Rubber Products

105.90 17,179,605.10 140.76 140.76 22,833,805.68  9 Jul. 1970 Rubber Estates

Manufacture of Hard Disk Drive & Computer Accessories

10.30 575,172,752.99 6.79 6.79 379,176,095.27 17 Mar. 1982 Manufacture of Electronic Components

103.57 101,014,167.47 148.64 148.64 144,971,416.16 18 Nov. 1982 Computer Dealer

100.00 732,499,900.00 138.69 138.69 1,015,904,111.31 19 Jul. 1996 Power Generation

41.45 251,073,479.62 44.35 44.35 268,635,046.00 15 Aug. 1994 Power Generation

43.00 328,945,316.07 42.41 42.41 324,436,500.00 21 Mar. 1994 Power Generation

41.86 475,479,418.30 41.24 41.24 468,486,400.00 4  Jun. 1994 Power Generation

45.57 1,093,794,541.30 70.93 70.93 1,702,320,000.00 25 Dec. 1994 Power Generation

5.15 257,480,749.43 6.12 6.12 306,000,000.00 19 Nov. 2002 Power Generation

4.83 96,601,733.55 4.98 4.98 99,600,000.00 29 Oct. 2007 Power Generation

42.30 417,270,553.54 40.99 40.99 404,303,389.36 2 Jul. 1995 Power Generation

37.91 481,017,485.86 34.86 34.86 442,373,400.00 12 Jan. 1995 Power Generation

100.00 30,800,193.16 270.64 270.64 83,357,390.64  5 Nov. 1980 Distribution of Textiles

100.31 3,751,380.06 1,687.25 1,687.25 63,101,462.75  7 Mar. 1968 Distributor of Grand Slam Shirts

100.00 1,194,478,806.88 35.99 35.99 429,893,136.06 14 Nov. 1989 Investment

10.01 159,770,484.00 10.76 10.76 171,805,361.16 31 May 1989 Investment

116.04 12,357,879.00 133.92 133.92 14,262,480.00  14 Apr. 1978 Investment

10.00 100,000,016.36 13.35 13.35 133,499,959.95 22 Jun. 1992 Investment

10.41 52,215,572.50 104.18 104.18 522,315,806.20  2 Nov. 1973 Investment

116.01 43,502,205.00 774.42 774.42 290,407,500.00 23 May 1961 Investment

10.00 12,407,390.00 15.98 15.98 19,827,009.22 2 Feb. 1994 Investment in Power Generation Business

100.00 244,999,400.00 160.76 160.76 393,861,035.44  9 Aug. 1996 Investment in Power Generation Business

104.95 20,464,690.80 84.97 84.97 16,569,150.00 22 Aug. 1972 Investment and Agriculture

91.58 694,141.16 465.73 465.73 3,530,233.40  4 Aug. 1981 Insurance Broker

10.37 29,465,812.50 3.85 3.85 10,941,892.50 10 Jul. 1970 Rental Services

80.42 44,006,626.43 40.38 40.38 22,096,057.14 29 Sep. 1988 Dormitory and Asset Rental Services

2.50 250,021.30 8.53 8.53 852,982.94  26 Sep. 2004 Train & Develop Employees’ Skills

35.67 22,007,784.00 27.46 27.46 16,942,023.66  5 Aug. 1986 Discontinued Operation

58.75 658,000.00 144.97 144.97 1,623,664.00 29 Sep. 1988 Discontinued Operation

111.25 5,281,100.00 57.16 57.16 2,713,328.04  7 Sep. 1973 Discontinued Operation

476.22 1,571,303,051.88 529.51 529.51 1,747,118,245.00 18 Aug. 1972 Investment and Distribution Group Companies’s Products

19.30 385,917.66 47.36 47.36 947,200.00  8 Nov. 1984 Investment, Import and Distributor of Group Companies’s Products

34.95 1,572,809,060.01 37.53 37.53 1,688,850,000.00 25 Feb. 1995 Investment

33.38 162,214,020.00 31.11 31.11 151,194,600.00 29 Aug 2007 Manufacture of Phthalic Anhydride & Fumaric Acid and associated

45.94 56,506,775.08 82.20 82.20 101,106,000.00 12 Dec. 2000 Manufacture of Citric Acid

33.69 538,703,100.00 33.00 33.00 527,670,000.00 22 Sep. 2009 Property

In Groups 12,153,244,919.42 In Groups 14,319,313,255.26

Outsides 615,209,478.68 Outsides 845,787,453.48

Grand Total 12,768,454,398.10 Grand Total 15,165,100,708.74



18

Business Results
and Five Years Financial Status

...............................................................................................

...............................................................................................

2009 2008

Cost Method Cost Method

Revenues

Sales  2,380.9         4,438.0

Export  529.1         1,176.2

Local       1,851.8         3,261.8

Dividends Received            852.1            304.2

Other Incomes            262.8            387.2

Total Revenues 3,495.8         5,129.4

Expenses

Cost of Sales  2,173.6         4,162.3

Selling and Administrative Expenses            431.5            585.1

Interest Expenses              74.1              97.8

Total Expenses   2,679.2         4,845.2

Operating Profit (Loss)            816.6            284.2

Gain (Loss) on Exchange Rate             (13.3)              12.9

Profit (Loss) before Corporate Income Tax            803.3            297.1

Corporate Income Tax             (28.6)             (17.2)

Net Profit (Loss)  774.7            279.9

Net Profit (Loss) per Share (Baht)              2.58              0.93

Dividends per Share (Baht)              1.50              1.00

Dividends per Net Profit (%) 58.14% 107.53%

Assets

Loan to Group Companies 501.7              343.2

Current Assets 619.7              639.1

Investment in Group and Other Companies   11,220.2         13,424.2

Property, Plant and Equipment - Net 403.5              346.3

Other Assets  414.6              492.6

Total Assets 13,159.7         15,245.4

Liabilities and Shareholder’s Equity

Deposit from Group and Other Companies 1,018.2           1,049.9

Current Liabilities    892.3           3,753.0

Long Term Loan   931.5              760.7

Other Liabilities   37.8                42.5

Shareholder’s Equity

Shareholder’s Equity Issued and Paid up Share Capital   3,000.0           3,000.0

Premiums on Share Capital   2,599.0           2,599.0

Appropriated and Unappropriated Retain Earnings    4,450.3           3,975.6

Auditing Standard Revision      230.6                64.7

Total Shareholder’s Equity   10,279.9           9,639.3

Total Liabilities and Shareholder’s Equity   13,159.7         15,245.4

Book Value (Baht)      34.27              32.13
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(Unit : Million Baht)

2007 2006 2005

Cost Method Cost Method Cost Method

        6,038.8       15,360.4       15,539.8

        1,941.4         7,581.2         7,678.7

        4,097.4         7,779.2         7,861.1

           342.7            241.3            189.5

           792.5            660.5            766.3

        7,174.0       16,262.2       16,495.6

        5,665.9       14,598.6       14,722.3

        1,023.6         1,081.0            944.2

             82.8            106.2              70.2

        6,772.3       15,785.8       15,736.7

           401.7            476.4            758.9

             13.7            161.6             (66.9)

           415.4            638.0            692.0

          (138.1)           (151.7)           (137.2)

           277.3            486.3            554.8

             0.92              1.62              1.85

             1.25              1.25              1.25

135.87% 77.16% 67.57%

            602.6             574.5           3,229.1

         1,082.8          3,050.3           3,322.7

       10,821.3        10,680.0           7,804.6

            889.7             862.9               694.2

            541.0             296.2               286.4

       13,937.4        15,463.9         15,337.0

         1,500.5          1,686.6           1,396.0

         1,879.1          2,875.2           2,832.5

            595.0             839.8           1,220.8

              47.8                45.9                 45.5

         3,000.0          3,000.0           3,000.0

         2,599.0          2,599.0           2,599.0

         4,070.7          4,168.4           4,056.7

            245.3             249.0               186.5

         9,915.0        10,016.4           9,842.2

       13,937.4        15,463.9         15,337.0

            33.05             33.39               32.81
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...................................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................................................

Income Structure of the Company
and Its Subsidiaries

(Unit : Baht)

Group of Business
Total

 Export  %  Local  %  Total  %

Manufacturing 3,521,620,411.86 37.72 6,418,763,154.72 68.76 9,940,383,566.58 106.48

Energy 379,528,681.32 4.07  - - 379,528,681.32 4.07

Investment and Others         77,625,515.82 0.83 11,946,032.67 0.13 89,571,548.49 0.96

Total 3,978,774,609.00 42.62 6,430,709,187.39 68.89 10,409,483,796.39 111.51

Related Transaction (46,189,534.60) (0.49) (1,745,728,556.59) (18.70) (1,791,918,091.19) (19.20)

Net Sales 3,932,585,074.40 42.13 4,684,980,630.80 50.19 8,617,565,705.20 92.31

Interest Income 22,872,213.96 0.25

Other Income 694,694,875.94 7.44

Total Income 9,335,132,795.10 100.00

All details are shown in th Financial Statement No. 24, Section : Segment Information
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Investment Structure of the Company
and Its Subsidiaries

..................................................................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................................................................

Group of Company % Investment Group of Company % Investment

Business Name Equity Method Business Name Equity Method

Manufacturing Trading, Investment & Services

Textiles Union Textile Industries Public Co., Ltd. 51.43 Trading Uni - Fibre Co., Ltd. 53.08

Union Garment Co., Ltd. 99.99 Union Universe Co., Ltd. 49.87

Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. 52.15

Union Button Corp., Ltd. 10.71 Investment Saha - Union Holding Co., Ltd. 99.54

Union Micronclean Co., Ltd. 44.48 Union Equity Co., Ltd. 99.79

Shanghai Saha - Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd. 64.05 Texport International Co., Ltd. 85.20

Zhejiang Saha - Union Feilun Thread Industries Co., Ltd. 82 Union Technology Co., Ltd. 99.99

Shanghai Saha - Union Spinning Mill No. 7 Co., Ltd. 50 Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd. 36.20

Jiangsu Zhonglian - Union Carpet Co.,Ltd. 35 Union Industries Corp., Ltd. 29.60

Union Energy Co., Ltd. 99.40

Plastics & Union Pioneer Public Co., Ltd. 52.71 Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. 99.99

Rubber Union Plastic Public Co., Ltd. 49.69 Uni - Agro Co., Ltd. 45.02

and Metal Union Thai - Nichiban Co., Ltd. 40.27

Union Zojirushi Co., Ltd. 51 Services Union Printing Co., Ltd. 94.74

Union Stainless Steel Product Co., Ltd. 98 Union Human Resources Development Co., Ltd. 99.99

Union Nifco Co., Ltd. 39.91 Venus Shoes Co., Ltd. 96.86

Union Rubber Products Corp. Ltd. 99.99 Union Sime Darby (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 18.95

Thai Rubber Enterprise Co., Ltd. 50.69

Overseas Saha - Union International Ltd. (Hong Kong) 99.98

Computer Saha-Union Public Co., Ltd. (Sriracha Operation) Saha - Union International (Taipei) Ltd. 42.49

& ElectronicsUnion Technology (2008) Public Co., Ltd. 99.66 Saha - Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd. 100

Parts Computer Union Co., Ltd. 97.53 Taixing Union Zond Chemicals Co., Ltd. 40

Yixing - Union Biochemical Co., Ltd. 50

Energy Ratchaburi Power Co., Ltd. 10 Jiashan - Union Development Co., Ltd. 49

Jiashan - Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 75.96

Jiyang - Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 50 Other Union Shoes Co., Ltd. 97.85

Wuxi - Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 45.70 Business Uni - Sole Co., Ltd. 80.22

Yixing - Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 50 (DiscontinuedUnion Construction Corp., Ltd. 99.68

Shangyu Hangzhou - Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 50 Operation)

Huanan - Union Spring Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 50

Yunnan Energy Luliang-Union Power Co., Ltd. 50

Yunnan Energy Qujing-Union Power Co., Ltd. 50



22

......................................................................

Textile Business

In 2010, the textile industry condition has still recovered

from world economic crises. Although the purchase order
and demand of customers have started to gradually increase
since the end of 2009, there has still been fluctuation

caused by some impacting factors; e.g. exchange rate,
material sourcing.

......................................................................

Types of Products and Services

The company in this group runs a business in

production of three types of textile:

1) Garment accessories: e.g. zipper, thread, button

2) Spun yarn, woven fabric, and knitting wool

3) Ready-to-wear clothes

Such products are produced and sold both

domestically and internationally under the trademark of

“Venus.” Some products produced by the Company Group

are produced according to customers’ orders; while other

products are bought by customers either for use as raw

materials in further production of other finished products,

or for direct distribution as finished products themselves.

Supply of Products and Services

Major raw materials are mostly derived within the

country and imported from foreign countries. Some

examples of such raw materials are fabric, cotton, and

polyester. Those imported from foreign countries vary

depending on exchange rate and world market price

condition. Such price fluctuation also depends on weather,

cotton-growing season, and diseases & insects. This

causes such raw materials not to be supplied at

desirable time and quantity; however, the amount and

delivery of such supply are determined by sellers

instead. With regards to ready-to-wear clothes,

customers have increasing demand in domestic fabric for

their tax benefit which positively impacts their business

competitive ability.

Performances in 2009

In 2009, the business of textile industry was still

impacted by the economic crises in 2008 and more

serious competition in pricing and marketing among

domestic and foreign markets. In the domestic markets,

inexpensive products produced by foreign labors whose

cost was lower than Thai affected the sale price; while in

the foreign market, there was a market share competition

among competitive countries like China, India, Pakistan,

etc. The business is also affected by more appreciation

in baht value than other currencies of such competitive

countries. These caused higher export price in the foreign

countries; thereby resulting to the decreasing number of



23

2008200920082009

Total Sales Revenue

(Unit: Million Baht)
4,099.44

3,216.37

1,771.68

2,356.60

Export Sales Revenue

(Unit: Million Baht)

purchase orders by some customers. In addition, the

fact that consumer’s purchase ability decreased while

manufacturer’s production was still the same was one

of the factors affecting business operation. Nevertheless,

the Company’s products were reliable to customers in

aspect of quality, service, and delivery.

In 2009, the Company had incomes from textile

product sale of Baht 3,216.37 million, decreasing by

Baht 883.06 million or 21.54% lower than the previous

year. The export sales amount was Baht 1,771.68 million,

or  24.82% lower than last year; while the domestic

sales amount was Baht 1,742.84 million, or 17.11%

lower than last year.

Trends of the Industry and Competition
in the Future

In 2010, the textile industry condition has still

recovered from world economic crises. Although purchase

by and demand of customers have started to gradually

increase since the end of 2009, there has still been

fluctuation caused by some impacting factors; e.g. exchange

rate, material sourcing. With regards to the ready-to-wear

clothes business, the industry condition has been in the

same way with economic situations; resulting from

consumer’s carefulness in expenditure and affected by

other factors such as oil price fluctuation in the world

market, labor problems both in number and wage rate.

Nevertheless, the textile business group has

focused on improvement and enhancement on internal

administration of the organization; the goals thereof are

to reduce production cost while maintaining product

quality, to manage on-time product delivery, to expedite

any communication, and to mainly comply with standards

of partner countries. Furthermore, the group has

determined to develop various capabilities such as cost

& expenditure management in sales and services,

administrate lead time control to shorten a production

period, and develop a quality level. Moreover, the Company

Group has adhered to reduction of environmental impacts

by means of complying with regulations prescribed by

governmental agencies and the partner countries. In this

regard, there has been no dispute in any environmental

aspects.
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Plastic, Rubber, and Metal Business

Since the economic slowdown in 2008 continuously

affected this business group and resulted to sales

decrease. The plastic business was significantly affected

by unstable price of raw materials according to the oil price

in the world market and by the fact that the automotive and

electronic industry business, which was regarded as its

major customers, was quite seriously affected.

......................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................

Types of Products and Services
The company in this business produces and

distributes products categorized into 4 groups as follows:

1) Plastic products: injection-molded products; i.e.

components in automotive, electrical appliance, and

electronic industries, as well as parts of household products

2) Rubber products: an integrated industry starting

from rubber planting, through conversion of rubber latex

into rubber bar, and the application of such rubber bar

to the products like rubber tape, elastic webbing, elastic

braid, and rubber thread for utilization in continuous

industries such as underwears, rubber straps, and diapers

3) Stainless Steel products: comprising of stainless

pipes, vacuum bottles, and household appliances

4) Packaging products: various types of adhesive

tape; e.g. paper tapes, clear adhesive tapes, masking

tapes, and printed tapes

Supply of Products and Services
Plastic Industry Business

Raw materials are derived within the country and

imported from foreign countries.

Rubber Business

Domestic natural rubbers are main raw materials.

Most of those are derived from rubber plantations and

rubber industries operated by the subsidiary company.

In case of insufficiency, the raw materials will then be

ordered from other entrepreneurs.

Stainless Steel Product Business

Both domestic and imported raw materials are

used. Main sources of such raw materials are from Japan.

Performances in 2009
Since the economic slowdown in 2008, as well

as the trend of more serious regression in the first and

second quarter of 2009, continuously affected this business

and resulted to sales decrease in each product category.

The plastic business was significantly affected by

unstable price of raw materials according to the oil price

in the world market and by the fact that the automotive

and electronic industry business, which was regarded as

its major customers, was quite seriously affected by

arising economic problems in rubber and packaging

business. Although the raw material price was adjusted

to decrease since the second half of the year which

benefited its production cost, the business was still
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5,656.75

4,859.78

20082009

affected by progressive slowdown of market demand.

On the other hand, in the stainless steel  business for

use in production of bottles and vacuum food containers,

although the sales volume, especially for foreign

customers, was adjusted to decrease, the business was still

insignificantly affected. Because the raw material price

was adjusted to dramatically decrease in the second and

third quarter of the year. In addition, each country in the

world community realized significance of environmental

conservation; e.g. reduction of the use of plastic bottles

and bags while turning to use more environment-friendly,

alternative materials instead. Such reasons were more

beneficial to the business than estimation. With this

respect, the overall performance of this business was

insignificantly adjusted to decrease from the year 2008.

Trends of the Industry and Competition
in the Future

It has been expected that, in 2010, the world

economy of this industry tends to recover, especially in

the second half of the year. This business still emphasizes

internal restructuring so as to be capable of competing

against the competitors; the goals thereof are to reduce

production cost and enhance production efficiency, to

make research & development for providing new launched

products, and to seek for more new markets.

Moreover, the company in this business realizes

environmental significance and always cooperates with

governmental organizations, partners, and associated

agencies in various activities; e.g. developing products

while improving the environment in accordance with any

applicable regulations, being approved for Environmental

Management Standard (ISO 14001), and prescribing

environmental policies so as to foster a good environmental

sense to employees of all levels.

Total Sales Revenue

(Unit: Million Baht)
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In 2009, revenue from sales and services of the Company

slightly increased from that of 2008.  In the first half of

the year, the business was directly affected by customers’

postponement of purchase orders; however, its operating

result tended to gradually recover in the second-half.

Awarded by IBM for 2009 Business Partner of the

Year System and Technology Group Distributor

.............................................................................................................................................

Computer and Electronic Parts Business
.............................................................................................................................................

Computer
Types of Businesses

Computer Union Co., Ltd. has been undertaking

computer and information technology businesses since

1982. It is one of the top-class computer businesses in

Thailand. Nowadays, the Company provides a wide

variety of products and services concerning computers

and information technology. It has ceaselessly

develops its products and services so as to truly and

comprehensively satisfy customer needs. At present, the

Company is authorized as a dealer and distributor of

various products and services as follows:

• Officially authorized dealer of IBM hardware

products e.g. Power Systems, System Storage (DS family,

XIV, SAN, NAS, and IP Switch), System x, Magnetic

Stripe, Passbook Printer, ATM (CD), and CDM (Cash

Deposit Machine)

• Officially authorized dealer of IBM software

products e.g. Websphere Product Family (Websphere,

ILOG) Information family (DB2, infomix, Cognos, Filenet),

Tivoli Product family, Lotus Note, and Rational

• Dealer of Acronis products (Software Image

Backup from the United State of America)

• Distributor of Lenovo products e.g. PC, Think

Pad, and Server

• Distributor of HP products e.g. all models of

PC, Notebook, Laser Printer, and Laser Jet

• Distributor of Hitachi products e.g. Auto

Update Passbook Printer

• Distributor of Ronsycs products e.g. Magnetic

Stripe, and Pin Pad

• Distributor of Talaris products e.g. Teller Cash

Recycler – TCR

• Distributor of Epson products e.g. various

models of Dot Matrix Printer

• Distributor of Samsung products e.g. various

models of LCD, Laser Printer, and Toner

• Distributor of Canon products e.g. various

models of Printer and Scanner

• Distributor of Fujitsu products e.g. PC,

Notebook, Printer, Scanner, etc.

• Distributor of DELL and Acer for PC, Notebook

• Service provider for installation, repairs and

maintenance of hardware and software, computer,

network system, and peripheral device, as well as

system design and development

• Distributor, installation and service provider for

closed-circuit television (CCTV)

• Service provider for data recovery in various

media, e.g. recovery of lost data in Hard Disk, Flash

Drive, and Memory Card; in the name of I-CU Data

Recovery using Clean room class 100 since 2004. It

recovered data from RAID and can be used with all

operating systems such as DOS, Windows, Linux, Novell,

and Macintosh. The service is 24-hour available and

customer’s confidentiality guaranteed.
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Performances in 2009

Although the world economic situation in 2009

contracted dramatically and the national political situation

was not so stable as expected, revenue from sales and

services of the Company slightly increased from that of

2008, while its operating result was better than the

previous year. In the first half of the year, the business

was directly affected by customers’ postponement of

purchase orders; however, its operating result tended to

gradually recover in the second-half.

Trends of the Industry and Competition in the Future

The business trend in the first half of 2010 is

expected to resemble that of the second half of 2009.

It is likely to be better in the second half of 2010,

depending largely on the country’s political stability and

confidence in economic recovery in the long run.

In 2010, the Company is to implement policies

toward effective spending, improvements of personnel

structure and working processes, continuous personnel

development for acquisition of knowledge and know-how,

and service excellence. With all these, the Company can

compete with others in every aspect, by utilizing its

rapid and efficient services with 23 service centers

nationwide. Above all, the Company is entering its 28
th

year in computer and information technology businesses.

Thus, the customers can be confident in its stability,

trustworthiness, and expertise, being encouraging factors

for customers in making their decisions to buy the

Company’s products and services.

In the future, the Company will adopt a strategy

to continuously expand customer bases into every business

group. It will also launch a variety of products and

services to satisfy customer needs. Besides, the Company

will focus on constantly developing efficiencies in all

aspects so as to make its products and services

distinguished, with the goal of being “Number One”

in sales and services of computer and information

technology business of Thailand.

Electronics
Types of Products and Services

The Company is an original equipment manufacturer

(OEM) of electronic component (hard disk drives) for

export under the name of Union Technology (2008)

Public Company Limited.

Performances in 2009

The world economic crises seriously affected the

Company’s operations. In particular, customers’ purchase

orders decreased by 50% over the first six months of

2009, thereby causing the Company to lay off over 600

employees in order to maintain its operational capacities

in such critical situation. During six months that followed,

the economic situation rapidly recovered and purchase

orders had increased to an extent that total volume was

almost equal to the pre-crisis volume. In addition, the

more compact management structure enabled the business

to achieve satisfactory operating results. The overall

operation thus registered a fair result in 2009.

• Production and export volumes decreased by

approximately 6%

• With operational guidelines concentrating more

on preventive actions rather than corrective ones, the

Company could attain its quality enhancement. Besides,

the Company, as assessed by customers, was rated the

first rank in product quality.

• Production efficiency climbed up by approximately

10% from the performance of Lean Manufacturing, a

part of Process Excellence.

• The Company was awarded, for three consecutive

years, the Outstanding Establishment Reward in Labor

Relations.

Competition and Market Condition

During the fourth quarter of 2008 to the first

quarter of 2009, the hard disk drive manufacturing business

had contracted continually. Then it started to resume

the normal condition in the second quarter of 2009, and

grew steadily. It has been expected that the business

would grow by approximately 10% in 2010.

Operational Plan for 2010

Based on the expected 10% growth, the Company

thus plans to recruit more employees and to maintain

its existing ones because of high competition in labor

recruitment. With respect to operational efficiency

enhancement, the Company still progressively pursues

the principle of Process Excellence, and plans to increasingly

implement Data Mining to assist its data analyses. In

this regard, the Company also has a plan to join the

Thailand Energy Award Contest in order to promote

standardization of energy conservation.
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Energy Business

Types of Products and Services

The Company has invested in energy business

in the area of electricity generation which can be

categorized into 2 sections:

1. Energy projects in the People’s Republic of

China: Initially, the Company invested through the Union

Energy (China) Co., Ltd. It invested by 100% together

with a governmental organization of the People’s

Republic of China in a cogeneration power plant, which

generated both electricity and steam. At this present, the

Company has invested in 8 cogeneration power plants;

i.e. 2 plants in Jiangsu Province, 3 plants in Zhejiang

Province, 1 plant in Heilongjiang Province, and 2 plants

in Yunnan Province.

2. Energy projects in Thailand: The Company invests

in an electricity generation plant in accordance with an

Independent Power Producer (IPP), where it enters to the

agreement of generation and distribution of electricity to

the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand.

Energy Business in the People’s Republic

of China

Supply of Products and Services

Electricity generation requires coal as an essential

raw material; most of it are derived from the North of

China. Although the coal price at the present is still high

because of commanded closedown of unqualified small

coal mines by the government and lack of coal in the

winter due to transportation difficulty, the Company has

entered into long-term agreement in coal purchases from

large coal mine companies; thereby ensuring sufficient

coal for electricity generation.

Performances in 2009

Throughout the past year, although the world

economic situation dramatically fluctuated, the China

economy was insignificantly affected and could recover

in a short period; resulting to good stability of electricity

needs. In addition, the average cost of coal was lower

than that of 2008; resulting to moderate stability of

electricity generation and quite good performance. As

for steam, although affected by the economic crises, the

customers in some industries still had continuous

purchase orders with the Company.

In 2010, the Company still has a goal to control

its production cost; i.e. coal and financial costs, and to

.................................................................................................

.................................................................................................

Throughout the past year, the China economy was
insignificantly affected and could recover in a short period;

resulting to good stability of electricity needs. In addition,
the average cost of coal was lower than that of 2008;
resulting to moderate stability of electricity generation and

quite good performance.
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plan for expansion of steam generation capability so as

to support customer’s increasing needs; especially in

chemical industries. Other industries where water is a

major component in their production procedure and which

were affected by the economic crises are expected to

primarily recover in 2010.

Trends of the Industry and Competition in the Future

In the present circumstances, although each of

the power plants has no price competition because the

Government is responsible for pricing control, it is still

affected by some risk factors from governmental strict

regulations on pollution control. The plants are thus

regulated in their use of coal for electricity generation;

thereby directly affecting their business operation due to

increasing cost for industrial pollution control. However,

steam generated by the Company is still needed by

customers in an increasing proportion; especially by the

customers in the zone of bleaching, dyeing, and chemical

industries. This therefore positively impacts an overall

performance. Besides, the Company has a plan for

expansion of steam pipes to satisfy customer’s needs

and support the higher number of customers in the future.

Energy Business in Thailand

Types of Products and Services

The Company has invested in Ratchaburi Power

Co., Ltd. (RPCL), at this present, the investment

proportion is 10%. The Ratchaburi Power Co., Ltd. is an

Independent Power Producer (IPP) which generates and

distributes electricity to the Electricity Generating

Authority of Thailand. It possesses two units of natural

gas fired combined-cycle power plant, with a total

production capacity of 1,400 megawatts.

Performances in 2009

This project is situated at Ban Rai Subdistrict,

Damnoen Saduak District, Ratchaburi Province. It has

paid-up registered capitals of Baht 7,325 million. In 2009,

the two units of power plants could generate total

electricity of 8,148,834.01 million units distributed to

the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand.

Trends of the Industry and Competition in the Future

According that the electricity generation industry

is public utility contracted with the Electricity Generating

Authority of Thailand (EGAT), the trend of this industry

then depends on the amount of operational orders from

EGAT and the Company’s production capacity to satisfy

customer’s demand. The future competition status

depends on the price of fuel type used for electricity

generation; however, the Company expects that this will

not affect its business throughout the period of such

contract.
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Chemical Industry Business in China

..................................................................................................................................................

There are plans for boosting production capacities of the

two chemical plants by 50,000 tons each, with aims to

strengthen its competitiveness and to serve high market

needs.

Types of Products and Services
The Company has invested in two chemical

industry companies:

1. Yixing Union Biochemical Co., Ltd.: Situated

in Yixing City, Jiangsu Province. Established since 2000

for production of citric acid supplied to chemical,

cosmetic, and food industries; it has a production

capacity of 50,000 tons per year.

2. Taixing Union Zond Chemical Co., Ltd.:

Established since 2007 in Taixing City, Jiangsu

Province, it produces phthalic anhydride, a chemical

substance used as a plasticizer in coloring and

medicinal industries. At present, it has a production

capacity of 55,000 tons per year.

Supply of Products and Services
Raw materials used in production of citric acid

are corns, the cereal crops abundant in the upper part of

China. Although the yields depend greatly on season

and weather conditions like any other crops, the total

harvest is still sufficient for use in the production.

Phthalic anhydride requires ortho-xylene as its raw

material. This is a chemical substance derived from

petroleum fractionation. Some of such substance can

be obtained domestically, while others are imported from

foreign countries.

Performances in 2009
In 2009, citric acid was affected by the world

economic crises; it was predominantly exported to North

America, Japan, and European countries. This resulted

to a slight decrease in profits due to price competition

against others. However, Yixing Union Biochemical has

developed state-of-the-art technologies to achieve

higher purity of chemicals and to effectively curb the

production costs.

Taixing Union has just accomplished its first

phase of installing 55,000 ton machines at its plant

in mid-2009. The plant has launched its production

test-run for only a short period, so the 2009

performance would not show a profit.

Trends of the Industry and Competition
in the Future

There are plans for boosting production

capacities of the two chemical plants by 50,000 tons

each, with aims to strengthen its competitiveness and

to serve high market needs. It is expected that these

capacity expansion projects will be completed soon.

..................................................................................................................................................
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Corporate Social Responsibility Activities
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1. Joined the “Conserving Natural Resources and Environment” project at the Captain Yuth Beach,

Chonburi Province.

2. Participated in the “Forestation Against Global Warming” project at the Bang Phra Reservoir

Non-Hunting Area, Chonburi Province.

..........................................................................................................................................................

Saha-Union Group has been recognizing the importance of social and environmental responsibilities, and thus

been pursuing to attain its sound and ethical management of businesses in consistent with Thai social values. The

Group has given its continual supports to many activities of public and private sectors, as well as related agencies,

based on the philosophy “Integrity, Quality and Service”.

In the year 2009, Saha-Union Public Company Limited and its group companies have contributed to various

social activities for the developments and benefits of the public as follows:-

Environmental Activities

- Joined with government agencies in the “Conserving Natural Resources and Environment” project at the

Captain Yuth Beach, Chonburi Province to mark the auspicious occasion of Her Majesty the Queen’s Birthday on 12
th

August, which involved resuming cultured marine animals to their natural habitat and cleaning the beach

- Constantly participated in the “Forestation Against Global Warming” project at the Bang Phra Reservoir

Non-Hunting Area, Chonburi Province.
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Educational Activities
- Donated money to UNICEF (Thailand) in support of continual activities to offer both educational and other

assistances, including quality of life improvements for underprivileged children. In this respect, these children could be

self-sufficient without being a burden to the society, and be under the protection of the aids plan of the UNICEF.

- Donated money for the construction of a new school building at the Pre-School Children Development

Center, Bangchan Development Community, Bangkok.

- Donated personal computers for use as educational and teaching aids for teachers and students, Banhuamueang

School and Pre-School Children Development Center of the Educational Service Area, Ban Phuet Charoen, Amphoe Na

Noi, Nan Province.

Social Activities
- Donated money and consumer goods to Banglamung Home for the Elderly and Banglamung Home for

Boys, Chonburi Province.

- Staff of Saha-Union Group jointly donated blood to the Thai Red Cross Society and purchased Thai Red

Cross Society raffle tickets.

- Donated money and consumer goods on the occasion of National Children’s Day at the 62
nd
 Mitraphap

School (Tamru) and Iam Suri School, Samutprakan Province, Bamphennuea Temple School and Min Buri Youth

Center, Min Buri District, Bangkok. In addition, donation of such articles as a seven-faucet drinking water dispenser,

nine sets of street lamps, etc. was made to Suankaew Foundation.

1. Donated money for the construction of a new school building at the Pre-School

Children Development Center, Bang Chan Development Community, Bangkok.

2. Donated personal computers to Banhuamueang School and Pre-School Children

Development Center of the Educational Service Area, Banphuetcharoen, Amphoe

Nanoi, Nan Province.

3. Donated money and consumer goods to Banglamung Home for the Elderly and

Banglamung Home for Boys, Chonburi Province.

4. Staff of Saha-Union Group jointly donated blood to the Thai Red Cross Society.
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Religious Activities
- Made merit by participating in the Royal Kathin Robes Offering Ceremony at Sothon Wararam Waravihara

Temple, Amphoe Mueang, Chachoengsao Province; and participated in the Kathin Robes and Clerical Requisites

Offering Ceremony at Tamru Temple in Samutprakan Province and Koksap Temple in Chachoengsao Province. The

Company also participated in Robes and Clerical Necessities Offering at Bamphennuea Temple, Min Buri District,

Bangkok, on the occasion of Songkran Festival.

- Made merit by offering flowers and clerical requisites on the occasion of Visakha Puja Day; made merit by

offering Buddhist Lenten candles and flowers together with clerical necessities on the occasion of Buddhist Lent and

Asalha Puja Day at Bamphennuea Temple, Min Buri District, Bangkok; and made merit by offering Buddhist Lenten

candles on the occasion of Buddhist Lent at nine temples in Nakhon Pathom Province, which included Phra Pathom

Chedi Raja Waravihara Temple, Phailom Temple, Bangkaeo Temple, etc.

1. Made merit in the Kathin Robes and Clerical Requisites Offering Ceremony at Tamru Temple,

Samutprakan Province and Koksap Temple, Chachoengsao Province.

2. Made merit in the Offering Ceremony of Buddhist Lenten candles and Asalha Puja Day, flowers and

clerical necessities at Bamphennuea Temple, Minburi District, Bangkok.
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Structure of Shareholding

............................................................................................................

............................................................................................................

No. List of Shareholders Ultimate Shareholder Main Business No. of Shares %

1 Group of Companies

1.1Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd. Darakananda Group Investment 28,938,500 9.65

1.2Union Business Management Co., Ltd. Darakananda Group Investment 22,574,000 7.53

1.3Union Capital Co., Ltd. Darakananda Group Investment 19,797,800 6.60

1.4Union Industries Corp., Ltd. Darakananda Group Investment 17,968,300 5.99

1.5Uni-Fibre Co., Ltd. Darakananda Group Investment 12,239,240 4.08

1.6Saha Union Holding Co., Ltd. Saha-Union PCL Investment 6,239,994 2.08

1.7Union Multi-Capital Co., Ltd. Darakananda Group Investment 6,082,000 2.03

1.8Darakananda Co., Ltd. Darakananda Group Investment 3,000,000 1.00

1.9Union Equity Co., Ltd. Saha-Union PCL Investment 2,782,700 0.93

2 Bangkok Bank PCL 12,325,000 4.11

3 Mr. Kumtorn Poonsak-udomsin 8,049,644 2.68

4 Sinn Bualuang Leasing Co., Ltd. 7,265,000 2.42

5 The Southeast Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 6,135,800 2.05

6 TISCO Securities Co., Ltd. 4,650,000 1.55

7 UBS AG Singapore, Branch – 3,969,500 1.32

PB Securities Client Custody

8 Sinn Bualuang Capital Co., Ltd. 3,500,000 1.17

9 Bangkok Life Insurance PCL 3,263,400 1.09

10 Thai NDVR Co., Ltd. 3,049,280 1.02

Corporate Securities

• The Company had a fully paid-up registered capital of Baht 3,000 million, divided into 300,000,000

ordinary shares of Baht 10 each.

• The Company had no other types of shares with rights or terms that differed from those of ordinary

shares.

• The Company had no plans to issue and offer any shares or convertible securities to the mutual fund for

foreign investors (Thai Trust Fund), or to allow any non-voting depository receipts (NVDR) issued with its

shares as the underlying securities.

• The Company had no other securities except ordinary shares.

• Groups of major shareholders had not entered into any shareholders agreement on a matter that could

affect either the Company’s securities issuance or its administration.

Shareholders

List of 10 major shareholders of Saha-Union Public Company Limited

As of April 3
rd
, 2009

Dividend Payment Policy

The Company had a dividend payment policy of providing shareholders an appropriate investment return, depending

on its operating result, at a rate of not less than one-third of annual net profit calculated according to the cost method.

As for subsidiaries, policies of dividend payment to the Company would be subject to respective operating

result of each subsidiary.
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Directors’ Shareholding and Remuneration

Remunerations for the Company’s directors comprise meeting allowance and director bonus (if any), which

are fixed based on individual position and previously approved by the shareholders meeting. Remunerations paid to

each director for the fiscal year 2009 were as follows:-

No. Name

Shareholding Remuneration

Amt. held Amt. held % From the From

in 2009  in 2008 Change Company Subsidiaries

(Baht)  (Baht)

1 Mr. Damri Darakananda - - - 4,115,000.00 30,000.00

2 Mr. Panas Simasathien - - - 2,820,000.00 6,000.00

3 Ms. Sriwarin Jirapakkana 187,284 187,284 - 2,820,000.00 190,000.00

4 Mr. Sompop Amatayakul 10,000 10,000 - 2,960,000.00 328,000.00

5 Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai 2,251,694 2,251,694 - 260,000.00 -

6 Mr. Chakchai Panichapat - - - 720,000.00 -

7 Mr. Prajuab Reonchaidee - - - 80,000.00 -

8 Mr. Thitivat Suebsaeng - - - 120,000.00 162,000.00

9 Ms. Pakinee Prettitumrong 1,950,624 1,950,624 - 240,000.00 78,000.00

10 Ms. Dalad Sapthavichaikul 13,052 13,052 - 120,000.00 -

11 Mr. Chutindhon Darakananda 3,427,700 1,837,300 85.56 2,820,000.00 -

12 Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda 1,851,900 1,851,900 - 120,000.00 72,000.00

13 Mr. Bovornrat Darakananda - - - 120,000.00 -

14 Mr. Vacharaphong Darakananda 1,582,600 1,582,600 - 120,000.00 144,000.00

15 Mr. Nantiya Darakananda - - - 120,000.00 144,000.00

16 Mr. Yanyong Tangchitkul 419,000 - N.A. 30,000.00 144,000.00

Total Remunerations 17,585,000.00 1,298,000.00

Note : The 7
th
 director on the list had passed away in August 2009, and the 16

th
 one had taken office in September

2009.

Total Remunerations for the Management

Total remunerations paid to the Company’s executive directors and management (5 persons) in 2009

amounted to Baht 12,526,121.08, comprising of salaries and bonuses. Apart from the aforementioned, other executive

directors holding equivalent position to the fourth executive succeeding the President were not entitled to remuneration of

this kind, because they had already taken office as executives in other group companies and accordingly received

remunerations from those companies in terms of salaries and bonuses. Remunerations these executive directors

received from the Company were in the form of meeting allowances only.

In 2009, the Company paid an aggregate of Baht 69.386 million as remunerations (salaries and bonuses) to

totally 53 executives in 10 subsidiaries undertaking main businesses.

Other Remunerations

In addition to the above salaries and bonuses, the Company paid other remunerations to 5 executives in the

form of contributions to provident fund, managed by the Bangkok Bank PCL, at a rate of 3% of individual salary. The

amount in 2009 totaled Baht 337,437.00.
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The Company’s management structure consists of 4 committees; namely the Board of Directors, among

15 members of which include 5 independent directors; the Audit Committee; the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee; and the Risk Management Committee.

Lists of the committees as well as their respective scope and responsibilities are as follows:-

1. Board of Directors, comprising 15 members, namely:

Name Position

1. Mr. Damri Darakananda Chairman

2. Mr. Panas Simasathien Vice Chairman (Administration)

3. Mr. Sompop Amatayakul Vice Chairman (Audit and Evaluation of Domestic Business)

and Chairman of Audit Committee/Independent Director

4. Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana Vice Chairman (Finance and Investments)

5. Mr. Chutindhon Darakananda Vice Chairman (Investments in China)

6. Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai Audit Committee/Independent Director

7. Miss Pakinee Prettitumrong Audit Committee/Independent Director

8. Mr. Chakchai Panichapat Independent Director

9. Mr. Yanyong Tangchitkul Independent Director

10.Mr. Thitivat Suebsaeng Director and President

11.Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul Director

12.Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda Director

13.Mr. Bovornrat Darakananda Director

14.Mr. Vacharaphong Darakananda Director

15.Mr. Nantiya Darakananda Director

Note: During the year, there was 1 director being appointed, and 1 director passing away, as follows:-

1. Mr. Prajuab Roenchaidee - passed away on 24
th
 August 2009.

2. Mr. Yanyong Tangchitkul - appointed as a director on 24
th
 September 2009,

by the nomination process of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Authorities and responsibilities of the Board of Directors under the business management policies and

structures are as follows:-

1. Determining corporate direction, goals, and policies for business undertaking.

2. Supervising corporate management toward the appropriate risk management, together with efficient

profitability to ensure appropriate dividend payment and return on investment for the shareholders.

3. Governing the Company’s accounting system, for the disclosure of accurate and complete financial reports.

4. Seeking to maintain good reputation and positive image of the Company.

Structure of Management
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5. Considering the appointment and dismissal of the Managing Director positions of the Company and of

the group companies, which the Company is the major shareholder.

6. Determining the scope and authorities of the Company’s Managing Director.

7. Considering the annual plans and budget proposed by the Company’s Managing Director.

8. Evaluating the performance of the Company’s Managing Director, as well as considering annual

remunerations for managing directors of the group companies.

In performing tasks within the scope of its responsibilities, the Board of Directors can assign one or several

directors or any other persons to perform any actions on its behalf.

The Board shall appoint a director as the President, with authorities and responsibilities as the Board deems

appropriate.

The Board of Directors shall consist of at least 5 directors, not less than one-half of which must reside in

the Kingdom of Thailand, and not less than three-fourth of which must be of Thai nationality.

Appointment of the Company’s directors shall be approved by the shareholders’ meeting, according to

criteria and methods as disclosed under the topic “Nomination of Directors and Executives” on page 40.

The Company’s Board of Directors comprises of 5 independent directors, equivalent to one-third of

the total present number, as follows:-

1. Mr. Sompop Amatayakul

2. Mr. Chakchai Panichapat

3. Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai

4. Miss Pakinee Prettitumrong

5. Mr. Yanyong Tangchitkul (took his directorship on 24
th
 September 2009)

Criteria for Selection of Independent Directors

The Company has set criteria for selecting independent directors by nominating competent and experienced

persons who understand the nature of businesses of the Company and its groups, and have vision as well as

sufficient time to duly discharge their responsibilities. They must not be full-time managerial personnel of the

Company, and must also possess qualifications as specified by notifications, rules and regulations of related

governing agencies. After the consideration, these persons are invited to accept the directorship. In the Company’s

opinion, the above independent directors have capably exercised their knowledge and competency, and given

suggestions that are useful and suitable for business undertaking of the Company and of the group companies.

Board of Directors’ Meeting

The Company generally calls for the Board of Directors’ meeting at least once a month, in order to consider

matters proposed by the management and to pass resolutions on proper actions. The meeting also involves the

following up of business results so as to determine whether its operations are achieved in accordance with the laid

objectives and plans, what improvements are needed, and who are to be assigned for further actions. In 2009, there

were 12 Board meetings, and directors unoccupied with business trip abroad or immediate matter had attended every

meeting. Since the Company has a great deal of offshore investments, some directors were to supervise and monitor

business operations of such overseas companies and thus unable to attend monthly Board meetings. As for directors

based at subsidiaries’ offices in Shanghai or Hong Kong, they would attend the meetings via video conference. In any

event, the Company Secretary has routinely sent minutes of all the Board meetings to every director, either present or

absent in the meetings, for acknowledgement and recommendations (if any).
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Details of each director attendance in 2009 are as follows:-

Name Number of Attendance

1. Mr. Damri Darakananda 10/12 (including 7 times of VDO conferences)

2. Mr. Panas Simasathien 12/12

3. Miss Sriwarin Jirapakkana 12/12 (including 1 time of  VDO conferences)

4. Mr. Chakchai Panichapat 12/12

5. Mr. Sompop Amatayakul 11/12

6. Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai 8/12

7. Miss Pakinee Prettitumrong 11/12

8. Mr. Thitivat Suebsaeng 12/12

9. Mr. Prajuab Reonchaidee 8/8

10.Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul 12/12

11.Mr. Chutindhon Darakananda 7/12 (including 4 times of VDO conferences)

12.Mr. Aksornprasit Darakananda 10/12 (including 1 time of  VDO conference)

13.Mr. Bovornrat Darakananda 6/12 (including 5 times of VDO conferences)

14.Mr. Vacharaphong Darakananda 12/12

15.Mr. Nantiya Darakananda 9/12

16.Mr. Yanyong Tangchitkul 3/3

2. Audit Committee

Possessing all the qualifications as stated by the criteria of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Office

of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the Company’s Audit Committee was appointed by the Board of

Directors’ resolution on 19
th
 November 2009, to appoint the existing Audit Committee to assume the position for

another 3-year term. All of its members are independent directors.

Lists of Audit Committee members are as follows:-

1. Mr. Sompop Amatayakul Chairman of the Audit Committee

2. Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai Audit Committee Member

3. Miss Pakinee Prettitumrong Audit Committee Member

The Committee’s member possessing knowledge and experience of financial statement review is Mrs. Araya

Arunanondchai, who had worked with PriceWaterhouse auditing office and had been senior executives of Kasikornthai

Bank PCL and a securities company.

Scope of authorities and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:-

1. Reviewing the Company’s internal control system to ensure that it is appropriate and efficient.

2. Considering and approving the selection, review, and nomination of external auditors; coordinating with

the external auditors in relation to relevant financial reports; and reviewing the Company’s financial

reports to ensure accuracy, completeness and reliability of such reports.
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3. Monitoring to ensure that the Company’s compliance with regulations of official authorities and related

laws; and supervising to prevent conflicts of interest.

4. Issuing the summary corporate governance report, which is to be duly signed by the Chairman of the

Audit Committee, disclosed in the Company’s annual report, and sent to related parties.

5. Making sure that the management corrects any deficiencies found, as well as following up such

corrective actions.

6. Following up and assessing performances on the matters the Committee regards as significant.

7. Assessing its performance according to the Charter of the Audit Committee.

8. Performing any other tasks as assigned by the Company’s Board of Directors.

3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company has appointed directors with suitable experience and qualifications as members of the

Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, which are combined into a single body. Lists of the

members are as follows:-

Name Position

1. Mr. Sompop Amatayakul Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

2. Mr. Damri Darakananda Nomination and Remuneration Committee Member

3. Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai Nomination and Remuneration Committee Member

Scope of duties and responsibilities of the Committee are as follows:-

1. Nominating qualified person  to be  a new director.

2. Setting guidelines on nomination of the Company’s directors.

3. Considering guidelines on determination of director remunerations.

4. Fixing director remunerations by proposing the scheme to the Board of Directors’ meeting for consideration.

4. Risk Management Committee

The Committee consists of:-

Name Position

1. Mr. Thitivat Suebsaeng Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

2. Miss Dalad Sapthavichaikul Committee Member

3. Mr. Vacharaphong Darakananda Committee Member

4. Mrs. Srinual Sombatpraivan Committee Member, and Secretary

The Committee’s scope of authorities and responsibilities involve setting and monitoring risk management

policies of the Company, with the authority to appoint Risk Management Subcommittee for  each type of risks as it

deems appropriate.
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The Company Secretary is Mrs. Sirinun Sansanakom.

The Company has disclosed information concerning education background, biography and experience of the

Company’s directors on pages 8-12, including their training programs pertaining to their roles, responsibilities, and

skills of directorship on page 14, as well as information of the Company’s Executives  on page 15.

Nomination of Directors and the Executives

Election of the Company’s directors is made through consideration of the Nomination Committee who

screens and nominates qualified persons, who having knowledge, competency and experience in business administration,

having ample time to perform their duties, and having no conditions in contravention of regulations of related

authorities to the Board of Directors. Subsequently, the Board of Directors will propose the nomination to the

Company’s annual general shareholders’ meeting on the agenda concerning Election of Director, carried out according

to the Company’s articles of association, as follows:-

1. Each shareholder has the right of one share for one vote.

2. In the election of directors, vote casting can be conducted, as the shareholders’ meeting deems

appropriate, either for each person individually or for all persons as a single group by the total number of directors to

be elected at that time. In any case, the method of election must be compliant with the public law.

3. Directors shall be elected by the majority vote. In case of equal vote, the Chairman of the meeting shall

have a casting vote. Minor shareholders are entitled to the rights as per the aforementioned articles of association,

which are not specially stipulated. At every annual general shareholders’ meeting, one-third of directors shall be retired.

If the number of directors cannot be divided into three parts, the number of directors closest to one-third shall be retired.

The directors due to retire from their positions in the first and second year after registration of the Company

shall be determined by drawing lots. In subsequent years, directors having served longest shall be retired.

Retiring directors can be re-elected.

In addition to retirement by rotation, directors shall vacate the position upon:-

a. Death.

b. Resignation.

c. Disqualification.

d. Dismissal by the resolution of shareholders’ meeting by the vote of not less than three-fourth of the

shareholders present and entitled to vote, and have an aggregate of shares not less than one-half of the total shares

held by the shareholders present and entitled to vote.

e. Dismissal by a court order.
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For more than 30 years, the Company’s Board of Directors has been placing utmost importance to corporate

governance, and holding fast to the righteousness and ethics in its practice and governance over various matters, so

as to achieve sustainable growth of the business under the principle of accuracy, transparency, and fairness to all

stakeholders. The Company’s corporate governance principles are in consistent with principles and best practice

guidelines for directors of SET listed companies, details of which are as follows:-

1. Rights of Shareholders
Apart from basic rights in voting for election of directors, selecting external auditors, fixing director

remunerations, or fixing audit fees; the Company’s shareholders also have the right to receive returns on investment in

terms of dividend equitably according to their shareholding proportion, the right to buy, sell or transfer shares, and the

right to obtain information on the Company.

1.1 Prior to every annual general shareholders’ meeting, the Company gives all shareholders the

opportunities to propose additional agenda items or to submit their queries in relation to the Company in advance.

Information concerning the practice is publicized via 2 channels, namely the SET’s Electronic Listed Company

Information Disclosure (ELCID) and the Company’s website (www.sahaunion.co.th), before detailed documents are

sent to the shareholders.

1.2 To support their decisions about voting of agendas in the shareholders’ meeting, the shareholders can

review information beforehand from the meeting notice, the annual report as well as the financial statements of the

Company. In the meeting notice, information for each agenda will include objective, rationale, and recommendations

from the Board of Directors, including:-

• Information on operating results, as per the financial statements in the annual report.

• Information and summary profile of particular directors proposed for election in place of retiring directors.

• Information, and full name of external auditors and their respective audit office, auditing experience, and

audit fees. These external auditors are independent.

• Information on proposal for dividend payment, including dividend payment policy, dividend rates, and

supporting reasons.

• The meeting notice and related documents, dispatched to the shareholders for at least 14 days prior to

the meeting date.

1.3 During the shareholders’ meeting.

The Company encourages the shareholders to exercise their rights, such as rights to attend and cast votes

in the shareholders’ meeting. In case the shareholders are unable to attend the meeting by themselves, they may

authorize any other persons as their proxies to attend and cast votes on their behalf. Accordingly, the Company has

enclosed a proxy form with the meeting notice sent to the shareholders, who can either authorize any of the Company’s

independent directors or Audit Committee members as their proxies.

• The Company never restricted or violated rights of its shareholders whatsoever.

• Besides, the Company accommodated the shareholders in exercising their rights by assigning staff to

facilitate the attendance registration, which began at least 1 hour before the meeting time and continues even after the

meeting was called open.

• The Company held the meeting at its head office, which was an easily-accessible venue by the main road

with convenient transportation routes, and at a time befitting punctual arrival of shareholders. Refreshments and

souvenirs were prepared for shareholders attending the meeting each year.

• At the beginning of shareholders’ meeting, the Chairman announced to the shareholders the meeting

quorum, called the meeting open, and introduced the Company’s directors and executives to the shareholders. In

2009, 14 directors out of the total number of 15 attended the meeting. Related persons present were Chairman, Vice

Chairman, President, Chairman of the Audit Committee, independent directors, directors, Company Secretary, Account

and Finance Department Manager, and the external auditors.

• Before proceeding with the meeting, the Chairman informed the shareholders about voting procedures.

• During each agenda, the Chairman allowed the shareholders full opportunities to ask questions, where

clarifications were provided to their satisfaction. Besides, comments and recommendations of the shareholders were

recorded for further consideration.
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• A computerized system was used for registration and vote counting of each agenda. Upon processing of

vote as cast by the shareholders on each agenda, the Chairman announced the resolution to the shareholders in the

meeting, along with the exact number of votes, either for approval or disapproval or abstention, all of which were

recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

• Agenda on Director Remunerations

The shareholders had the right to vote on the determination of director remunerations as proposed by the

Company. In this regard, remuneration policy approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, as well as

remuneration criteria according to scope of responsibilities and positions were also declared. Remuneration was to be

considered and approved individually for each director.

• Agenda on Election of Directors

Full names, information and summary profile of persons, screened by the Nomination Committee, to be

elected in place of the retiring directors were proposed to the meeting. These details had been included in the meeting

notice for shareholders’ acknowledgement in advance. At the 2009 shareholders’ meeting, a large number of attended

shareholders suggested the election of all directors as a single group; the Company thus used the voting method of

electing a whole group of directors and recorded the resolution together with the number of votes.

• Agenda on Dividend Payment

The Chairman notified shareholders of the dividend payment policy and rationale for the dividend rate

specifically proposed for approval this year, which was considerably higher than that stipulated in the policy. The

Board of Directors opined that the proposed rate was appropriate and that the shareholders got a truly high rate of

return on investment, when compared with fixed deposit rates offered by financial institutions. All shareholders had

the equitable rights to consider and vote on this matter.

• Agenda on Appointment of External Auditors

The Chairman proposed that shareholders considered appointing more than 1 professional auditor of the

same audit office as the Company’s external auditor and informed the shareholders about the professional profiles of

these auditors, who were qualified by the SEC’s notification, independent, and had no relationship with the Company

or the Board of Directors or the management. The Chairman also proposed audit fee to the shareholders for

consideration and voting on the agenda.

• Except for agendas specified in the meeting notice, there were no other agendas proposed to the

shareholders for consideration. The final session of the meeting was merely for shareholders’ recommendations or

further questions, to which relevant committees had answered thoroughly. After that, the Chairman declared the

meeting closed.

• The Company Secretary recorded minutes of the meeting, which included complete contents in essence,

and submitted it to the SET within 14 days after the meeting. All the minutes have been kept under a good filing

system, and always available for inspection and reference. The shareholders have the right to gain access to such

information via the Company’s website, www.sahaunion.co.th.

1.4 The Company has over 25% free float shares, thereby giving shareholders the right to smooth trading

as well as encouraging liquidity of the Company’s shares in the secondary market.

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders
2.1 The Company’s shareholders comprise major, minor and foreign ones, all having equitable rights in

voting for resolution, that is 1 share equal to 1 vote. The Company has never violated rights of minor or foreign

shareholders, demonstrated by their equal voting rights with major shareholders. In addition, relevant committees have

answered all the questions raised by minor and foreign shareholders in the shareholders’ meeting. Prior to the meeting

date, the Company also provides a channel via its corporate website for shareholders to propose additional matters to

be put on the agenda of the forthcoming shareholders’ meeting.

• The Company has facilitated shareholders unable to attend the meeting by enclosing a proxy form with

the meeting notice.

• The meeting notice includes advice about procedures for proxy appointment, as well as documents or

evidences required. The procedures are practically the same as those of general powers of attorney, which involve no

complicated criteria.



434343

•  The Company has delivered the meeting notice to shareholders not less than 14 days in advance of the

meeting, so as to give all shareholders ample time to consider the information and agendas before making decision

whether to attend the meeting.

• For 21 days prior to the shareholders’ meeting, the Company has disclosed on its website

(www.sahaunion.co.th) the information regarding details, date, time and all the agendas of the shareholders’ meeting.

• The Company’s Article of Association has prescribed that voting method for resolution of all the

agendas is carried out on the basis of 1 share 1 vote.

2.2 Use of Inside Information

In laying down a policy on the issue, the Company has set rules prohibiting employees, executives and

directors from exploiting their duties or other persons’ duties either for their own personal interests or for corruptedly

helping anyone; as well as conducting their fiduciary duties with honesty and integrity. Furthermore, the Company has

imposed various disciplinary actions in case there is a violation of aforementioned rules, with multiple degrees of

penalties as specified in the Company’s internal regulations. In this regard, the employees, executives and directors

have acknowledged and complied with the said rules.

The Company has prevented insider trading practice by regulating directors or executives to avoid trading

the Company’s securities within 14 days before disclosure of periodic or quarterly financial statements, including

within 24 hours after such information is disclosed. The Company Secretary is responsible for informing all directors

and executives about the timeframe and non-trading principle.

2.3 Related Transactions

According to the shareholding structure of the Company in part of investment business, the Company, as a

parent company, has been holding shares in the subsidiaries and associated companies since their establishments in

order to gain benefits for its business group, business reputation, as well as commercial bargaining power. Thus, there

is a need for the Company to engage in related transactions. Throughout the passing years, however, most of these

related transactions are conducted as normal business transactions with general trading conditions.

In case of entering into related transactions of other types, such as acquisition or disposition of assets,

lease of immovable property, or offer of financial assistance; the Company has taken into account the maximum

benefits of the organization. The Audit Committee has also considered the matter before it is proposed to the Board

of Directors’ meeting. In this respect, related persons will not take any interest in executing the transactions, and have

no right to vote on such matters in the Board of Directors’ or shareholders’ meeting. The Company has strictly

complied with rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand or of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Before entering into a related transaction, the Company has disclosed via relevant information to its

shareholders and investors via the SET’s electronic channel, with details about transaction type, name and relationship

of related persons, reasons and demands for the transaction, pricing policy, transaction size and value, as well as

opinions of both the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

Details of the transactions made in the year 2009 are shown on pages 62-64.

For the best interests of the organization, the Company has to conduct related transactions regarding offer

of financial assistance, because it generally involves in financial management of the Company and group companies in

order to get operational flexibility and to maximize the economic returns. Therefore, the Company occasionally needs

to give loans to subsidiaries in which it holds a major stake, partly to be used as the working capital. At times, group

companies deposit their surplus cash with the Company, which is the parent company, and get returns on an arm’s

length basis. In case of loan guarantee, the Company will take responsibility only in proportionate to its shareholding

under the respective joint venture agreements.

3. Recognition of the Role of Stakeholders
The Company attaches great importance to the rights of its stakeholders, since these parties contribute to

the Company’s accomplishment of operational objectives, as well as its sustainable growth. The Board of Directors,

the management and all employees have adhered to the principle of “Integrity, Quality, Service” in treating stakeholders

on the following matters:-

3.1 In relation to personnel, the Company has a clear and concrete policy on employees’ safety, occupational

health, welfare and other fringe benefits, as stated in its Employee’s Manual. Also, regulations concerning personnel

management are prescribed in writing and communicated to all the employees.
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• The Company has established a provident fund for Saha-Union Group employees, supervised and

monitored by the fund committee who will coordinate with the fund manager. This provides an approach of long-term

savings for the employees. The Company contributes to the fund at the rate of 3% of each employee’s salary.

• Apart from provident fund, the Company has also set up a savings cooperative for Saha-Union Group

employees, so that they can make savings on the payday and receive an annual dividend. When in financial need,

employees can also take out one of various loans available from the cooperative according to applicable rules and

regulations. Employees will get the sum of their savings upon resignation or retirement. Consequently, they are

ensured of a secured life after retirement.

• Regarding personnel development policy, the Company takes emphasis on the Competency System,

where trainings are provided to boost employees’ skills in relevant fields. Those with potentials can thus move up the

career ladder to a position with higher responsibility. The Company insists that the employees take training courses

and comply with guidelines on work improvement toward excellence system of the Thailand Productivity Institute. All

employees have acknowledged and understood the concept accordingly.

3.2 In relation to customers, the Company has a policy to strictly abide by its given commitment in

honoring fair treatment, good relationship and responsibility to the customers.

3.3 In relation to business partners, Saha-Union Group has been treating its business partners fairly

without taking advantage of them. All agreements are observed. For example, the Company will still deliver the

products of the quality and price as already agreed, even when the production cost gets higher than it was on the

agreement date due to increase in cost of raw materials.

3.4 The Company’s policy on treatment of creditors emphasizes its obligation and conformity to the

agreements. For example, its group companies make payments of merchandise bills or repayment of loans strictly on

due dates.

3.5 The Company has policy and guidelines on equitable treatment of shareholders, responsibility for

shareholders’ investment by returning in the form of dividend according to the disclosed dividend policy. Besides,

shareholders enjoy the rights to communication and information via the channel of investor relations.

3.6 The Company has an environmental policy prescribing strict compliance with related legal provisions.

For example, its group companies have arranged for wastewater treatment ponds, control of pollution emission, along

with conformity to environmental management standards. Being granted ISO 14000 and ISO 14001 certifications, the

group companies have also conducted environmental management audits in accordance with both standards.

3.7 The Company has policy and guidelines on community and social responsibilities, by avoiding negative

impacts on nearby communities. It seeks to be of benefit to the public, such as making available employments and

welfares, control of noises and pollutions, as well as contributions to the society. The Company has donated

educational aids to schools in Bangkok and other provinces. Other social activities are disclosed under the topic

Corporate Social Responsibility Activities.

3.8 The Company has established Investor Relations Unit as a contact channel for such stakeholders as the

shareholders. Any enquiries and complaints can be addressed to Mrs. Chanida Devahastin, who shall coordinate for

further action, at telephone number 0 2311 5111 ext. 7674 or facsimile number 0 2741 4823.

4. Information Disclosure and Transparency
The Company has a policy on complete, accurate, prompt and transparent disclosure of its significant

information, so that shareholders and investors can gain better understanding and base their decision making on it. The

information includes information disclosed under material events during the year, and annual information concerning the

Company along with quarterly and yearly financial reports. The Company has revealed its information in the annual

registration statement (form 56-1) and the annual report (form 56-2), which can be summarized as follows:-

4.1 Shareholding structure, with list of 10 major shareholders, which exhibits names of major shareholder

groups and ultimate shareholders, including their shareholding proportion.

4.2 Director information, specifying names, last names, positions (including independent director and audit

committee member), and number of the Company’s shares held by them.

4.3 Director profile, including trainings in relation to individual performance, and work experience.

4.4 Director remuneration of all forms, and the amount paid to individual director.
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4.5 Director performance, with record of attendance at Board of Directors’ meetings.

4.6 Financial reports, exhibiting status, operating results, balance sheets, statements of income, statements

of cash flows, statements of changes in shareholders’ equities, and notes to the financial statements.

4.7 Management discussion and analysis concerning corporate financial status and operating results.

4.8 Report of external auditor, which expresses unqualified opinions. Being an SEC-approved certified

public accountant, the Company’s external auditor is independent and has no relationship with the Company, its

executives, or employees.

4.9 Information concerning business undertaking, as well as industrial outlook and competition for each

major business.

4.10 Information concerning risk factors.

4.11 Information concerning related transactions.

4.12 Investor relations.

Recognizing the Board of Directors’ policy on transparent, complete, and accurate disclosure of significant

information as prescribed by related laws, the Company has posted corporate information as well as information

affecting securities prices and investors’ decisions on its website, www.sahaunion.co.th, to facilitate easy access for all

stakeholders. Information disclosure is also publicized via the SET’s electronic communication channel. A working unit

was established to specifically take care of investor relations. Institutional and non-institutional investors, analysts, and

related parties have been contacting and meeting with the Company’s representatives for information and news on its

activities. Person responsible for the task is Mrs. Chanida Devahastin, telephone number 0 2311 5111 ext. 7674 or

facsimile number 0 2741 4823. The Company welcomes any comments and regulations, and is pleased to provide

relevant information to analysts, institutional and individual investors.

Details of significant information mentioned above are exhibited on pages 8-15, 22-30, 35-36, 38, 51-58,

59-60, and 61-64.

5. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
Being responsible for the Company, shareholders, and all stakeholders, the Company has discharged its

duties of corporate governance, as follows:-

5.1 The Company has stated a policy and issued a corporate governance manual, signed in approval by the

Board of Directors. The corporate governance principles have been conveyed to all related parties in Saha-Union Group,

who duly signed their names to confirm acknowledgement and compliance.

5.2 With regard to business ethics, the Company and its group have a policy of business operations in the

same direction. All stakeholders are treated according to the business ethics of “Integrity, Quality, Service,” which is

well-aware and strictly adhered among related parties. The policy is posted openly and noticeably on the bulletin

boards, and communicated to employees of all levels for concrete practice. The Company has also regularly supervised

the implementation and related matters to ensure adherence to the policy and business ethics.

5.3 Leadership and Vision of the Board of Directors

• The Board of Directors is responsible for determining objectives, vision, mission, strategies, and policy of

the business undertaking of the Company and group companies. The message is then relayed to both the executives

and employees, so that they can move forward in the same direction.

• The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee have always been supervising the Company so that it

complies with rules and regulations, and refrains from any actions in violation of governing rules and regulations. The

Board of Directors has discharge its fiduciary duties with due care and skills, in the similar manner as an ordinary

person has. All directors have already taken training courses, organized by IOD, on the roles, duties, and skills of

directors.

5.4 Board of Directors’ Meeting

• In the past year, there were 12 Board of Directors’ meetings. Performance of each director is revealed

under the section Structure of Management. In general, all directors shall attend the meeting regularly, except for

those who take a business trip abroad. If a video conference is available in the place of operations, however, they can

attend the meeting via video conference in order to take part in the corporate governance.
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• To evaluate any matters of attention, non-executive directors, such as audit committee members who are

also independent directors, normally hold meetings either in the absence of the management or with the external

auditors.

• The Company has clearly segregated the roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors from

those of the management. In case any matters are regarded by the management as being at the discretion of the

Board of Directors, the management will seek to consistently proceed as such.

• Directors are to conduct a self-assessment regularly once a year. The Company Secretary will compile

and report the results to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement and further improvement.

5.5 Performance of the President will be assessed by the Compensation Committee, so as to determine

due remunerations.

5.6 In accordance with its policy, visions, and missions regarding employees and executives, the Company

has devised a succession plan for the positions of top executives and senior executives. Potential employees are

identified and provided with skill development and training programs, in order to ensure business continuation and

achievement of objectives.

5.7 The Company has appointed a person as the Company Secretary, whose duties include giving the

Board of Directors necessary advice on legal and other regulatory issues. Apart from that, the Company Secretary is

responsible for the Board activities, compilation of directors’ self-assessment results, including coordination toward

the successful implementation of the Board’s resolutions.

5.8 Aggregation or Segregation of Positions

Chairman of the Board of Directors shall not be the President, nor have any relationship with the latter.

There is a clear segregation of the two roles according to the scope of their different authorities, which are stated in

the management policy manual. In addition, the Chairman is a non-executive director and able to express his opinions

independently, without the domination of the management.

5.9 The Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has resolved, since 22
nd
 October 1999, to appoint members of the Audit Committee,

possessing full qualifications as prescribed by the criteria of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and in consistent with

the 2009 notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission as well. Tenure of the Audit Committee members,

all being independent and non-executive directors, is fixed for a 3-year term. In 2009, the Audit Committee consists of:-

Name Position
Attendance at

Audit Committee Meeting

1. Mr. Sompop Amatayakul Chairman of Audit Committee, 6/6

and Independent Director

2. Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai Audit Committee Member, 6/6

and Independent Director

3. Miss Pakinee Prettitumrong Audit Committee Member,

and Independent Director 6/6

The 3 directors have been discharging their duties independently and continuously. In 2009, the Audit

Committee had held 6 meetings, and reported its performance to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

By the approval of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee has put its charter in writing, with clear

scope, duties and responsibilities as follows:-

1. Reviewing the Company’s internal control system to ensure that it is appropriate and efficient.

2. Participating in the selection, review, and nomination of external auditors; coordinating with the external

auditors in relation to relevant financial reports; and reviewing the Company’s financial reports to ensure accuracy,

completeness and reliability of such reports.

3. Monitoring to ensure that the Company’s compliance with regulations of official authorities and related

laws; and supervising to prevent conflicts of interest.
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4. Issuing the summary corporate governance report, which is to be duly signed by the Chairman of Audit

Committee, disclosed in the Company’s annual report, and sent to related parties.

5. Seeing to it that the management corrects any deficiencies found, as well as following up such corrective actions.

6. Following up and assessing performances on the matters the Committee regards as significant.

7. Performing any other tasks as assigned by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Profiles of the  Audit Committee’s members are exhibited on pages 8-10.

Performance of the Audit Committee in 2009 is reported on page 65.

5.10 Internal Control and Audit System

Adopting a policy promoting the importance of effective internal control system, both at managerial and

operational levels, the Company has therefore set criteria and procedures that are appropriate, clear, prudent yet

streamlined. Operational authorities are determined for each level of command, ranging from the management to

working units. Duties of operational staff are separated from those of controlling and assessing officers, thereby

securing a suitable check and balance. Besides, the Company’s has formulated a financial reporting system so as to

allow the executives to monitor the effectiveness of operations; and also an asset management system for the interest of

the Company. Opinions of the Board of Directors on the internal control system in details are disclosed on pages 49-50.

The Company has established an internal audit unit, responsible for examining the organization’s work

systems, main operations, and financial activities, in order to ensure that they are carried out efficiently according to

the stated guidelines. The unit performs its tasks as assigned by and report audit results to the Audit Committee,

under annual audit plan and special tasks as it deems necessary. In case of urgency, the unit will report directly to the

management, so that corrective actions can be taken promptly. The internal audit unit of the Company is granted

independence in reporting its audit results to the Audit Committee.

5.11 Risk Management

The Company has set up the Risk Management Committee, chaired by Mr. Thitivat Suebsaeng. Senior

executives have convened to settle on the corporate risk management policy, and also have assigned the Risk

Management Committee to devise efficient and comprehensive risk management system and procedures together with

a monitoring system that is adaptive in due response to changing situations. Details of risk factors and risk

management are addressed under the topic of Internal Control.

5.12 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board of Directors has established the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee as a

single body. The majority members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, or 66%, are independent

directors, so is its Chairman. The Committee comprises of highly experienced and qualified directors, namely:-

Name Position

1. Mr. Sompop Amatayakul Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee/

Independent Director

2. Mr. Damri Darakananda Nomination and Remuneration Committee Member

3. Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai Nomination and Remuneration Committee Member/

Independent Director

Scope of duties and responsibilities are as follows:-

1. Selecting persons qualified to be nominated as a new director.

2. Setting guidelines on nomination of the Company’s directors.

3. Considering guidelines on determination of director remunerations.

4. Fixing director remunerations by proposing the scheme to the Board of Directors’ meeting for consideration.
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In 2009, the Committee has held 2 meetings to select suitable persons to be nominated as new directors,

as well as to consider fixing remunerations for the Company’s directors and senior executives.

5.13 Independent Director

As at 2009 year-end, the Company had 5 independent directors from the total of 15 directors. They possess

qualifications as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and are knowledgeable about the Company’s

businesses. In September 2009, the Company has appointed Mr. Yanyong Tangchitkul as a new independent director

in place of Mr. Prajuab Reonchaidee who passed away in August 2009.

5.14 Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Statements is disclosed in details on page 66.

5.15 The Company has no plan to offer the executives any rights to its share subscription.

5.16 In the previous year, the Board of Directors has followed up, supervised and directed operating results

of business activities in order to achieve its objectives. With the Company’s policy on undertaking businesses with

accuracy, transparency and in conformity to governing rules and regulations; there have been no misconducts or

behavior in violation of related laws.

Control on the Use of Inside Information
The Company has steadfastly promoted a policy on code of conduct to be observed by its executives and

employees. This is based firmly on the corporate values or business ethics of “Integrity, Quality, Service.” Furthermore,

the Company has issued related regulations stipulating that the executives and employees must:-

• Not exploit their duties or other persons’ duties either for their own personal interests or for corruptedly

helping any.

• Dedicate time and effort to their duties and for the benefit of the Company.

• Perform their duties to the fullest of their knowledge and competency.

• Perform their duties with honesty and integrity.

As for measures on disciplinary penalty, the Company has imposed various degrees of punitive actions in

case there is a violation of aforementioned rules, and also included the measures in the Company’s internal regulations.

To rid of any advantages or disadvantages to external parties, the Company has prohibited insider trading

practice. The Board of Directors’ meeting has resolved to regulate that executives and directors are to avoid trading the

Company’s securities within 14 days before disclosure of periodic or quarterly financial statements, including within 24

hours after such information is disclosed. The Company Secretary is responsible for informing all of them about the

non-trading timeframe.

Personnel
As at 31

st
 December 2009, the Company had 120 employees, divided into 2 groups, i.e. Sriracha operation

group (38 employees) and Phrakanong operation group (82 employees). The total number of employees in group

companies nationwide was 10,727. Over the past 3 years, there were no material labour disputes. Since the year 2007

onwards, the Company has reorganized corporate management structure, with a policy requiring subsidiaries or

associated companies to sell their goods and services directly to the customers. The Company’s employees in relevant

charge were therefore transferred to appropriate group companies for continuation of service. As a result, the number

of its personnel has changed significantly.

In 2009, total remuneration provided to the Company’s personnel was Baht 75.8 million, which consisted of

salaries, bonuses, contributions to provident fund, and contributions to social security fund.

Also, the Company has adopted a human resources development policy, aiming at encouraging the

employees to evaluate themselves, to be creative, and to enhance their working efficiency. The Company is well aware

that the employees need to acquire knowledge, abilities, and skills according to their job descriptions, so that they are

able to develop into a higher level of work. Consequently, it has occasionally exposed the employees to knowledge

pertinent to their duties through in-house trainings and external training courses and seminars as appropriate. In

pursuit of management succession plan, the Company has arranged its middle managers to participate in the

Executive Knowledge Program by Chulalongkorn University.
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Internal Control

The Company has emphasized its internal control system as the key operational element so that its working

system and financial reporting system are practiced in compliance with rules and regulations of related agencies, with

aims to enable its executives and personnel to perform their duties with accuracy, transparency and fair treatment to

all stakeholders, and to reduce potential risks to the Company. Accordingly, the Company is able to undertake its

businesses consistently in the long run under changing situations. In 2009, the Board of Directors and the Audit

Committee had evaluated the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system, which can be summarized as

follows:-

1. The Organization and its Environment
Pursuing to build a strong basis for an effective internal control system, the Board of Directors has

monitored and set appropriate business goals as well as clear and assessable investment plans, to be used as

operating guidelines for the employees. In this regard, operational goals are set through the evaluation of all possible

projections and careful consideration by the Board of Directors before the goal setting, accompanied by analysis of

appropriate incentives or remuneration for the employees. Moreover, the organization has been structured in the

manner that facilitates efficient management performance. To achieve this, guidelines are made for practicing and

assigning the Company’s directors to oversee the operations of its subsidiaries. Management authorization and

organizational structure as approved by the Board of Directors are disclosed so as to allow the management to

communicate, coordinate and supervise the Company’s operations toward the determined goals. Domestic and

overseas investments of the Company, which clearly categorized by nature of businesses and geographical locations,

are regularly monitored. Annual goals are determined in advance, including monthly performance evaluations in which

the Audit Committee takes part on a regular basis, while operational plans are to be reviewed at least once a year.

In relation to employee performance, a timeframe for each assignment completion is specified apart from usual

assessment as planned. The Company has also prescribed the business code of ethics and regulations prohibiting any

actions by its management and employees that may be conflicts of interest against the corporate businesses,

including punishments for any violation thereof. These policies are put in writing in the Executives and Employees’

Manual under “Disciplines and Disciplinary Actions” Section, and in the regulations on confidentiality. The Company is

strictly committed to the value of business undertaking based on the philosophy of pursuing Integrity, Quality, and

Service for related stakeholders. With respect to its financial transactions, purchasing and general administration, the

Company has established a policy for flexible management approaches. Nonetheless, its working procedures and steps

are made cautious in written form to prevent dishonest practices. In making policies and working plans, the Company

takes into serious consideration the fairness to its business partners, customers and all stakeholders, together with the

long-term benefits of the organization and its investors.

2. Risk Management
The Risk Management Committee is assigned to assess risk-inducing circumstances, which can come from

internal and external factors, by evaluating the changing market, economic, social and technological conditions,

including political situations and currency exchange fluctuations. In this regard, the Company has classified types of

risk into business risk, operational risk, financial risk, and external risk, each of which is analyzed by means of

respective nature, possibilities of occurrence, and potential impacts on the organization. The Company has prioritized

these risk factors according to their significance to the Company, and thus issues proper measures to minimize such

risks to an appropriate level. Subsequently, the Company has followed up and reviewed the assessment results, as well

as updated the data occasionally in order to develop across-the-board policies and supervision and to allow related

working parties to perform further stages of their tasks. For example, when an assessment of risks indicates possible

unsuccessful returns in the future, corrective measures are then to be taken. Besides, an internal communication

system has been established so that related employees can be notified and thus comply with the risk-mitigating

measures. Managing directors of each business unit shall report the results of actions periodically, to ensure that each

unit has observed the prescribed measures or plans. In addition, the Board has assigned a Vice Chairmen to take care

of the monitoring and evaluation of the Company’s transactions in each business line.
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3. Operational Control of the Executives
The Company has clearly determined, in writing, the scope of duties and credit approval authorities for the

management in different levels. To allow mutual auditability, responsibilities are divided into three separate areas,

namely responsibility for approval, responsibility for account and information recording, and responsibility for custody

and retention of assets.  In case the Company has any business transactions with major shareholders, directors,

executives, or any other persons related to aforesaid parties, all of them will be regarded as related transactions under

normal business practice and general commercial terms, and be treated just as those with the third parties. Approval

of related transactions takes into account the maximum benefits of the Company and made by persons having no

personal interests therein. The Company has duly complied with the criteria on connected transactions prescribed by

the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) and the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), and has disclosed the

information via the SET’s news system and/or in the Notes to the Financial Statement. In case of transactions with

connected persons, such as major shareholders or the executives, the Company has already prescribed, in the

Executives’ Manual, measures that cover possibilities that the parties involved may exploit the Company’s opportunity

or benefit for their own personal gains. In case the Company has approved transactions with related parties in the

manner which is binding the Company in the long term, such as sale/purchase of products or guarantee, monitoring

is made to ensure compliance with the agreed terms throughout the binding period. In case of investments in

subsidiaries or associated companies, the Company shall regularly follow up operating results of the subsidiaries or

associated companies regularly, as well as determine the directions for the persons appointed by the Company as

directors or executive of such companies. Moreover, the Company has measures and policies to supervise its business

operations in accordance with all relating laws in order to reduce its business execution risks and to establish good

corporate governance of the Company.

4. Information System and Communication
Well aware that decision making must be based on accurate and sufficient information, the Company

has attached great importance on information system and communication. Therefore, crucial information shall be

adequately submitted to the Board of Directors for consideration and decision-making. The directors shall receive

notice of a meeting or necessary and sufficient supporting documents for at least 7 days before the meeting. Minutes

of the Board of Directors’ meeting shall include proper details, such as proposed matters, inquiries, opinions or

remarks of the directors, either in agreement or disagreement, together with reasons (if any). All documents relevant to

account records are kept and filed under appropriate categories. The Company has never been notified by the external

auditors of any deficiency in this case. As for the accounting policy, the Board of Directors has considered that the

management has conformed to the generally-accepted accounting standards and implemented the policy suitable to

the nature of the Company’s businesses, so as to reflect the actual operating results, with complete and accurate

material contents. The practice is in consistent with the Accounting Act B.E.2543.

5. Follow-up Systems
For effective and efficient operations, the Company has set business goals and reviewed whether the

operating results by the management are achieved according to these goals. If the results differ from the goals, the

Company has taken corrective actions, case by case, within an appropriate timeframe. In case of failure to pursue

corrections due to insoluble environments or limitations, the Board of Directors will make recommendations for

adjustments. In addition, the Company arranges regular audits of the compliance with its prescribed internal control

system, the results of which will be reported directly to the Audit Committee, so that the internal auditors can

discharge their duties independently and present the reports forthrightly. In case any material deficiencies are found, it

is required that such incidents be reported promptly to the Audit Committee for rectifications within a reasonable

period. In case of fraud, suspected fraud, violation of laws, or any other irregular practice which may significantly

impairs the Company’s reputation and financial status, the management is to report progress of respective rectifications

to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. In case the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors are

of different opinions, these matters shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. However, such circumstance has

never occurred. Report on Corporate Governance of the Audit Committee is disclosed on page 65 of this annual report.
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Management Explanation and Analysis
...................................................................................................................................................................

1. Performance on the Business Plan
Concerning business investment plan in the energy business in Thailand, the Company has invested Baht

732.5 million, or proportionally to 10% of the registered capital, in the Ratchaburi Power Company Limited with production

capacity of 1,400 Megawatts. In 2009, it has completed a full year of the commercial business with totally paid up

registered investment capital. Accumulated profit in 2009 will be paid as dividend to shareholders from 2010 onwards.

On the foreign investment business, in 2009 the Company invested with 40% shareholding in Taixing Union

Zond Chemicals Co., Ltd., manufacturing the Phthalic Anhydride & Fumaric Acid and other related products which

operated according to plan. Moreover, in 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries started a new real estate investment

project in the People’s Republic of China amounted to Baht 677 million, or proportionally to 49% investment. This

project, at present, is under approval processes on design, and construction permit and other related items.

2. Operating Result
Overview of the Operating Results

In 2009, operating results specified only for the Company, calculated by the cost method, a net profit of

Baht 774.67 million, an increase of Baht 494.78 million or 176.78%, comparing to 2008 which had a net profit of

Baht 279.89 million. However, the net profit only for the Company part as in the separate financial statements, were

not equal to the net profit in the consolidated financial statements as changes in the new accounting standard

required to show net profit, calculated using the cost method in separate financial statements while the consolidated

financial statements had to be calculated under the equity method. Hence, the Company and its subsidiaries’ operating

results in the consolidated financial statements for fiscal year 2009 amounted to Baht 982.26 million, an increase of

Baht 700.78 million, or 248.97% comparing to 2008 which showed net profit of Baht 281.48 million. Main reasons on

changes in the operating results on the consolidated financial statements resulted from important factors as follows:

2.1 Policy of the Foreign Government Agencies

On the energy business investment in power generation in the People’s Republic of China which was

considered as a consumer business, the electricity cost was under control by the Chinese Government’s agency, even

though the policy on the electricity cost was relaxed by comparing with cost on raw material. In 2008, the cost of coal

which was the main cost of raw material had continuously risen while the calculated electricity cost had to be given

prior approval before adjustment. Hence, price increments were not in line with rising raw material cost which resulted

in negligible operating profit and negative impact on the share of profit recognition under the equity method. However,

on the contrary, in 2009 the raw material cost of coal decreased with world market price, thus, resulted in good

operating profit and resulted in increased share of profit recognition under the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements when comparing with results in 2008.

2.2 Recovery from Global Economic Recession

During 2008, most business sectors were affected from the impact of sub-prime financial crisis in the USA,

and the world wide investment market prices decreased drastically. The Company had reported that there were

recordings of unrealized loss by adjusting the foreign investment costs in the financial fiscal year 2008 amounted to

Baht 327.26 million. However, with economic recovery in 2009, and price increased in the investment markets, the

financial statements in the fiscal year 2009 recorded the unrealized profit by adjusting the investment cost of Baht

250.18 million, and recorded increase revenue of Baht 577.45 million.

2.3 Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

In 2009, the Thai currency’s exchange rate was stronger when comparing to other currencies, especially with

the US dollar which was the main export currency. Thus, the received Baht currency from export reduced in value and

resulted in reduced sales income.

2.4 Marketing and Competition

Under present economic situation, competition has increasingly become very competitive with supply more

than demand, and thus price cannot be increase due to market mechanism, or minimum price can be increase which
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is not correspondence to the increased cost price. Under the free trade system, investments have been relocated to

places where labor and other manufacturing cost are cheaper; hence, price of products from these places will be

cheaper than in Thailand and price reduction will be demanded from trade partners eventually. In order to be

competitive in the industry, the affiliated companies have to develop their production efficiencies to reduce cost but

only to certain extend as product quality has to be maintain as well.

3. Operating Results of the Business Group
3.1 Income from Sales and Services

In 2009 income from sales and services amounted to Baht 8,617.56 million, a decrease of Baht 3,591.05

million, comparing to Baht 12,208.62 million in 2008. Main reasons for drastically reduced sales in 2009 were from

impacts of global economic recession from the sub-prime problems in the USA which was not recovered, and

decreased purchasing orders from local and foreign customers. Products that received high impact were the textile

business in Thailand and the People’s Republic of China, plastic products that received impact from the automobile

industry and electronic parts industry from slowdown in new computer orders. However, purchasing orders increased

in the 4
th
 quarter but were not proportional to the reduced orders earlier on, and resulted in decreased income of sales

and services in 2009 above 2008. Moreover, an affiliated company, Union Tex-East Co., Ltd., having sales income

included in the Company’s sales figures in the fiscal year 2008 but abandon its affiliated company’s status in 2009

because of its reduced an investment with the Company, hence, its sales and services income was not included in the

consolidated financial statements.

3.2 Other Incomes

Apart from the sales and services income above, other incomes came from business investments. In 2009,

other incomes amounted to Baht 717.57 million, a decrease of Baht 214.59 million, comparing to 2008 figure of Baht

932.26 million or a decrease of 0.60%. The main reasons were;

3.2.1 Increase in dividend payments of Baht 35.68 million mainly from dividend increased in financial investments.

3.2.2 In 2008, the Company had gains from distribution of investments at Baht 281.63 million from an

educational business in the People’s Republic of China, but in 2009 there was no profit, thus, reducing revenue of

other incomes.

3.2.3 The Company made decrease profit from sales of fixed assets of Baht 70.45 million as in 2008 the

subsidiaries had sold some unnecessary assets in the textile business. As for the footwear business which had

stopped its operation, its unused assets were mainly sold in 2008 and had few assets left for sales, thus ,income from

this part was reduced from 2008.

3.2.4 The Company had record of unrealized profit from investment value’s adjustment in 2009 amounted

to Baht 250.18 million while there was no profit in 2008 but there were items of record of unrealized loss from

investment value’s adjustment instead. This was due from the accounting standard that investment cost had to be

adjusted to the market value as of the end of  fiscal year.

3.2.5 Other incomes reduced to Baht 124.92 million because in 2008 there were some adjustments on

reverted items on employee’s compensation in accordance with the law and the Company’s regulation as calculated

from the reducing number of employee into other incomes. In the year 2009, there was no such item.

3.2.6 Interest incomes was decreased to Baht 23.63 million, as in the year 2009 our foreign subsidiary

companies invested most of their deposit incomes, thus, generated less interest, while in 2008 other incomes came

from these interests.

3.3 Cost and Selling and Administrative Expense

In 2009 the Company and its subsidiaries had cost of sales amounted to Baht 7,135.69 million, a decrease

of Baht 3,600.08 million, comparing to 2008 which had cost of sales amounted to Baht 10,735.77 million. The

decreased cost of sales was in proportional to decreased sales, while cost of sales was decreased in a more proportion

to the decreased sales.
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In 2009, the selling and administrative expenses amounted to Baht 1,029.48 million, a decrease of Baht

252.75 million, comparing to Baht 1,282.23 million in 2008. Selling expenses was decreased by Baht 119.80 million

from reduced sales orders, and manufacturers in the subsidiaries additionally distribute their own products in

accordance with the changed distribution channel policy as previously mentioned. Thus, selling expenses, such as

exporting cost, transporting cost, and selling commission had also been reduced. The administrative expenses was

decreased Baht 132.95 million from reducing expenses in the textile group. In 2008, Baht 30 million was spent on

employee’s termination compensation from downsizing the productions and transferring of the dying operation to the

joint venture company, and included provision on obsolete inventory in the textile group with clearance sales of about

Baht 20 million, and also there were items with reduced amortization from fixed assets which already amortized about

Baht 46 million. Moreover, in 2008 the financial statement of Danyang-Union also included in the consolidated

financial statements, thus, administrative expenses of about Baht 15 million were included, but in 2009 it was not

included as this investment had been sold.

3.4 Profit

In 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries generated gross profit of Baht 1,481.87 million, an increase of

Baht 9.02 million or 17.20%, when comparing to gross profit in 2008 of Baht 1,472.85 million, or 12.06%. The

increase in gross profit with reduced sales indicated that cost of sales was reduced more than the sales figure.

On the operating profit, the Company and its subsidiaries had the operating profit calculated under the

equity method at 15.38%, an increase of 10.62% comparing to figure in 2008 of 4.76%. The main reason was from

the increment in realized profit sharing from investments in the joint venture companies at Baht 658.14 million mostly

from power plant business in the People’s Republic of China which generated more profit in 2009 than in 2008 due

to the decrease in price of coal in the market which was the main raw material.

Additionally, in 2009 there were items on unrealized profit from investment value adjustment of Baht 250.18

million as per the accounting standard that investment value had to be adjusted equal to market price as of the

financial fiscal year. However, in 2008 similar situation had arisen in which the unrealized loss from investment value

adjustment was Baht 327.26 million, thus, differences of Baht 577.45 million occurred. In accordance with the

standard accounting method, to be precise, the investment value had to be adjusted in which item on allowance for

impairment on investment of Value Creation Inc. (VCI) was amounted to Baht 328 million. As the Company had joint

venture investment with VCI, its financial statements were affected from its subsidiary which was under the Canadian

judicial process for rehabilitation. However, this subsidiary was still under negotiation with new investors to solve the

situation and result is expected to be known within  the 2
nd
 quarter of 2010, and, if according to plan, the business

and financial situations of this subsidiary will be solved.

The proportion of net profit to total income in 2009 was 12.23%, an increase of 9.39% comparing to 2.84%

in 2008. This was the result of increase in operating profit stated above, and deducted with financial expenses of

0.99% which increased to a proportion of 0.09% and corporate income tax of 2.16% which increased to a proportion

of 1.14% as indicated by increased profit. When calculating dividend on net profit of minority shareholders of the

subsidiaries which was proportionally to net profit per total income of 1.70%, the remaining net profit for the

Company’s shareholders in 2009 was 10.52% comparing to total income.

The shareholders’ rate of returns in 2009 was 7.35% while in 2008 was at 2.10%, an increase of 5.25%

which was due to an increase in operating profit in 2009 as stated above. The main reason was from an increase profit

from increasing operation of power plants in the People’s Republic of China as market price of coal, the main raw

material, decreased and resulted in increase in net profit in 2009.

According to the consolidated financial statements, in 2009, the Company had net profit of Baht 982.26

million, comparing to the operating net cash of Baht 714.94 million. The operating net cash was less than net profit

amounted to Baht 267.32 million because prior to the end of fiscal year, the subsidiaries had excess liquidity and

made loan payments to the trust receipts prior to the due date. This caused a reduction in account payable amounted

to Baht 454.88 million and other current and non-current liabilities reduced to Baht 34.48 million. For the operating

assets, the net cash flow from account receivables reduced to Baht 208.46 million, while inventory reduced to Baht

65.18 million but other current and non-current assets increased to Baht 69.91 million which caused the operating net
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cash flow to reduce to the same amount. Hence, the operating net cash flow increased to Baht 714.94 million, or

equivalent to 0.73 time of net profit which indicated good operational liquidity.

3.5 Rate of Returns to Shareholders

In 2009, in accordance with the accounting standard calculating under the equity method which stipulated

the recognition of profit (loss) sharing from subsidiaries and joint venture companies, the Company’s net profit was

Baht 982.26 million, and earning per share was Baht 3.39 (calculated by using the weighted average of ordinary shares

by deduction from the Company’s shares holding by the subsidiaries), or the average rate of returns to shareholders’

equity was at 7.35% which was more than interest rate from fixed deposit at financial institutions.

In 2009, the Company’s net profit, calculated using the cost method, at Baht 774.67 million or earning per

share of Baht 2.58, an increase from 2008 which had net profit amounted to Baht 279.89 million or earning per share

of Baht 0.93. The net profit, calculated by the cost method, was Baht 494.78 million more than figure in 2008 because

in 2009 the Company received dividend payment amounted to Baht 852.10 million which was more than receiving in

2008 amounted to Baht 547.89 million due to increase investment value. Moreover, the Company had the policy to

pay dividend not less than one third of net profit, calculated by the cost method, with considerations on liquidity and

the necessity on spending by the Company. However, the rate of dividend payment to shareholders was constantly

considered for suitable rate, in which the Company’s Board of Directors had considered and proposed to the

shareholders meeting on March 18, 2010 for approval to pay dividend to shareholders at the rate of Baht 1.50 per

share, or equivalent to 58.14% of the net profit as calculated by the cost method.

Records on the Company’s dividend payments comparing to the earning  per share, by using the equity and

cost method are as follows:

Year Rate of Dividend Earning per Share

Payment per Share Equity Method Cost Method

2008 1.00 0.97 0.93

2007 1.25 1.90 0.92

2006 1.25 4.14 1.62

2005 1.25 2.95 1.85

2004 1.25 1.46 2.14

4. Financial Status
Changes in the financial status for the Company and its subsidiaries as per the consolidated financial

statements were summarized as follows:

4.1 Assets

As of December 31, 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries had total assets of Baht 18,909.93 million, a

decrease of Baht 650.40 million or 3.33% when comparing with 2008 which amounted to Baht 19,560.33 million.

Important changes could be summarized as follows:

4.1.1  Components of Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2009, comparing in proportional to the total assets some important figures were

as follows; the current assets were at 28.65%, investments were at 49.63%,the net property, plants, and equipments

were at 17.40%, and other assets were at 4.32%. When comparing in proportion to the component of assets in 2008,

significant changes were as follows: the current assets decreased Baht 668.32 million or by 2.46% due to the decrease

in cash equivalent of Baht 567.02 million, net temporary investment increased Baht 339.72 million as the foreign

subsidiaries transferred their deposits from financial institutions to other foreign institutions with better business

foundations, account receivables decreased Baht 227.67 million mostly from the textile, plastic and rubber business

which showed lower sales thus less account receivables, and at the same time it corresponded with lower inventory of

Baht 125.34 million. Moreover, in 2009, there was no item on the non-current assets for pending investment but in

2008 it showed this item on investment in Dangyang-Union in the People’s Republic of China waiting for payment
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prior to transferring the amount of Baht 121.65 million. Hence, the current assets on this part in 2009 were lesser than

in 2008 from the same amount of money.

Moreover, the non-current assets decreased by Baht 17.92 million, or 0.07% from the decreasing of

account receivables amounted to Baht 116.60 million from early payments. Investments in the joint venture

companies increased by Baht 692.86 million, in 2009 from additional investment in a real estate project called Jiashan

Development in the People’s Republic of China which amounted to Baht 677 million in Thai currency. There was also

increase in investment by proportionally increase in shareholding in the power plant called Shangyu-Union Cogenera-

tion amounted to Baht 265 million. Some of the joint ventures companies had reduced their investments due to

business termination such as Sport Ace Co., Ltd., and some investment shares had been sold as information was

already given to the Stock Exchange of Thailand such as Venus Button Co., Ltd.(VB), and Union Rubber Plas Co. Ltd.,

(UR), The selling method was set up according to the net assets value of each company in which the selling price for

VB was Baht 11.1 million, and selling price for UR was Baht 15.72 million. The net investments in other companies

decreased by Baht 333.83 million, from allowance for impairment on investment in the Value Creation Inc., as already

indicated in topic on profit, thus, resulted in differences in total investment from 46.13% to 49.63%. Moreover, items

on property, plants, and equipments decreased by Baht 270.64 million, or 0.81% from selling of damaged and unused

plants, and unused or malfunction machines and other equipments in the Bangpakong. There was also items on the

withholding tax return waiting to be paid from the Revenue Department amounted to Baht 69.75 million, or an

increase of 0.4%.

Assets, apart from the mentioned above, had no significant changes.

4.1.2  Assets Quality

As of December 31, 2009, the net balance of trade accounts receivable and notes receivable amounted

to Baht 1,475.72 million, a decrease from last year of Baht 227.76 million which amounted to Baht 1,703.49 million

due to decreased business transactions, thus, lesser amount of accounts receivable. Most of the outstanding accounts

receivable were not overdue, and the average collection period in 2009 was 68 days which was close to the due date

given. However, the Company estimated collections from accounts receivable with over 1 year due date to about Baht

28.7 million, with allowance for doubtful accounts to about Baht 33.83 million, or 1.94% of total accounts receivable.

The Company and its subsidiaries believed that the allowance for doubtful accounts would be appropriate enough for

present situation.

The net of inventory, as of December 31, 2009, was Baht 1,168.70 million, or 6.18% of total inventory,

a decrease of Baht 125.34 million comparing to Baht 1,294.04 million in 2008, as sales transactions decreased and

the Company required only sufficient inventory for sales. The Company and its subsidiaries had the policy to establish

the internal control system on constantly inventory checking with report on inventory aging for further actions. At the

end of fiscal year 2009, records on allowance for impairment for defective or obsolete inventory amounted to Baht

13.2 million, which made total value of obsolete inventory to Baht 81.19 million, or 6.49% of total inventory. The

Company and its subsidiaries estimated that this value would be appropriate enough.

Net investments of the Company and its subsidiaries, as of December 31, 2009, amounted to Baht

9,383.99 million or 49.63% of the total assets, which indicated an increase of Baht 359.03 million comparing to figure

in 2008. This was due from items on transactions of increasing or decreasing investments during 2009 as mentioned

in the section “Components of Assets”. Details of the domestic and overseas investments of the Company were

shown with investment names, and other related information as shown in the “Note to Financial Statements” clauses

10, 11, and 12 which showed details of changes in investments in 2009. The Company regularly evaluated

investments quality as well as recorded allowance for impairment on investments when there was any uncertainty on

the investments’ quality. Then, the Company believed that the amount shown in financial statements was in appropriate

quantity.

4.2 Liquidity

4.2.1  Cash Flow Statements

At the end of fiscal year on December 31, 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries generated cash flow

from operating activities amounted to Baht 714.94 million; in which Baht 90.27 million was spent on investment

activities, Baht 994.14 million on financing activities, and decrease in translation adjustments of foreign currency at
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Baht 197.49 million, hence, total net cash and cash equivalents decreased by Baht 567.02 million. Summarization on

cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year at Baht 1,940.43 million, the remaining cash and cash equivalents at

the end of 2009 was Baht 1,373.41 million.

In 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries generated operating activities cash flow amounted to Baht

714.94 million which was Baht 720.44 million less than the operating profits amounted of Baht 1,453.38 million. Main

reasons were that excess cash flow was spent on accounts payable before due date amounted to Baht 455 million,

with interest payments of Baht 86 million, and payment for corporate income tax of Baht 174.8 million so that cash

flow on hand would be left sufficient enough for current investments.

The Company invested Baht 90.27 million in investment activities as during the fiscal year 2009, in

buying and selling land, property, and equipments and had more in net cash paid of Baht 81 million. The Company

had cash received from dividend of Baht 446.12 million; cash received from interest Baht 29.49 million, and received

commission from financial investments in 2009 and payments from share purchasing from the overdue accounts

receivable totaled Baht 558.51 million. Moreover, additional payments were made from foreign investments which

were investments in the real estate business, shareholding increased in the power plant totaled Baht 958.06 million,

and also additional payments for foreign non-current investment of Baht 96.48 million. These enabled the net cash

flows from (used in) investing activities amounted to Baht 90.27 million.

On financing activities, the Company and its subsidiaries made dividend payment to shareholders

amounted to Baht 396.28 million, and received additional deposits from related companies amounted to Baht 155.64

million. On the parts of borrowing and loan payments for short and long term loans, the amount of loan payment was

more than loan received at Baht 705.18 million, also with payment for liabilities under finance lease agreements at

Baht 45.2 million which could be summarized that the net cash flow used in financing activities was Baht 994.19

million.

Combining above 3 activities, the cash flow spent was Baht 369.52 million, and together with item a

decrease in translation adjustments of Baht 197.49 million (resulting from foreign exchange rate fluctuations in the

financial statements of 2009 and 2008), and in addition with cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

amounted to Baht 1,940.43 million, hence, the Company and its subsidiaries had cash and cash equivalents at the end

of 2009 amounted to Baht 1,373.41 million.

4.2.2  Significant Liquidity Ratio

At the end of fiscal year 2009, the Company had the current assets ratio to the current liabilities of 2.25:

1, and the quick liquidity ratio to current liabilities of 1.77: 1, which showed the ability to change liquid assets into

cash in order to fully pay for current liabilities, with surplus liquidity of 0.77 time. Hence, it showed that the Company

and its subsidiaries were in a good and healthy liquidity state.

On the accounts receivable and accounts payable, the Company and its subsidiaries had the average

debt collection of 68 days which was close to the credit term given. For the cash cycle, from payment on raw material

to the product sold date until receiving payment, was 43 days which had more days than in 2008 of 30 days. Hence,

the Company and its subsidiaries had cash cycle of approximately 8.4 cash cycles in 1 year.

In the fiscal year 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries had the operating profit ratio to total incomes

ratio of 15.38% which was higher than last year of 4.66%. This was from profit sharing from operations of power

plant in the People’s Republic of China in 2009 which was proportionally calculated to perform better than in 2008 as

specified in details in topic “Profit”.

For the policy on financial structure, the debt to equity ratio was 0.31: 1 time, which was close to last

year figure of 0.38: 1 time. This indicated that financial structure from the financial source of creditor was very low

comparing to source from shareholders. Hence, financial source from creditor was still abundant as the liability was

still low.

Moreover, the interest coverage ratio was at 11.33 time which indicated the Company and its

subsidiaries’ ability to pay interest to creditors from sufficient cash flow.

The rate of returns to shareholders’ equity was 7.35%, which was higher than fixed deposit rate with

financial institutions. Considering dividend which expected to be paid to shareholders at Baht 1.50 per share, or
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58.14% of net profit calculated from the cost method and in accordance with the Company’s policy on rate of

dividend payment of not less than one third of net profit, calculated from the cost method.

4.2.3  Short-Term Liabilities Repayment Period which affected the Company’s Liquidities

The Company and its subsidiaries had the short-term loans amounted to Baht 156.61 million; some

long-term loans payable within I year amounted to Baht 454.43 million; the liabilities under finance lease agreements,

payable within 1 year, amounted to Baht 45.19 million; accrued expenses of Baht 354.99 million; corporate income tax

payable of Baht 84.43 million, and other current liabilities of Baht 192.78 million which totaled Baht 1,288.43 million.

These were possibly payable within I year but when considering the liquid assets, cash and cash equivalents together

with the net temporary investment which could be immediately used at Baht 2,411.52 million, or 187.17% of these

short term loans, this indicated that the Company had sufficient liquidity to pay short term loan payable within 1 year,

and also some excess liquidity of 87.17%. Hence, the Company had very appropriate short term loans.

Moreover, on the part of commercial creditors such as trust receipts, and accounts payable which

amounted to Baht 684.04 million, the Company had its L/C, and T/T debtors totaled Baht 1,457.72 million which

could be collected as per due date for complete payments to commercial creditors, and T/R .

Hence, timing on the financial amount and duration on loans and loan payments of the short term loans

was appropriate and harmonious.

4.3 Capital Expenditure

In the fiscal year 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries’ capital expenditures were divided into domestic

and foreign business as follows:

On domestic business, there were additional investments in property, plants, and equipments in the plastic,

rubber, and metal business approximately Baht 42 million to conform to production expansions for products such as

Stainless Steel Vacuum Bottles, rubber plantation, etc.

On foreign business, there were investments in the real estate business due to be started with Jiashan-Union

Development Co., Ltd., about Baht 680 million, and completed payment on proportional share increased in the power

plant, Shangyu-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd., about Baht 265 million.

4.4 Sources of Capital

4.4.1  Capital Structure of the Company

As of December 31, 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries’ consolidated financial statements showed

total liabilities of Baht 4,120.49 million, the shareholders’ equity of only from the Company showed Baht 13,482.05

million, and debt to equity ratio of 0.31:1 time. Hence, source of capital from liabilities was very low comparing to total

capital when comparing to other businesses in the industry which had ratio about 1.5 or 2:1 time, and indicated the

Company had low liquidities, and debtors would encounter low risk on debt payments. In future, if the Company

requires arranging for additional financial loans on business expansion, the debt to equity ratio may be extended

within the appropriate financial structure and with low risk.

4.4.2  Liabilities

The Company and its subsidiaries’ liabilities divided into current liabilities of Baht 2,403.43 million, and

non-current liabilities of Baht 1,717.06 million, with total liabilities amounted to Baht 4,120.49 million.

Current liabilities divided into the accounts payable which amounted to Baht 684.03 million with

payments on the specified due dates which were in accordance with payments from accounts receivable under normal

business operations. Moreover, the short-term liabilities which were long term loans with payment due date within 1

year amounted to Baht 454.43 million, while the short term liabilities with payment due date within 1 year amounted

to Baht 201.80 million. There were also other current liabilities of Baht 888.32 million together with the suspend

account on deposits received from sales of land and improvement which would be transferred as income later on

amounted to Baht 174.8 million. As ratio of the short-term liabilities to total liabilities was 58.33%, the Company’s

ratio of quick liquidities to the current liabilities was at 1.77:1 time which indicated sufficient liquidity to pay for

liabilities as scheduled.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had long-term loans payable within 1 year at Baht 1,158.42

million with reference interest rate with MLR and loan payment period between 2007 and 2015. The Company had no
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guarantee against these debts, however; under the loan agreement it contained certain financial procedures and

conditions such as total debt to equity ratio, and restrictions on disposal and transfer of assets which were significant

to the Company’s operations.

The interest coverage ratio in 2009, and debt payable within 1 year, was 11.33 time, hence, the Company

was confident in its liquidity management to pay for loans and interests within each specific due dates.

4.4.3  Shareholders’ Equity

According to the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2009, the Company had

shareholders’ equity amounted to Baht 13,482.05 million, an increase of Baht 229.41 million comparing to the

amount of Baht 13,252.65 million in 2008. Reasons for changes were as follows:

• For the operating result, net profit increased Baht 982.26 million; and from shareholders’ meeting

resolution during the year, profit was allocated for dividend payment amounted to Baht 300 million which caused

shareholders’ equity to increase by Baht 982.26 million and decrease by Baht 300 million respectively.

• For the non-actual operating result, i.e. the recognition of unrealized losses from valuation of stock

prices for the whole year was Baht 262.78 million which increased shareholders’ equity to Baht 262.78 million. There

was also a record on differences between the investment costs in UTC 2008 in which the Company purchased from

minority shareholders by offering to buy shares as specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission’s

regulations. The purchase price was higher than book value totaled Baht 28.02 million, and caused shareholders’

equity to decrease by Baht 28.02 million. Additionally, differences from foreign exchange conversions in the financial

statements resulted in the reduction of shareholders’ equity of Baht 697.63 million. Final summarization from positive

figure earlier in the year of Baht 505.4 million, differences in the financial statements at the end of fiscal year was at

Baht 192.23 million.

Moreover, items on transactions on improvement of accrued dividends payable to subsidiaries, which had

shareholding in the Company showed the figure of Baht 10.02 million.

Hence, the shareholders’ equity increased by Baht 229.41 million.

4.5 Main Factors and Influences which may affect the operations and financial status in the future

As investment is the main core business of the Company, at present, main incomes will be dividends from

the invested companies which can be categorized into domestic and foreign investment, and important investments

are as follows:

a) The megaproject in Thailand: The Company invests in the Ratchaburi Power Co., Ltd., which produces

electricity for the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand with production capacity at 1,400 megawatt, with 10%

investment share or Baht 732.50 million, and at present, the power plant is in full operation. The Company will be able

to pay dividend to shareholders from 2010 onwards, and if all are in accordance to plan throughout the project

duration, the annual dividend payment will be part of the main income.

b) Projects in the People’s Republic of China: Most investments are in the energy business as in the past

years it has shown that coal prices are the major factor that influences operational profit in the power plant business.

During the past years, coal prices decreased in accordance with the world oil prices which resulted in better profits for

the power plants, and better dividend for the Company and shareholders as well. However, coal prices will be

controlled by the market price which is an external factor that cannot be controlled.

In order to reduce risk factor for better dividend in the future, the Company will make reduction in

investment for projects that do not generate suitable rate of returns, and invests in a new project. In 2009, the

Company had already taken action by investing in the real estate business in the People’s Republic of China which

was in the early stage of the project on obtaining permission for further operations.

5. Auditor’s Remuneration
In the fiscal year 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries paid remuneration to the Auditor as shown

on page 133.
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Risk Factors
.................................................................

The Board of Directors and Executives have considered corporate strategies and action plans in order to

achieve its goals, generate appropriate rate of returns on investments, and the ability to pay dividend or added value

to shareholders. As there are various risk factors involved under the above plans, the Company evaluates these risks by

considering from internal and external factors. The characteristic type of risks can be observed as business risk,

operational risk, financial risk, and risk from external events which may have significant impacts on the Company. Risk

evaluation on each type will be considered from the level of impact, and chance that it may occur as well as analyze

on impact towards the Company. Operational measures are stipulated in order to reduce risks to an acceptable level for

the organization, or completely eliminate all risks. Then, measures and policy on risk management have been

announced to Executives, and operational staffs to acknowledge clear objectives and operate in the same direction in

achieving the corporate goals.

Main factors that have significant impacts towards the Company can be categorized as follows:

Business Risk means risk from under-achieved returns from investment

The Company‘s main type of business is domestic and foreign investments which may be exposed to risk

from returns on investments, or dividends received are not as planned which have impact on lower profit. The

Company estimates that the chance and impact in this case are moderate as the Company has management measures

in follow up and closely monitor on operating results and returns from investments. For example, in 2009, the

Company had considered investment in its subsidiaries called Union Kotec Molds Co.,Ltd., which is principally

engaged in the manufacture and repair of molds, received impacts from economic crisis with foreign Non Performance

Loan, and suffered continuous operating losses. The Board of Directors considered risk from returns on investment

and estimated a very unlikely chance in receiving any returns in the future, thus, the company passed a resolutions to

dissolve and it is currently in the process of registering the dissolution with the Ministry of Commerce.

Operational Risk has significant factors as follows:

• Risk from damages and mismanagement in the invested business

As already mentioned that the Company’s main business is investment, and if any of the invested

companies has mismanagement, the business may suffer. The Company estimates that chance and impact for this to

happen is medium. This is because the Company has spread its investments into various businesses with protecting

measures for damages by assigning the invested companies to evaluate their risks and having their own evaluation

and internal control, and also emphasizing on the physical check system as well. The Company also has its audit

system, and system that evaluates on internal control of the invested companies.

• Risk from relying on production order only from  a few major customers

Products in the Company’s group only rely on production orders from a major customer which produces

electronic parts from Hitachi Global Storage Technologies (Thailand) Ltd. Hence, losing this customer will have a huge

impact to the Company. In order to protect from this risk, the Company emphasizes on controlling product quality

using research team, and checking on the product quality to improve production efficiency so that the required

standard can be achieved. Moreover, improvements on its management have been made to reduce cost, and hence

competitive pricing, and with on-time product delivery as well as good and long lasting relationship with customer.

Financial Risk : Risk from currency exchange loss in the Group

The Company has analyzed that chance and impact for this to happen is high. During the past year, the

exchange rates were fluctuated and the Baht continued to appreciate, and the Company’s business groups had large

export business transactions. Then, the Company has established measures by assigning people to be responsible in
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follow up on the situations and manage the exchange rates, report and discuss with high level Executives for

immediate actions. In normal case, the Company will protect this risk by using the natural hedge, and considering

buying or entering the hedging contract, such as the forward contract depending on each situation. Moreover,

experienced experts on this subject have been invited to provide knowledge to related Executives occasionally to

emphasize on its importance by supplying knowledge and data for effective management skill.

External Risk : This is not under the Company’s control, such as:

• The increases in oil and energy prices in the world market create risk from increasing raw material prices

while at the same time, selling prices of products in the market cannot be adjusted in proportional to the raw

materials’s price increases, thus, results in decrease of profit. The Company has analyzed that chance and impact for

this to happen is high. The Company has policy in reducing this risk by assigning knowledgeable, competent, and

experienced Executives to be responsible in follow up, designing the purchasing strategy, and adjusting working

procedure to suit the continuously changing situations, and to be in line with suitable quantity and timing. Moreover,

as the energy price increases the Company’s administrative expenses may increase, the Company has to introduce

energy saving measures, and make improvements on related equipments to reduce the energy cost.

During the latter part of 2008 to middle of 2009, the energy business, namely oil, that the Company

invested in Canada received impact from oil price fluctuations which was drastically reduced before. The investment

process and fund raising plan in the Company business was not according to plan, and in late 2009 the situation was

still uncertain. In this situation, the Company had fully recorded the allowance for impairment of investment in the

2009 financial statements; nevertheless, the problem had been solved by obtaining new shareholder. Hence, on March

12, 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors had its resolution to negotiate with new shareholder, and to proceed for

further actions so that business and financial situation would be solved in 2010.

Interest Rates Risk

As parts of the group companies’ financial resources are obtained from loans, the financial cost burden

depends on interest from loan which is not under control. Increases of interest rates will definitely result in increases

of financial cost. During the fiscal year 2009, interest rates were low, thus, creating low risk and little impact at present.

However, the Company has policy in protecting this risk by adjusting the suitable ratio of loan debts and fund capital

so that returns from investment will be higher than financial cost of the Company.

Hence, various risk factors will be reviewed, and considered on their impacts, trend, occurring opportunity,

and finding measures for operation improvements to suit with the changing situations each time so that business

would be competitive in the long term.
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Related Parties Transactions
and People with Common Interests

................................................................................................................

(1) Characteristics of Related Parties Transactions
The related parties’ transactions happen in normal business with general commercial conditions without any

unusual transactions, or unreasonable pricing. Most transactions are trading of goods, related debtors and creditors,

loans and borrowings among companies in the capacity of financial management for optimum benefit of the group

companies. Referenced interest rates of a large commercial bank are charged in accordance with the type of business.

On the policy of related parties’ transactions with people who may have conflict of interest in the future, the

Company has stipulated its policy on the necessity and reasonableness of those transactions which are normal

commercial transactions and concerning normal business transactions. This includes related trading of goods, or

borrowing among companies with pricing and benefit in accordance with the market prices. For example, in case of

interest rate calculation, the interest rate has to be the same as the market interest rate at that particular time during

transaction whereas, the rate of return is equal to the market rate.

The Company has no unusual relates parties’ transactions, or any special case of related parties’ transac-

tions, thus, suggestion from external Director or independent expert on related parties’ transactions are not necessary.

In 2009, the Company had no written form of stock offering, or draft of prospectus, thus, there was no

opinion from external Director on this obligation. However, there was tender offer for share of Union Technology

(2008) Public Company Limited; from public shareholders at Baht 10.03 per share, and total ordinary shares bought

were 6,532,067 shares, amounted to Baht 65.5 million, or 10.89% of total shares.

Hence, the Company’s shareholding in Union Technology (2008) Public Company Limited was 93.07%, and

during 2009 the Company had disclosed information on related parties’ transactions, for the Company’s benefit as a

whole, through electronic media of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

(2) Necessity and Reasonableness of the above Transactions
The Company has its policy in separating the manufacturing companies from the parent company, as

previously the parent company performed its marketing and manufacturing roles for all manufacturing companies.

Hence, there were related parties transactions, related creditors and debtors, related interest earned and interest

expenses. Since 2007, related parties’ transactions were drastically reduced due to changes in the competitive situation

in the market so that adjustments had to be made for more flexibility. However, transactions on interest earned and

expenses still exist because effectiveness from financial management of the subsidiaries will be optimized, thus, these

transactions are still necessary and reasonable.

(3) Approval Procedures of the Related Parties Transactions
The procedures are as in normal business similar to other external person that requires normal approval

procedures as general commercial business. On the follow up of payments, payment due dates for each transactions

are clearly shown, and controlled accordingly, and approval on each type of transaction has to be in compliance with

rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the Securities and Exchanges Commission.

(4) Policy and Trends of Related Parties’ Transactions
Fair treatments to all related persons during transactions of related parties are the Company’s policy to

achieve optimum benefit for the organization. This has to comply with rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of

Thailand with adequate information disclosure.

As for the trends of related parties’ transactions, from 2007 onwards, related parties’ transactions among

the group will be gradually decreased as previously most of the related parties’ transactions were normal commercial

business transactions, such as, trading of goods, related creditors and debtors, as mentioned above. However, the

Company has policy on restructuring the distribution channel of goods, and related administrative works in the group,

from previously, where Saha-Union used to do the marketing and distribution of goods manufactured in the group, so

that now the manufacturing companies have to distribute their own goods. This is to enhance flexibility and

production adjustments, or prices in order to move quickly with the rapidly changing situations at present, to be

competitive in the industry, and for organization’s long term growth. Hence, trends on the normal related parties’

transactions will be less except for some goods that already had been contracted in advanced. Related parties’

transactions of deposit and borrowing between group companies remain unchanged as financial management within

the group considers optimum efficiency as guideline.

Related parties’ transactions in 2009 are shown in details in the annual report page 62-64.
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Related Transactions
Saha-Union Public Company Limited and Parties Possibly in Conflict

Related Information

Company
Types of

Type of  Amount Price Conditions
Relationship

Transaction  (Million Baht)

1 Saha - Union Holding Co., Ltd. 10 Mojor Related 1 Deposit - Deposit 249.04

Shareholders from group and other

companies

2 Interest Receivables -  0.11 Balance of payment as of the

Payables end of 2009

3 Dividend Received - 6.24 From the Shareholders’

Paid meeting’s resolution

4 Interest Income -  0.44 Referred to types and rates

Expenses of a major commercial bank

2 Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd. 10 Mojor Related 1 Dividend Received - 37.96 From the Shareholders’

Shareholders Paid meeting’s resolution

2 Service Income                  - Contract Price

3 Venus Thread Co., Ltd. Related Persons, 1 Goods Purchase - Sale 134.46 Compare with Market Price

holding more than 10% 2 Service Income               1.31 Contract Price

3 Rental Income               0.05 Contract Price

4 Creditor - Debitor 4.66 Balance of payment as of the

end of 2009

4 Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. Related Persons, 1 Goods Purchase - Sale 242.83 Compare with Market Price

holding more than 10% 2 Dividend Received - 0.75 From the Shareholders’

Paid meeting’s resolution

3 Service Income 0.01 Contract Price

4 Rental Income               0.17 Contract Price

5 Creditor - Debitor 50.72 Balance of payment as of the

end of 2009

5 Union Capital Co., Ltd. 10 Mojor Related 1 Interest Receivables - 5.70 Balance of payment as of the

Shareholders Payables end of 2009

2 Dividend Received - 19.80 From the Shareholders’

Paid meeting’s resolution

3 Interest Income - 5.70 Referred to types and rates

Expenses of a major commercial bank

4 Creditor - Debitor 84.00 Balance of payment as of the

end of 2009

6 Union Business Management Co., Ltd. 10 Mojor Related 1 Dividend Received - 22.57 From the Shareholders’

Shareholders Paid meeting’s resolution

2 Interest Income - 1.30 Referred to types and rates

Expenses of a major commercial bank

3 Interest Receivables - - Balance of payment as of the

Payables end of 2009
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Related Information

Company
Types of

Type of  Amount Price Conditions
Relationship

Transaction  (Million Baht)

7 Union Textile Industries Public Co., Ltd. Related Persons, 1 Goods Purchase - Sale 209.56 Compare with Market Price

holding more than 10% 2 Dividend Received - 1.00 From the Shareholders’

Paid meeting’s resolution

3 Interest Income - 6.47 Referred to types and rates

Expenses of a major commercial bank

4 Service Income - Contract Price

5 Rental Income - Contract Price

6 Creditor - Debitor 66.55 Balance of payment as of the

end of 2009

8 Union Industries Corp., Ltd. 10 Mojor Related 1 Dividend Received - 24.72 From the Shareholders’

Shareholders Paid meeting’s resolution

2 Service Income 0.01 Contract Price

9 Venus Button Co., Ltd. Related Persons, 1 Dividend Received - 0.86 From the Shareholders’

holding more than 10% Paid meeting’s resolution

10Venus Product Co., Ltd. Related Persons, 1 Service Income 0.02 Contract Price

holding more than 10%

11Union Zip Co., Ltd. Related Persons, 1 Goods Purchase - Sale 6.02 Compare with Market Price

holding more than 10% 2 Service Income 0.32 Contract Price

3 Interest Income - 0.10 Referred to types and rates

Expenses of a major commercial bank

4 Deposit - Deposit 40.00

from group and other

companies

5 Interest Receivables - 0.04 Balance of payment as of the

Payables end of 2009

6 Creditor - Debitor 0.89 Balance of payment as of the

end of 2009

12Union Management and Service Related Persons, 1 Service Income               0.01 Contract Price

Co., Ltd. holding more than 10%

13Uni - Fibre Co., Ltd. 10 Mojor Related 1 Deposit - Deposit 6.15

Shareholders from group and

other companies

2 Interest Receivables - 0.01 Balance of payment as of the

Payables end of 2009

3 Dividend Received - 12.24 From the Shareholders’

Paid meeting’s resolution

4 Service Income 0.03 Contract Price

5 Interest Income - - Referred to types and rates

Expenses of a major commercial bank
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Related Information

Company
Types of

Type of  Amount Price Conditions
Relationship

Transaction  (Million Baht)

14 Union Multi - Capital Co., Ltd. 10 Mojor Related 1 Dividend Received - 6.08 From the Shareholders’

Shareholders Paid meeting’s resolution

15 Thai Rubber Enterprise Co., Ltd. Related Persons, 1 Dividend Received - 3.49 From the Shareholders’

holding more than 10% Paid meeting’s resolution

2 Rental Income 0.03 Contract Price

3 Service Income 0.25 Contract Price

4 Interest Income - 0.12 Referred to types and rates

Expenses of a major commercial bank

5 Interest Receivables - 0.02 Balance of payment as of the

Payables end of 2009

6 Deposit - Deposit 5.00

from group and

other companies

16 Union Pioneer Public Co., Ltd. Related Persons, 1 Goods Purchase - Sale 13.03 Compare with Market Price

holding more than 10% 2 Dividend Received - 9.18 From the resolution of the

Paid Shareholders’ meeting

3 Rental Income 3.31 Contract Price

4 Creditor - Debitor 2.42 Balance of payment as of the

end of 2009

17 Union Button Corp., Ltd. Related Persons, 1 Service Income 0.20 Contract Price

holding more than 10% 2 Dividend Received - 1.36 From the Shareholders’

Paid meeting’s resolution

3 Creditor - Debitor 0.69 Balance of payment as of the

end of 2009

18 Union Shoes Co., Ltd. Related Persons, 1 Deposit - Deposit 20.00

holding more than 10% from group and other

companies

2 Interest Receivables - 0.02 Balance of payment as of the

Payables end of 2009

3 Interest Income - 0.22 Referred to types and rates

Expenses of a major commercial bank

19 Venus Shoes Co., Ltd. Related Persons, 1 Deposit - Deposit -

holding more than 10% from group and

other companies

2 Interest Income - 0.26 Compare with Market Price

Expenses

3 Service Income 0.42 Contract Price

4 Interest Receivables - - Balance of payment as of the

Payables end of 2009
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To Shareholders:

In the year 2009, the Company’s Audit Committee comprised of 3 independent directors, Mr. Sompop

Amatayakul, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mrs. Araya Arunanondchai and Ms. Pakinee Prettitumrong, the Audit

Committee members. The Audit Committee had 6 meetings. The Audit Committee also convened meetings together

with the Company’s management, internal audit office and the Company’s auditor to review, follow up and recommend

for improvement, rectification and consider the related parties’ transactions and then reported the findings to the

Company’s Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. Summarization on the reviews is as follows:

1. The Audit Committee had meeting with Executives and auditors in reviewing the quarterly and annual

financial statements in the fiscal year 2009, which had been reviewed and audited from the auditors. The Audit

Committee concluded that the financial statements were prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting

standard with adequate information disclosure on related parties’ transactions.

2. The Audit Committee reviewed on investments and disposal of investments.

3. The Audit Committee reviewed and evaluated the sufficiency of internal control system, considered with

approval on the internal audit plan and reviewed the internal audit results. Suggestions were also given to the

Executives for improvements the quality of internal audit and the risk management in order to conform to standard

practices of internal control.

4. Reviewing that the Company conformed to the good corporate governance of registered company as

announced by the Stock Exchange of Thailand and performed in accordance with rules and regulations.

5. The Audit Committee conducted self-assessment on its performance to comply with principles of good

corporate governance.

6. The Audit Committee participated in recruiting and verifying remuneration for auditor,  concurred to the

Board of Directors for submission in the annual shareholders’ meeting for final approval.

Sompop Amatayakul

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Saha–Union Public Company Limited

Audit Committee Report
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Board of Directors’ Report

666666

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the consolidated financial statements of the Company

and subsidiaries, included the financial information in the annual report. The financial statements are prepared in

accordance with the generally accepted accounting standards and continuously using appropriate accounting policy.

Careful considerations and proper estimations are applied in the preparation and sufficient important information is

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

The financial statements since the year 2007 onwards had been adjusted in accordance with the accounting

standards which had been changed and enforced since January 1, 2007. Concerning the seperated financial statements,

the investment accounts were recorded by using the cost method as if this method had been used from the

beginning. However, the consolidated financial statements for profit and loss on investments were recorded by using

the equity method and impacts from changes were disclosed in every quarter. As The Comparison between the

financial statements of 2007 and 2008 were used the same accounting policy and principle for their preparations, the

financial statements for the year 2009 still used these concepts as well. Hence, the Company’s financial statements

were unconditionally accepted by the auditor.

The Board of Directors has maintained the suitable and efficient internal control system to be reasonably

ensured that records on accounting data are correct, completed and sufficient. This is to protect the Company’s assets

and realize weaknesses in order to devise protection against fraud, or other suspicious activities.

Hence, the Company’s Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee which consisted of independent

and Non Executive Directors, which were responsible for the quality of financial reports and internal control system.

The Audit Committee’s comments on this subject were listed in the Audit Committee Report on page 65.

As of December 31, 2009, the Board of Directors concluded that the Company’s overall internal control

system was satisfactory and was capable of creating reasonable confidence on the credibility of the financial

statements of Company and subsidiaries.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

(Mr. Damri Darakananda) (Mr. Thitivat Suebsaeng)

Chairman President

............................................................................................................................
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To the Shareholders of Saha-Union Public Company Limited

I have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Saha-Union Public Company Limited and

its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the related consolidated statements of income, changes in

shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the separate financial statements of Saha-Union

Public Company Limited for the same periods. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of

the Company and its subsidiaries as to their correctness and the completeness of the presentation. My responsibility

is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits. I did not audited the financial statements

as of 31 December 2009 of overseas subsidiary companies of which statements reflect total assets of Baht 4,557

million and total revenues and net profit for the year then ended of approximately Baht 1,060 million and Baht 168

million respectively (2008: total assets of Baht 4,958 million, total revenues and net loss of Baht 1,194 million and

Baht 132 million respectively). The financial statements of these overseas subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009 and for

the year then ended were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to me and my opinion on the

consolidated financial statements, insofar as it relate to the data included for these subsidiaries, is based solely on the

reports of the other auditors. In addition, the consolidated financial statements of 2009 include the investments in

associated companies accounted for under the equity method amounting to Baht 6,207 million (2008: Baht 5,513

million) on of which share of profit of these associates of Baht 577 million (2008: Share of loss Baht 83 million). The

financial statements were audited by other auditors. My opinion on the consolidated financial statements, insofar as it

relates to the amounts included for these associated companies, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require

that I plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audits and

the reports of the other auditors referred to in the first paragraph provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, based on my audits and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to

above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Saha-Union Public Company Limited and its

subsidiaries and of Saha-Union Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2009 and 2008, and the results of their

operations, and cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Supachai Phanyawattano

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3930

Ernst & Young Office Limited

Bangkok: 26 February 2010

Report of Independent Auditor



Balance sheets
Saha-Union Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

..........................................................................................................................................................

686868

..........................................................................................................................................................

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements   financial statements

Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,373,408,128 1,940,429,834 183,837,880  91,951,440

Current investments - net 6  1,038,113,937 698,399,632 - -

Trade accounts receivable 8

Related parties 7 96,455,556 135,986,002 159,066,668 160,081,692

Unrelated parties 1,413,097,487  1,616,718,774 211,724,627  321,595,945

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (33,827,801) (49,214,447) (8,083,284)  (20,790,617)

Trade accounts receivable - net 1,475,725,242 1,703,490,329  362,708,011 460,887,020

Inventories - net 9  1,168,700,949 1,294,040,938        736,492 2,932,127

Short-term loans to related parties 7           -                 -    501,740,000 343,160,000

Investment awaiting for sale 10     -      121,653,550    -          -

Unused land and improvement classified

as held for sale 13    4,935,459              - -     -

Other current assets

Accrued income 36,548,195   64,575,806 11,684,562 17,022,379

Advances  161,817,806      40,589,513 316,020 92,460

Input tax refundable         22,240,588    44,431,238    5,181,310 6,036,424

Prepaid corporate income tax         16,895,779 43,230,514 14,612,754 41,093,982

Prepaid expenses         18,036,126       18,064,109 1,315,909 1,306,690

Import duty refundable 18,317,707 45,706,188   - -

Others 82,630,159 71,078,133  39,255,829 17,811,087

Total current assets  5,417,370,075  6,085,689,784  1,121,388,767   982,293,609

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008
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Balance sheets (continued)

Saha-Union Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

..........................................................................................................................................................
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(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements   financial statements

Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

Non-current assets

Receivables from sales of investments - related parties 7 84,000,000 200,600,000 84,000,000 200,600,000

Investment in subsidiary awaiting registration 10 -  - -  9,226,540

Investments in subsidiaries - net 10  -  -  5,706,656,892 9,802,541,156

Investments in associates - net 11 8,085,565,923 7,392,701,690 4,255,506,803 2,824,837,614

8,085,565,923 7,392,701,690 9,962,163,695 12,627,378,770

Investments in other companies - net 12 1,298,436,443 1,632,268,105 1,258,058,695 787,632,907

Property, plant and equipment - net 14 3,291,148,720  3,561,793,920 403,544,650  346,342,625

Intangible assets - Computer Software, net 15 2,821,577 3,836,510 - -

Other non-current assets

Land awaiting development 403,686,133 404,380,091 275,091,133 275,785,091

Leasehold rights 69,043,823 76,124,323 - -

Withholding tax deducted at source 218,512,690 148,759,696 41,093,982 -

Others 39,342,750  54,177,277 14,350,105 16,158,426

Total non-current assets 13,492,558,059 13,474,641,612 12,038,302,260 14,263,124,359

Total assets 18,909,928,134 19,560,331,396 13,159,691,027 15,245,417,968

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008
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Balance sheets (continued)

Saha-Union Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

..........................................................................................................................................................
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As at 31 December 2009 and 2008

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements   financial statements

Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans

from financial institutions 16 156,613,482 1,205,675,565 56,735,693 791,281,623

Trust receipts 38,283,530 57,978,734 38,283,530 -

Trade accounts payable

Related parties 7 50,254,565 341,391,159 105,622,858 338,667,016

Unrelated parties 595,497,805 805,558,426 31,554,926 4,556,933

Total trade accounts payable 645,752,370 1,146,949,585 137,177,784 343,223,949

Current portion of long-term loans 17 454,429,917 299,225,017 450,009,917 294,248,017

Current portion of liabilities under finance

lease agreements 18 45,189,814  37,409,558 -  -

Payable from purchase of investments - related party 7, 10, 11 - - 173,288,039 2,254,712,600

Deposits from related parties 7 256,154,621 103,193,267 1,018,177,621 1,049,867,120

Other current liabilities

Accrued expenses 354,988,780 408,777,833 31,568,669 59,339,820

Corporate income tax payable 84,439,464 59,587,919 - -

Deposits received from sales of land and improvement 13 174,799,375 -  - -

Others 192,778,582 180,455,297 5,275,406 10,282,207

Total current liabilities 2,403,429,935  3,499,252,775 1,910,516,659 4,802,955,336

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans, net of current portion 17  1,158,422,666 983,632,733 931,468,166 760,729,083

Liabilities under finance lease agreements - net

of current portion 18 47,468,104 33,863,051  - -

Provision for employee compensation

and pension expenses 448,743,452 430,994,954 36,283,889 40,909,028

Other non-current liabilities 62,427,158 66,893,825 1,565,604 1,565,604

Total non-current liabilities 1,717,061,380 1,515,384,563 969,317,659 803,203,715

Total liabilities 4,120,491,315 5,014,637,338 2,879,834,318 5,606,159,051

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Balance sheets (continued)

Saha-Union Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

..........................................................................................................................................................
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As at 31 December 2009 and 2008

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements   financial statements

Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

Registered

300,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000

   Issued and fully paid-up

300,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each 3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000

Share premium 2,599,000,000 2,599,000,000 2,599,000,000 2,599,000,000

The Company’s shares held by subsidiaries 19 (234,404,410) (234,404,410) - -

Unrealised gain (loss)

Revaluation surplus (deficit) on changes

in value of investments in available-for-sale securities 245,160,581 (17,616,711) 230,577,975 64,655,364

Deficit on investments in subsidiary arising as a result

of acquisition of additional shares at a price over

than the net book value at the acquisition date 1.2 (28,022,567) - -  -

Translation adjustments  (192,230,009) 505,401,576  - -

Retained earnings

Appropriated

Statutory reserve 20 932,396,487 883,118,697 687,112,369 659,123,540

Other reserve 209,615,078 207,063,083  - -

Unappropriated 6,950,539,862 6,310,086,797 3,763,166,365 3,316,480,013

Equity attributable to the Company’s shareholders 13,482,055,022 13,252,649,032 10,279,856,709 9,639,258,917

Minority interest - equity attributable

to minority shareholders of subsidiaries 1,307,381,797 1,293,045,026  - -

Total shareholders’ equity 14,789,436,819  14,545,694,058  10,279,856,709 9,639,258,917

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 18,909,928,134 19,560,331,396 13,159,691,027 15,245,417,968

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Saha-Union Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
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For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

(Unit: Baht)
 Consolidated  Separate

financial statements financial statements

Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenues

Sales and service income 22, 24 8,617,565,705  12,208,621,705 2,380,862,980 4,437,992,908

Other income

Interest income 22,872,214 46,502,215 29,083,894 51,910,862

Rental income 14,047,660 13,970,793 177,677,904 180,404,804

Dividend income 113,872,645 78,188,320 852,099,206 304,208,031

Gain on disposal of investments 10, 11 - 281,633,414 - -

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 62,040,251 132,493,073 16,827,264 9,537,342

Unrealised gain from revaluation of

securities - trading 6 250,185,835 - - -

Others 254,548,486 379,476,257 39,187,450 158,229,594

Total other income 717,567,091 932,264,072 1,114,875,718 704,290,633

Total revenues 9,335,132,796 13,140,885,777 3,495,738,698 5,142,283,541

Expenses

Cost of sales and services 7,135,690,348 10,735,772,993 2,173,601,959 4,162,295,742

Selling expenses 241,718,535  361,524,381 13,659,959 69,197,714

Administrative expenses 787,759,154 920,708,502 260,608,598 389,799,490

Management benefit expenses 7 99,719,014 107,266,697 30,448,559 30,377,658

Allowance for diminution in value of inventory (reversal) 9 5,587,963 (47,415,310) (342,036) (33,316,512)

Allowance for impairment of property, plant and

equipment (reversal) 14 (44,180,541) 133,703,955 - 104,737,000

Unrealised loss from revaluation of securities - trading 6 - 327,262,859  - -

Allowance for impairment of investments 10, 11, 12 328,784,780 5,328,080 114,991,079 188,717,050

Doubtful accounts (reversal) 8,505,080 4,081,464 17,366,991 (167,753,129)

Loss on disposal of investments 26,952,186 - 6,153,636 -

Total expenses 8,590,536,519 12,548,233,621 2,616,488,745 4,744,055,013

Income before share of income from investments in

associates, finance cost and corporate income tax 744,596,277 592,652,156  879,249,953 398,228,528

Share of income from investments in associates 11 690,784,344 32,639,666 - -

Income before finance cost and corporate income tax 1,435,380,621 625,291,822 879,249,953 398,228,528

Finance cost  (92,117,347) (118,056,078) (75,940,517) (101,180,359)

Income before corporate income tax 1,343,263,274 507,235,744 803,309,436 297,048,169

Corporate income tax (201,998,833) (134,200,668) (28,634,255) (17,159,876)

Net income for the year 1,141,264,441 373,035,076 774,675,181 279,888,293

Net income attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 982,260,156 281,476,765 774,675,181 279,888,293

Minority interests of the subsidiaries 159,004,285 91,558,311

1,141,264,441 373,035,076

Basic earnings per share 23

Net income attributable to equity holders of the parent 3.39 0.97 2.58 0.93

Weighted average number of shares (shares) 289,977,306 289,982,087 300,000,000 300,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

......................................................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................................................
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For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 (Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

 Equity attributable to the parent’s shareholders

Revaluation

surplus (deficit) Minority

on changes in interest - equity

value of Retained earnings  Total equity attributable to

Issued and The Company’s  investments Appropriated - Appropriated -   attributable to minority

fully paid-up shares held by in available-for- Translation Statutory Other   the parent’s shareholders

share capital Share premium subsidiaries sale securities adjustments reserve reserve Unappropriated shareholders of subsidiaries Total

Balance as at 31 December 2007   3,000,000,000 2,599,000,000  (233,763,910) 260,487,763 492,593,360  852,418,898  269,838,029   6,359,006,518 13,599,580,658 1,561,223,131   15,160,803,789

Income (expenses) recognised directly in equity:

Investments in available-for-sale securities

Loss recognised in shareholders’ equity  - - - (279,656,379) -  - -  -  (279,656,379)  - (279,656,379)

Transferred to profit due to disposals - - - 1,551,905  - - - -  1,551,905 - 1,551,905

Translation adjustments - - - - 12,808,216  -  -  -    12,808,216  - 12,808,216

Net income (expenses) recognised

directly in equity -  - - (278,104,474) 12,808,216  -  -  - (265,296,258) - (265,296,258)

Increase in the Company’s shares held by

subsidiaries (Note 19) - - (640,500) -  -    -  - -    (640,500)  - (640,500)

Net income for the year  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   281,476,765 281,476,765  - 281,476,765

Total income (expenses) for the year                         -  - (640,500) (278,104,474) 12,808,216 - - 281,476,765  15,540,007 - 15,540,007

Dividend paid (Note 26) - - -  -  - -  - (375,000,000) (375,000,000) - (375,000,000)

Less: Dividend paid in respect of the Company’s

shares held by subsidiaries (Note 19) - -  - - -  -  -  12,528,367 12,528,367 - 12,528,367

Dividend paid - net - - -           -        -     -  - (362,471,633) (362,471,633) -       (362,471,633)

Unappropriated retained earnings transferred

to statutory reserve -  -  - - - 30,699,799  - (30,699,799) -  - -

Reversal of other reserve to

unappropriated retained earnings  -  - -  - -  - (62,774,946) 62,774,946   -  - -

Decrease in minority interest - equity attributable

to minority shareholders of subsidiaries  - - -  - -  -  -  -  - (268,178,105)  (268,178,105)

Balance as at 31 December 2008  3,000,000,000 2,599,000,000 (234,404,410) (17,616,711) 505,401,576 883,118,697 207,063,083 6,310,086,797 13,252,649,032  1,293,045,026 14,545,694,058

                          -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of changes in shareholders’ equity (continued)

Saha-Union Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

....................................................................................................................................................................................................................

....................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Consolidated financial statements

 Equity attributable to the parent’s shareholders

Balance as at 31 December 2008 3,000,000,000 2,599,000,000 (234,404,410)  (17,616,711) -  505,401,576 883,118,697  207,063,083  6,310,086,797 13,252,649,032 1,293,045,026 14,545,694,058

Income (expenses) recognised directly in equity:

Investments in available-for-sale securities

Gain recognised in shareholders’ equity -  -   - 267,824,605  -  -      - -  -  267,824,605  -  267,824,605

Transferred to profit due to disposals -  - - (5,047,313)     -    -  - -  - (5,047,313)  - (5,047,313)

Deficit on investments in subsidiary arising as a result

of acquisition of additional shares at a price over

than the net book value at the acquisition date  -  - - - (28,022,567) - -   - - (28,022,567)  - (28,022,567)

Translation adjustments  -  - - -  -  (697,631,585) -  -  -   (697,631,585)  - (697,631,585)

Net income (expenses) recognised directly in equity   -        -  - 262,777,292 (28,022,567)  (697,631,585) - -  - (462,876,860) - (462,876,860)

Net income for the year  -  - -  -  -  - -  -  982,260,156  982,260,156  - 982,260,156

Total income (expenses) for the year                         -  -  - 262,777,292 (28,022,567)  (697,631,585)   -  -  982,260,156    519,383,296 - 519,383,296

Dividend paid (Note 26)                         -  -   - -           -  -  -  -  (300,000,000)   (300,000,000)    - (300,000,000)

Less: Dividend paid in respect of the Company’s

shares held by subsidiaries (Note 19) -  -    -  -   -  -    -   - 10,022,694  10,022,694  - 10,022,694

Dividend paid - net -    -     -    -        -   -    -       -  (289,977,306)  (289,977,306) - (289,977,306)

Unappropriated retained earnings transferred

to statutory reserve - - - - - - 49,277,790  -  (49,277,790) -  - -

Unappropriated retained earnings transferred

to other reserve  -  -  - - -  -  -  2,551,995  (2,551,995)  - - -

Increase in minority interest - equity attributable

to minority shareholders of subsidiaries -  -  -    -    - - -  -  -    - 14,336,771 14,336,771

Balance as at 31 December 2009 3,000,000,000 2,599,000,000  (234,404,410) 245,160,581   (28,022,567)  (192,230,009)  932,396,487  209,615,078  6,950,539,862 13,482,055,022 1,307,381,797 14,789,436,819

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Issued and

fully paid-up

share capital

Share

premium

The Company’s

shares held by

subsidiaries

Revaluation

surplus

(deficit)

on changes

in value of

investments

in available-

for-sale

securities

Deficit on
investments
in subsidiary
arising as a
result of

acquisition of
additional
shares at a
price over
than the net
book value

at the
acquisition

date

Translation
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Retained earnings

Appropriated -

Statutory

reserve

Appropriated -

Other

reserve Unappropriated

 Total equity

 attributable to

 the parent’s

 shareholders

Minority

interest - equity

 attributable to

minority

shareholders

of subsidiaries  Total

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 (Unit: Baht)
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Statements of changes in shareholders’ equity (continued)

Saha-Union Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Revaluation surplus

(deficit) on changes in Retained earnings

Issued and value of investments

fully paid-up in available-for-sale Appropriated -

share capital Share premium securities Statutory reserve Unappropriated Total

Balance as at 31 December 2007 3,000,000,000 2,599,000,000 245,268,444    631,394,754 3,439,320,506 9,914,983,704

Expenses recognised directly in equity:

Investments in available-for-sale securities

Loss recognised in shareholders’ equity -  - (180,613,080)  -        - (180,613,080)

Net expenses recognised directly in equity - -   (180,613,080) -  -                (180,613,080)

Net income for the year -  -  -  -  279,888,293  279,888,293

Total income (expenses) for the year  - - 180,613,080) -  279,888,293  99,275,213

Dividend paid (Note 26)  -  - - -   (375,000,000)  (375,000,000)

Unappropriated retained earnings transferred

to statutory reserve   -      -    -    27,728,786      (27,728,786)  -

Balance as at 31 December 2008 3,000,000,000 2,599,000,000 64,655,364 659,123,540      3,316,480,013              9,639,258,917

Balance as at 31 December 2008  3,000,000,000   2,599,000,000 64,655,364    659,123,540    3,316,480,013              9,639,258,917

Income (expenses) recognised directly in equity:

Investments in available-for-sale securities

Loss recognised in shareholders’ equity  -  -      166,643,111  - - 166,643,111

Transferred to profit due to disposals   -    -      (720,500)   -  -  (720,500)

Net income recognised directly in equity - - 165,922,611   -  -                 165,922,611

Net income for the year  -  -  -  -   774,675,181                 774,675,181

Total income for the year  -  - 165,922,611  - 774,675,181                 940,597,792

Dividend paid (Note 26)   -            -  -  -   (300,000,000)               (300,000,000)

Unappropriated retained earnings transferred

to statutory reserve       -   -       -   27,988,829    (27,988,829)    -

Balance as at 31 December 2009     3,000,000,000      2,599,000,000       230,577,975       687,112,369    3,763,166,365             10,279,856,709

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2009 2008 2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income before tax 1,343,263,274 507,235,744 803,309,436 297,048,169

Adjustments to reconcile net income before tax to

net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortisation 619,997,217 726,195,521  128,204,886      193,566,960

Allowance for doubtful accounts (reversal) 8,505,080  4,081,464   17,366,991     (167,753,129)

Allowance for diminution in value of inventory (reversal) 5,587,963 (47,415,310)  (342,036) (33,316,512)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (62,040,251)  (132,493,073) (16,827,264) (9,537,342)

Allowance for impairment of property, plant and

equipment (reversal) (44,180,541) 133,703,955 - 104,737,000

Allowance for impairment of investments 328,784,780 5,328,080  114,991,079 188,717,050

Unrealised loss (gain) from revaluation of securities - trading (250,185,835) 327,262,859 - -

Share of income from investments in associates (690,784,344) (32,639,666) - -

Negative goodwill recognition  - (8,610,528)  - -

Loss (gain) on disposal of investments and capital return 26,952,186 (281,633,414) 6,153,636 -

Dividends receipt from investments in other companies  (99,595,610) (56,720,163) (852,099,206)  (304,208,031)

Provision for employee compensation and

pension expenses (reversal) 19,009,486  (76,632,045) (4,625,139)  (6,947,057)

Unrealised (gain) loss on exchange (3,855,298) (14,933,655) 978,593 (1,602,064)

Interest income  (22,872,214)  (46,502,215) (29,083,894) (51,910,862)

Interest expenses 82,905,885 106,118,383 74,066,407 97,758,026

Income from operating activities before changes in operating

assets and liabilities 1,261,491,778 1,112,345,937 242,093,489 306,552,208

Operating assets (increase) decrease

Trade accounts receivable 208,464,216 325,032,003 97,305,045 403,585,081

Inventories 65,185,991 190,594,603  2,537,671 154,717,895

Other current assets  (65,993,981) 16,628,426 9,383,579 19,535,524

Other non-current assets (3,913,562) (97,507,873) 2,502,280 (2,473,592)

Operating liabilities increase (decrease)

Trade accounts payable (454,886,518) (123,421,052) (206,046,165) (311,931,084)

Other current liabilities (30,020,588) (56,821,289) (25,111,933) (108,330,859)

Other non-current liabilities (4,466,667) 66,876,837 - 1,565,604

Cash flows from operating activities 975,860,669 1,433,727,592 122,663,966 463,220,777

Cash paid for interest expenses  (86,108,329) (108,297,264) (81,717,556)  (101,413,665)

Cash paid for corporate income tax (174,814,909) (155,561,698) (43,247,010)  (63,055,184)

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities 714,937,431 1,169,868,630  (2,300,600) 298,751,928

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2009 2008 2009 2008

Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease (increase) in short-term loans to related parties  - 34,897,640 (171,580,000) 259,440,000

Increase in current investments (96,485,971)  (1,025,662,491)  - -

Cash paid for acquisition of investments  (958,057,673) (933,325,298) (2,396,677,145) (748,367,011)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  101,598,574 283,125,171 24,949,966 317,344,279

Deposits received from sales of land and improvement  174,799,375 -  -  -

Net cash receipt from disposal of investments 441,907,091 1,156,423,684 84,861,000 -

Net cash receipt from the cessation of subsidiary’s business 11,812,545 - 6,346,269 -

Cash receipt from share capital reduction of subsidiaries - - 4,528,673,896 30,848,550

Repayment of payable from purchases

of investments - related parties - -  (2,254,712,600) -

Cash receipt from disposal of investment - related parties 116,600,000 47,617,000 116,600,000 47,617,000

Dividend receipt from investments 446,115,220 276,096,038 852,099,206 304,208,031

Interest income 29,491,477 40,243,837 35,988,962 53,135,902

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (358,052,412)  (533,259,057) (31,476,369) (59,478,252)

Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities (90,271,774) (653,843,476) 795,073,185 204,748,499

Cash flows from financing activities

Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts and short-term loans

from financial institutions (673,712,694) 139,755 (363,796,931) 67,903,186

Increase (decrease) in deposits from related companies 155,639,854 100,723,636 (31,689,499) (450,679,896)

Cash payment of capital refund to minority shareholders (5,982,809) (4,091,096) - -

Increase (decrease) in trust receipts 2,813,687 (27,351,451) 38,848,302 (30,352,830)

Dividend paid (Note 26) (396,282,773)  (441,227,216) (300,000,000) (375,000,000)

Cash receipt from long-term loans 278,453,430 674,820,650 250,000,000 460,000,000

Repayment of long-term loans (309,923,017) (266,580,085) (294,248,017) (244,248,017)

Cash paid for liabilities under finance lease agreements (45,202,613)  (48,157,460) - -

Net cash flows used in financing activities (994,196,935) (11,723,267) (700,886,145)  (572,377,557)

Decrease in translation adjustments (197,490,428) (264,706,779) - -

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (567,021,706) 239,595,108 91,886,440 (68,877,130)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,940,429,834 1,700,834,726 91,951,440 160,828,570

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,373,408,128 1,940,429,834 183,837,880 91,951,440

Supplemental cash flows information:

Non-cash item:

Increase in equipments from finance lease agreements 66,604,339  57,259,751 - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Cash flow statements (continued)

Saha-Union Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
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Notes to consolidated financial statements
Saha-Union Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

............................................................................................................................................................................

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

1. General information

1.1 Corporate information

Saha-Union Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled in

Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in investment and distribution of products manufactured by the group

companies, textile, electronic components, plastic, rubber products and metals and it’s registered address is 1828

Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong, Bangkok.

1.2 Corporate information of subsidiary - Union Technology (2008) Public Company Limited

On 19 February 2009, Meeting No. 2/2009 of the Board of Directors of Union Technology (2008) Plc.

(“Union Technology (2008)”) passed a resolution to proceed with the voluntary delisting of Union Technology (2008)’s

shares from the Stock Exchange of Thailand and proposed such resolution for consideration and approval by the

Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders held on 27 April 2009.

On 27 April 2009, the 2009 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Union Technology (2008) passed a

resolution to proceed with the voluntary delisting of Union Technology (2008)’s shares from the Stock Exchange of

Thailand. The Company, the major shareholder of Union Technology (2008), has expressed its intention to make a

tender offer for all shares held by the minority shareholders.

On 21 May 2009, the Board of Directors Meeting of the Company passed a resolution to make a tender

offer of common shares of Union Technology (2008) from individual shareholders at a price of Baht 10.03 per share

since on 11 May 2009 the Board of the Securities and Exchange Commission approved Union Technology (2008)

withdrawing the securities from a registered securities in accordance with general guidelines set by Commission

Securities and Exchange. The purchase duration of the securities is from 9 June 2009 to 14 August 2009. The

Company has followed the steps of the relevant regulations. From the latest summary prepared on 19 August 2009,

the Company has reported a result to the Board of the Securities and Exchange Commission concerning the share

purchase that the shareholders has intention to sell and the Company would purchase a total of 6,532,067 shares,

combining existing shares that held by the Company total 55,843,313 shares. As a result of the acquisition, the

Company’s shareholding in Union Technology (2008) increased from 82.19 percent to 93.07 percent. Goodwill

recognised from the acquisition of these investments amounting to Baht 28 million is presented under the caption of

“Deficit on investments in subsidiary arising as a result of acquisition of additional shares at a price over than the net

book value at the acquisition date” in shareholders’ equity.

Subsequently, on 24 August 2009, the Board of the Securities and Exchange Commission considered the

delisting request of Union Technology (2008) with 60 million shares with a par value of Baht 10 each, amounting to

Baht 600 million and had an opinion that Union Technology (2008) could complete all related processes in compliance

with the regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission concerning the delisting requirement B.E. 2542. By

virtue of Section 171 (4) of the Securities and Exchange B.E. 2535, the Board of the Securities and Exchange

Commission passed a resolution to delist the shares of Union Technology (2008) from 1 September 2009.

In addition, the resolution passed by Extraordinary Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2009 of Union Technology

(2008), held on 16 October 2009, authorised that Union Technology (2008) to decrease its registered and paid-up

share capital from 60 million shares with a par value of Baht 10 each, amounting to Baht 600 million, to 30 million

shares with a par value of Baht 10 each, amounting to Baht 300 million. Union Technology (2008) registered the

reduction of share capital with the Department of Business Development of the Ministry of Commerce on 22 January

2010 and returned the capital to its shareholders on 28 January 2010. The Company received a return of capital of

Baht 279 million
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2. Basis of preparation

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated

under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the

stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 30 January 2009, issued under the

Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The

financial statements in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the

accounting policies.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company (“the Company”)

and the following subsidiary companies (“the subsidiaries”) (Nature of business and percentage of

shareholding in subsidiary companies presented in Note 10 to the financial statements):

Assets as a percentage Revenues as a percentage

to the consolidated to the consolidated total

Country of total assets as at revenues for the years

Company’s name incorporation 31 December ended 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent Percent Percent

Overseas subsidiaries

Saha-Union International Ltd. Hong Kong 3.34 3.11 2.99 2.81

Saha-Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd. China 8.48 10.93 0.64 0.14

Shanghai Saha-Union Thread Industry Co., Ltd. China 0.64 0.83 1.07 1.88

Zhejiang Saha-Union Feilun Thread Industries Co., Ltd. China 2.66 2.56 0.91 0.72

Jiashan-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. China 3.10 2.82 4.12 3.03

Union Energy (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. Hong Kong 5.72 4.95 1.28 0.28

(100.00 percent owned by Saha-Union International Ltd.)

Union Yagi Lao Co., Ltd. Lao 0.15 0.15 0.35 0.20

(50.00 percent owned by Union Garment Co., Ltd.)

Domestic subsidiaries

Union Textile Industries Plc. Thailand 5.81 5.95 7.40 7.09

Saha-Union Holding Co., Ltd. Thailand 0.95 1.36 0.13 0.15

Union Garment Co., Ltd. Thailand 0.75 1.36 4.13 4.77

Union Pioneer Plc. Thailand 3.05 2.68 10.17 7.17

Union Zojirushi Co., Ltd. Thailand 3.47 3.64 15.42 11.30

Union Stainless Steel Products Co., Ltd. Thailand 0.51 0.47 0.62 0.53

Union Rubber Products Corp., Ltd. Thailand 0.24 0.21 0.76 0.62

Union Technology (2008) Plc. Thailand 3.28 3.08 0.45 0.38

Venus Shoes Co., Ltd. Thailand 0.17 0.27 0.10 0.09

Thai Rubber Enterprise Co., Ltd. Thailand 0.26 0.26 0.08 0.06

Union Printing Corp., Ltd. Thailand 0.02 0.06 0.02 0.01

Union Plastic Plc. Thailand 3.84 4.08 7.54 8.10

Computer Union Co., Ltd. Thailand 5.84 4.56 19.63 14.64
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Assets as a percentage Revenues as a percentage

to the consolidated to the consolidated total

Country of total assets as at revenues for the years

Company’s name incorporation 31 December ended 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent Percent Percent

Union Equity Co., Ltd. Thailand 0.24 0.24 0.03 0.03

Union Technology Co., Ltd. Thailand 0.44 0.39 0.01 0.67

Union Energy Co., Ltd. Thailand 0.03 3.77 - -

Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. Thailand - 4.82 0.17 3.29

Texport International Corp., Ltd. Thailand 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.03

Union Human Resources Development Co., Ltd. Thailand - - - -

Subsidiaries that discontinued operations

Union Shoes Co., Ltd. Thailand 0.04 0.08 - 0.03

Uni-Sole Co., Ltd. Thailand 0.03 0.01 0.03 0.01

Union Construction Corp., Ltd. Thailand 0.70 0.68 - -

Computer Union Systems Co., Ltd. Thailand 0.02 0.02 - -

(99.99 percent owned by Computer Union Co., Ltd.)

Phon Union Footwear Co., Ltd. Thailand 0.01 - 0.01 0.16

(50.00 percent owned by Union Technology (2008)

Plc. and 49.99 percent by Union Shoes Co., Ltd.)

Union Kotec Molds Co., Ltd. Thailand - - - -

(64.99 percent owned by Union Plastic Plc.)

Dissolved subsidiaries

Fashion Apparel Co., Ltd. Thailand - 0.02 - 0.15

Saha Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. China - 0.01 - 0.01

(90.91 percent owned by Saha-Union Investment

(China) Co., Ltd.)

Jakkarat Union Footwear Co., Ltd. Thailand - - - -

(99.99 percent owned by Union Technology (2008) Plc.)

Banphi Union Footwear Co., Ltd. Thailand - - - -

(74.99 percent owned by Union Technology (2008) Plc.)

Burirum Union Shoes Co., Ltd. Thailand - - - 0.02

(99.99 percent owned by Union Shoes Co., Ltd.)

Subsidiary of which status is changed

   to related company

Union Tex-East Co., Ltd. Thailand - 0.52 - 1.99

(19.50 percent owned by Union Garment Co., Ltd.)
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b) Subsidiaries are fully consolidated as from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Company

obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

c) The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent

company, using consistent significant accounting policies.

d) The financial statements of overseas subsidiary companies are translated into Thai Baht at the closing

exchange rate as to assets and liabilities, and at monthly average exchange rates as to revenues and

expenses. The resultant differences are shown under the caption of “Translation adjustment” in shareholders’

equity.

e) Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiary companies have been

eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

f) Minority interests represent the portion of net income or loss and net assets of the subsidiaries that are

not held by the Company and are presented separately in the consolidated income statement and within

equity in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.3 The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries and associates under

the cost method, have been prepared solely for the benefit of the public.

3. Adoption of new accounting standards

In June 2009, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued Notification No. 12/2552, assigning new

numbers to Thai Accounting Standards that match the corresponding International Accounting Standards. The

numbers of Thai Accounting Standards as referred to in these financial statements reflect such change.

The Federation of Accounting Professions has issued Notification No. 86/2551 and 16/2552, mandating the use

of new accounting standards, financial reporting standard and accounting treatment guidance as follows.

3.1 Accounting standards, financial reporting standard and accounting treatment guidance which are

effective for the current year

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (revised 2007)

TAS 36 (revised 2007) Impairment of Assets

TFRS 5 (revised 2007) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

Accounting Treatment Guidance for Leasehold Right

Accounting Treatment Guidance for Business Combination under Common Control

These accounting standards, financial reporting standard and accounting treatment guidance became effective

for the financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The management has assessed the

effect of these standards and believes that Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

(revised 2007), TAS 36 (revised 2007), TFRS 5 (revised 2007), Accounting Treatment Guidance for Leasehold Right

and Accounting Treatment Guidance for Business Combination under Common Control do not have any significant

impact on the financial statements for the current year.

3.2 Accounting standards which are not effective for the current year

Effective date

TAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and 1 January 2012

Disclosure of Government Assistance
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Effective date

TAS 24 (revised 2007) Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011

TAS 40 Investment Property 1 January 2011

However, TAS 24 (revised 2007) allows early adoption by the entity before the effective date.

The management of the Company has assessed the effect of these standards and believes that TAS 20 and

TAS 40 are not relevant to the business of the Company, while TAS 24 (revised 2007) will not have any significant

impact on the financial statements for the year in which it is initially applied.

4. Significant accounting policies

4.1 Revenue recognition

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have

passed to the buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting

discounts and allowances.

Rendering of service

Service revenue is recognised when services have been rendered taking into account the stage of completion.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis on the effective interest rate.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis base on the contract rate.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.

4.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments with an

original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

4.3 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided

for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on

collection experience and analysis of debt aging.

4.4 Inventories

Finished goods and work in process are valued at the lower of standard cost (which approximates actual

cost) and net realisable value. Standard cost includes all production costs and attributable factory overheads.

Raw materials, chemicals, spare parts and factory supplies are valued at the lower of average cost and net

realisable value and are charged to production costs whenever consumed.

4.5 Unused assets classified as held for sale

Unused assets classified as held for sale are assets whose carrying amounts will be recovered through a

sales transaction rather than through continuing use. Such sales transaction should be expected to qualify for

recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. The assets are measured at the lower

of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, and they are not depreciated.
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4.6 Investments

a) Investments in securities held for trading are stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in

the carrying amounts of securities are included in determining income.

b) Investments in available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value. Changes in the carrying amounts of

securities are recorded as separate items in shareholders’ equity until the securities are sold, when the changes are

then included in determining income.

c) Investments in debt securities expected to be held to maturity are recorded at amortised cost. The

premium/discount on debt securities is amortised by the effective rate method with the amortised amount presented

as an adjustment to the interest income.

d) Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as other investments, are

stated at cost net of allowance for loss on diminution in value.

e) Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

f) Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for in the separate financial statements using

the cost method and net of allowance for loss on diminution in value.

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last working day of the year as

quoted on the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments.

4.7 Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

allowance for loss on impairment of assets.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on a straight-line basis over the

following estimated useful lives:

Buildings - 20 years

Land and leasehold improvements - 5, 20 years

Machinery and equipment - 3, 5, 10, 20 years

Molds - 5 years

Facilities - 5 years

Furniture and fixtures - 3, 5, 10 years

Motor vehicles - 5, 10 years

Computers - 3, 5 years

Depreciate of plant and equipment of a company’s branch and a subsidiary acquired in the year 2001, is

calculated by reference to its net book value on a double-declining basis, over the useful lives of 5-20 years.

Depreciation is included in determining income.

No depreciation is provided on land and assets under installation.

4.8 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are measured at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at

cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets of a subsidiary with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic

useful life and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The

amortisation period and the amortisation method for such intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year

end. The amortisation expense is charged to the income statement.

The intangible asset of a subsidiary is computer software with finite useful lives of 5 years.
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4.9 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether

directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in

the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel, directors, and

officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.

4.10 Long-term leases

Leases of property, plant or equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the

present value of the minimum lease payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included

in other long-term payables, while the interest element is charged to the income statements over the lease period. The

property, plant or equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the

asset and the lease period.

4.11 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange

rate ruling at the balance sheet date.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

4.12 Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries performs impairment reviews in respect of the

property, plant and equipment, other investments and include intangible assets whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount

of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying

amount. In determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-

tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are

corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information available, reflects the amount that the Company and its

subsidiaries could obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing

parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

4.13 Employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are recognised as

expenses when incurred.

In addition, employee’s compensation and pension expenses are provided in the accounts by reference to

the provisions of labor laws and the Company and its subsidiaries’s personnel regulations, and are determined based

upon the probability that employees in each age group will work until reaching their retirement age.

4.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present obligation as a result of a

past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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4.15 Income tax

Income tax of the Company and its subsidiaries are provided in the accounts based on taxable profits

determined in accordance with tax legislation.

Overseas subsidiary companies calculate corporate income tax in accordance with tax rates mandated under

the tax law of those countries.

5. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles at times

requires management to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain.

These judgments and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures and actual results could differ. Significant

judgments and estimates are as follows:

Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the management is

required to use judgment regarding whether significant risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset has been

transferred, taking into consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgment and estimates

based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing

economic condition.

Allowance of diminution in value of inventory

In determining an allowance of diminution in value of inventory, the management makes judgment and

estimates net realisable value of inventory. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly

relating to events occurring after the end of the period. Also, the management makes judgment and estimates

expected loss from stock obsolescence based upon aging profile of inventories and the prevailing economic condition.

Impairment of equity investments

The Company and its subsidiaries treat available-for-sale investments and other investments as impaired

when the management judges that there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost

or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”

requires judgment.

Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the

useful lives and salvage values of the Company and its subsidiaries’s plant and equipment and to reviews estimate

useful lives and salvage values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for impairment on a

periodical basis and to record impairment losses in the period when it is determined that their recoverable amount is

lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating

to the assets subject to the review.

Pension and post-retirement benefits

Employee compensation and pension expenses are provided in the accounts by reference to the provisions

of labour laws and the Company and its subsidiaries personnel regulations, and are determined based upon the

probability that employees in each age group will work until reaching their retirement age. Actual employee compensation

and pension expenses may ultimately differ.
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6. Current investments

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the balances of subsidiaries’s current investments are as follow:

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

2009 2008

Cost/ Cost/

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

Trading securities

Overseas marketable equity securities 1,060,982,259 983,182,328 906,368,937 571,425,670

Less: Allowance for change in value (77,077,024) (327,262,859)

Translation adjustments (722,907) (7,680,408)

Total trading securities - net 983,182,328 571,425,670

Debt securities held to maturity - current portion

Debt securities of private sector 54,931,609 126,973,962

Total debt securities held to maturity -

current portion 54,931,609 126,973,962

Current investments - net 1,038,113,937 698,399,632

7. Related party transactions

During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with related

parties. Such transactions, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded

on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Company and those related parties.

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Million Baht)

For the years ended

31 December Transfer Pricing Policy

2009 2008

Transactions with associated companies

Sales of merchandise 462 623 Cost plus margin

Service income 5 12 Contract price

Rental income 13 12 Contract price

Receivable from sale of investments (weighted 84 214 Interest rate with reference to the

average outstanding balance at month end) loan interest rate of local

commercial bank

Lendings (weighted average outstanding balance - 1 Interest rate with reference to the

at month end) loan interest rate of local

commercial bank

Interest income 7 13 Interest rate with reference to the

loan interest rate of local

commercial bank

Purchases of merchandise 597 1,958 Resale price reduced by a margin

Borrowings (weighted average outstanding 157 76 Interest rate with reference to the

balance at month end) deposit rate of local commercial bank
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For the years ended

31 December Transfer Pricing Policy

2009 2008

Interest expenses 2 2 Interest rate with reference to the

deposit rate of local commercial bank

Transactions with related companies

Sales of merchandise 22 23 Cost plus margin

Service income 4 7 Contract price

Rental income 1 1 Contract price

Lendings (weighted average outstanding 2 - Interest rate with reference to the

balance at month end) loan interest rate of local

commercial bank

Purchases of merchandise 4 5 Resale price reduced by a margin

Separate financial statements

(Unit: Million Baht)

For the years ended

31 December Transfer Pricing Policy

2009 2008

Transactions with subsidiaries

Sales of merchandise 336 468 Cost plus margin

Service income 16 93 Contract price

Rental income 175 177 Contract price

Lendings (weighted average outstanding balance 373 491 Interest rate with reference to the

at month end) loan interest rate of local

commercial bank

Interest income 21 38 Interest rate with reference to the

loan interest rate of local

commercial bank

Purchases of merchandise 1,055 1,272 Resale price reduced by a margin

Borrowings (weighted average outstanding 950 1,031 Interest rate with reference to the

balance at month end) deposit rate of local commercial bank

Interest expenses 7 21 Interest rate with reference to the

deposit rate of local commercial bank

Sale of facilities - 322 Appraisal value from independent

valuer

Transactions with associated companies

Sales of merchandise 261 399 Cost plus margin

Service income 2 8 Contract price

Rental income 2 2 Contract price

Receivable from sale of investments (weighted 84 214 Interest rate with reference to the

average outstanding balance at month end) loan interest rate of local

commercial bank

Lendings (weighted average outstanding balance - 1 Interest rate with reference to the

at month end) loan interest rate of local

commercial bank

Interest income 7 13 Interest rate with reference to the

loan interest rate of local

commercial bank
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For the years ended

31 December Transfer Pricing Policy

2009 2008

Purchases of merchandise 509 1,860 Resale price reduced by a margin

Borrowings (weighted average outstanding 157 76 Interest rate with reference to the

balance at month end) deposit rate of local commercial bank

Interest expenses 2 2 Interest rate with reference to the

deposit rate of local commercial bank

Transactions with related companies

Sales of merchandise 16 22 Cost plus margin

Service income 4 6 Contract price

Rental income 1 1 Contract price

The balances of the accounts as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 between the Company and those related

companies are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements  financial statements

2009 2008 2009 2008

Trade accounts receivable - related parties

Subsidiaries

Union Textile Industries Plc. - - 66,545,490 92,450,573

Union Pioneer Plc. - - 2,420,395 787,438

Union Stainless Steel Products Co., Ltd. - - 3,473,874 1,099,815

Union Garment Co., Ltd. - - - 817,193

Union Tex-East Co., Ltd. - - - 688,133

(2009: status changed to related company)

Union Zojirushi Co., Ltd. - - 35,904,792 -

- - 108,344,551 95,843,152

Associated companies

Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia.Co., Ltd. 31,835,812 62,248,124 - -

Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. 53,473,314 51,995,554 50,722,117 49,538,952

Union Zip Co., Ltd. 2,649,072 1,415,217 - -

Venus Thread Co., Ltd. 142,043 14,958,787 - 14,376,695

Union Nifco Co., Ltd. 3,967,446 3,848,697 - -

Union Thai-Nichiban Co., Ltd. 1,353,000 - - -

Union Micronclean Co., Ltd. 429,045 458,709 - 314,629

Others 8,269 10,818 - -

93,858,001 134,935,906 50,722,117 64,230,276

Related companies

Union Tex-East Co., Ltd. 2,491,632 - - -

(related by share holding)

Other 105,923 1,050,096 - 8,264

2,597,555 1,050,096 - 8,264

Total 96,455,556 135,986,002 159,066,668 160,081,692
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(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements  financial statements

2009 2008 2009 2008

Short-term loans to related parties

Subsidiaries

Union Textile Industries Plc. - - - 160,000,000

Computer Union Co., Ltd. - - 496,740,000 170,160,000

Union Construction Corp., Ltd. - - 13,000,000 13,000,000

Thai Rubber Enterprise Co., Ltd. - - 5,000,000 -

- - 514,740,000 343,160,000

Less: Allowance for doubtful account - - (13,000,000) -

Total - - 501,740,000 343,160,000

Receivables from sales of investments - related parties

Associated companies

Union Business Management Co., Ltd. - 65,100,000 - 65,100,000

Union Capital Co., Ltd. 84,000,000 135,500,000 84,000,000 135,500,000

84,000,000 200,600,000 84,000,000 200,600,000

Trade accounts payable - related parties

Subsidiaries

Union Technology (2008) Plc. - - 72,876,363 32,677,839

Union Pioneer Plc. - - - 436,749

- - 72,876,363 33,114,588

Associated companies

Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Co., Ltd. 4,992,088 23,975,974 - -

Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd. - 30,433,739 - 30,433,739

Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. - 114,677,214 - 114,672,964

Union Thai-Nichiban Co., Ltd. 27,146,805 24,613,840 26,506,956 23,905,823

Uni-Fibre Co., Ltd. 2,774,056 2,737,138 - -

Union Nifco Co., Ltd. 5,510,389 4,759,911 - -

Union Zip Co., Ltd. 1,503,488 38,537,081 888,438 37,765,945

Venus Thread Co., Ltd. 5,807,739 99,732,979 4,662,141 98,084,997

Others 35,835 32,509 - -

47,770,400 339,500,385 32,057,535 304,863,468

Related companies

Union Button Corp., Ltd.(related by share holding) 2,037,482 1,574,371 688,960 688,960

Others 446,683 316,403 - -

2,484,165 1,890,774 688,960 688,960

Total 50,254,565 341,391,159 105,622,858 338,667,016

Payable from purchase of investments - related party

Subsidiary

Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. - - 173,288,039 2,254,712,600

Total - - 173,288,039 2,254,712,600
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(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements  financial statements

2009 2008 2009 2008

Deposits from related parties

Subsidiaries

Union Energy Co., Ltd. - - 14,379,991 70,894,129

Union Technology Co., Ltd. - - 50,000,000 140,000,000

Union Equity Co., Ltd. - - 5,517,506 95,754,718

Texport International Corp., Ltd. - - 14,305,730 66,320,883

Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. - - 220,223,184 409,022,580

Saha-Union Holding Co., Ltd. - - 249,037,886 46,181,543

Uni-Sole Co., Ltd. - - - 9,000,000

Venus Shoes Co., Ltd. - - - 26,000,000

Union Shoes Co., Ltd. - - 20,000,000 26,000,000

Union Zojirushi Co., Ltd. - - 180,000,000 30,000,000

Phon Union Footwear Co., Ltd. - - - 20,500,000

Jakkarat Union Footwear Co., Ltd. - - - 7,000,000

Union Printing Corp., Ltd. - - 7,852,228 -

Union Human Resources Development Co., Ltd. - - 706,475 -

- - 762,023,000 946,673,853

Associated companies

Uni-Fibre Co., Ltd. 6,154,621 6,147,555 6,154,621 6,147,555

Venus Corp., Ltd. - 45,712 - 45,712

Union Zip Co., Ltd. 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 -

Union Thai-Nichiban Co., Ltd. 210,000,000 97,000,000 210,000,000 97,000,000

256,154,621 103,193,267 256,154,621 103,193,267

Total 256,154,621 103,193,267 1,018,177,6211,049,867,120

During 2009, movements of loans to related parties were as follow:

(Unit: Baht)

During the year

Balance Balance

as at as at

1 January 2009 Increase Decrease 31 December 2009

Loans to related parties

Subsidiaries

Union Textile Industries Plc. 160,000,000 - (160,000,000) -

Computer Union Co., Ltd. 170,160,000 1,400,960,000 (1,074,380,000) 496,740,000

Union Construction Corp., Ltd. 13,000,000 - - 13,000,000

Thai Rubber Enterprise Co., Ltd. - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000

Total 343,160,000 1,405,960,000 (1,234,380,000) 514,740,000
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Directors and management’s benefits

In 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries paid meeting allowances and gratuities to their directors and paid

salaries and bonuses to their managements totaling Baht 99.7 million (Separate financial statements: Baht 30.4

million) (2008: Baht 107.3 million, Separate financial statements: Baht 30.4 million).

Guarantee obligations with related parties

The Company has outstanding guarantee obligations with its related parties, as described in Note 27.3 to

the financial statements.

8. Trade accounts receivable

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, most of the trade accounts receivable were within their credit terms.

The Company and its subsidiaries have assessed the recoverable value of the receivables that were past due for one

year and more. The outstanding balance of such receivables amounted to approximately Baht 28.7 million (2008: Baht

46.7 million) and Baht 8.3 million for the separate financial statement (2008: Baht 21.7 million). Based on such

assessment, allowance for doubtful accounts of Baht 33.8 million (2008: Baht 49.2 million) and Baht 8.1 million for

the separate financial statement (2008: Baht 20.8 million). The Company and its subsidiaries believe that such

allowance is adequate under the current circumstance.
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9. Inventories (Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Allowance for diminution in value of inventory

Cost Reduction cost to net realisable value Stock obsolescence Inventory - net

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Finished goods 536,111,670 435,157,898 (1,358,876) (6,765,215) (29,677,813) (31,423,133) 505,074,981 396,969,550

Semi products 16,428,989 19,215,946 - - (4,612,429) (1,060,705) 11,816,560 18,155,241

Work in process 127,928,975 138,349,316 - - (772,500) (43,229) 127,156,475 138,306,087

Raw materials 441,852,213 611,491,548 (804,155) - (6,314,069) (6,203,423) 434,733,989 605,288,125

Packing materials 26,494,683 20,507,629 - - (4,976,632) (82,929) 21,518,051 20,424,700

Spare parts and 85,633,290 95,791,755 (645,363) - (32,028,792) (29,174,348) 52,959,135 66,617,407

  factory supplies

Goods in transit 15,441,758 48,279,828 - - - - 15,441,758 48,279,828

Total 1,249,891,578 1,368,793,920 (2,808,394) (6,765,215) (78,382,235) (67,987,767) 1,168,700,949 1,294,040,938

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Allowance for diminution in value of inventory

Cost Reduction cost to net realisable value Stock obsolescence Inventory - net

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Finished goods - 2,659,195 - - - (342,036) - 2,317,159

Raw materials 388,853 282,204 - - - - 388,853 282,204

Spare parts and 302,400 332,764 - - - - 302,400 332,764

  factory supplies

Goods in transit 45,239 - - - - - 45,239 -

Total 736,492 3,274,163 - - - (342,036) 736,492 2,932,127



10. Investments in subsidiaries

Details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in separate financial statements are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Shareholding Dividend received

Company’s name Nature of business Paid-up capital percentage Cost during the year

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Million Million Percent Percent
Baht Baht

(Except for other
specified currency)

Overseas subsidiaries

Saha-Union International Ltd. Investment and other 330 330 99.98 99.98 1,571,303 1,571,303 - -

(Million HKD)

Saha-Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd. Investment 45 40 100.00 100.00 1,572,809 1,402,367 - -

(Million USD)

Shanghai Saha-Union Thread Industry Co., Ltd. Manufacture and distribute 23.5 23.5 64.05 64.05 49,950 49,950 - -

of textile products (Million RMB)

Zhejiang Saha-Union Feilun Thread Manufacture of threads 4 4 82.00 82.00 57,096 57,096 - -

Industries Co., Ltd. (Million USD)

Jiashan-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. Power generation 10.6 8.4 75.96 75.96 251,073 203,385 12,715 -

(Million USD)

Union Energy (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. Investment 223.2 223.2 99.98 99.98 - - - -

(100.00 percent owned by Saha-Union (Million HKD)

International Ltd.)

Union Yagi Lao Co., Ltd. Manufacture of garments 0.75 0.75 49.99 49.99 - - - -

(50.00 percent owned by Union Garment (Million USD)

Co., Ltd.)
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Shareholding Dividend received

Company’s name Nature of business Paid-up capital percentage Cost during the year

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Million Million Percent Percent
Baht Baht

(Except for other
specified currency)

Domestic subsidiaries

Union Textile Industries Plc. Spinning, weaving, dye and 600 600 51.43 51.43 321,181 321,181 - -

bleaching

Saha-Union Holding Co., Ltd. Investment 1,200 1,200 99.54 99.54 1,194,479 1,194,479 - -

Union Garment Co., Ltd. Manufacture of garments 50 50 99.99 99.98 70,345 70,336 14,647 8,998

Union Pioneer Plc. Manufacture of rubber thread, 75 75 52.71 52.67 53,084 53,084 9,179 8,262

elastic braids & webbing

Union Zojirushi Co., Ltd. Manufacture of vacuum bottles 140 140 51.00 51.00 72,059 72,057 58,362 31,359

Union Stainless Steel Products Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pipes 40 40 98.00 98.00 52,411 52,411 14,014 12,250

Union Rubber Products Corp., Ltd. Manufacture of rubber products 20 20 99.99 99.99 16,111 16,111 1,950 -

Union Technology (2008) Plc. Manufacture of electronic 600 600 99.66 88.83 575,173 509,656 - -

components

Venus Shoes Co., Ltd. Dormitory rental and services 72 100 96.86 96.86 44,007 61,120 - -

Thai Rubber Enterprise Co., Ltd. Rubber estates 32 32 50.69 50.69 17,179 17,179 3,488 4,136

Union Printing Corp., Ltd. Rental services 30 30 94.74 94.74 29,466 29,466 - -

Union Plastic Plc. Manufacture of plastic 250 250 49.69 49.69 235,433 235,433 30,950 30,950

products, molds

Computer Union Co., Ltd. Computer dealer 100 100 97.53 97.05 101,014 100,480 19,450 32,477

Union Equity Co., Ltd. Investment 160 230 99.79 99.77 159,771 229,581 23,407 -

Union Technology Co., Ltd. Investment 100 100 99.99 99.99 100,000 100,000 89,700 24,800

Union Energy Co., Ltd. Investment 12.5 800 99.40 99.40 12,407 794,074 1,309 8,735

Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. Investment 245 3,850 99.99 99.99 244,999 3,849,999 246,785 -

Texport International Corp., Ltd. Investment 12.5 50 85.20 85.18 12,358 44,294 14,694 -

Union Human Resources Development Co., Ltd. Train and develop employees’ 0.25 0.25 99.99 99.99 250 250 - -

skills
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Shareholding Dividend received

Company’s name Nature of business Paid-up capital percentage Cost during the year

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Million Million Percent Percent
Baht Baht

(Except for other
specified currency)

Subsidiaries that discontinued operations

Union Shoes Co., Ltd. - 24 50 97.85 97.85 22,008 38,049 - -

Uni-Sole Co., Ltd. - 3.5 12.5 80.22 78.05 658 2,350 - -

Union Construction Corp., Ltd. - 200 200 99.68 99.66 5,281 5,281 - -

Computer Union Systems Co., Ltd. - 5.03 5.03 97.53 97.05 - - - -

(99.99 percent owned by Computer Union Co., Ltd.)

Phon Union Footwear Co., Ltd. - 49.5 70 77.38 71.94 - - - -

(50.00 percent owned by Union Technology (2008)

Plc. and 49.99 percent by Union Shoes Co., Ltd.)

Union Kotec Molds Co., Ltd. - 60 60 32.30 32.30 - - - -

(64.99 percent owned by Union Plastic Plc.)

Dissolued subsidiaries

Fashion Apparel Co., Ltd. - - 2.5 - 99.97 - 750 - 270

Saha Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. - 0.22 0.22 - 90.91 - - - -

(90.91 percent owned by Saha-Union Investment (Million RMB)

(China) Co., Ltd.)

Jakkarat Union Footwear Co., Ltd. - - 20 99.66 88.83 - - - -

(99.99 percent owned by Union Technology (2008) Plc.)

Banphi Union Footwear Co., Ltd. - - 10 74.75 66.62 - - - -

(74.99 percent owned by Union Technology (2008) Plc.)
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Shareholding Dividend received

Company’s name Nature of business Paid-up capital percentage Cost during the year

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Million Million Percent Percent

Baht Baht

(Except for other

specified currency)

Dissolved subsidiaries (continued)

Burirum Union Shoes Co., Ltd. - - 5 - 97.85 - - - -

(99.99 percent owned by Union Shoes Co., Ltd.)

Subsidiary of which status is changed

to related company

Union Tex-East Co., Ltd. Manufacture of garments - 5 - 50.99 - - - -

(19.50 percent owned by Union Garment Co., Ltd.)

Total 6,841,905 11,081,722 540,650 162,237

Less: Allowance for impairment of (1,135,248) (1,279,181)

investments in subsidiaries

Total investments in subsidiaries - net 5,706,657 9,802,541
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During the year 2009, there were the following significant changes of investments in subsidiaries:

Reductions of registered share capital                                                                                                                        (Unit: Baht)

Registered and Registered and Net cash received
Reducing paid-up share capital paid-up share capital from capital

Company’s name No. Approved by Approved date Registration date before decrease after decrease reduction
The Company

No. of Par No. of Par and its
shares value shares value subsidiaries The Company

Venus Shoes Co., Ltd. 1 The Extraordinary 15 September 2009 22 October 2009 1,000,000 100 720,000 100 28,000,000 21,280,200
Meeting of Shareholders
No. 1/2009

Union Equity Co., Ltd. 1 The Extraordinary 15 September 2009 22 October 2009 23,000,000 10 16,000,000 10 69,855,810 69,855,810
Meeting of Shareholders
No. 1/2009

Union Energy Co., Ltd. 1 The Extraordinary 18 March 2009 22 May 2009 80,000,000 10 20,000,000 10 595,555,560 595,555,560
Meeting of Shareholders
No. 1/2009

2 The Extraordinary 30 June 2009 17 August 2009 20,000,000 10 5,000,000 10 148,888,880 148,888,880
Meeting of Shareholders
No. 2/2009

3 The Extraordinary 14 September 2009 22 October 2009 5,000,000 10 1,250,000 10 37,222,200 37,222,200
Meeting of Shareholders
No. 3/2009

Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. 1 The Extraordinary 18 March 2009 22 May 2009 38,500,000 100 9,700,000 100 2,880,000,000 2,880,000,000
Meeting of Shareholders
No. 2/2009

2 The Extraordinary 30 June 2009 17 August 2009 9,700,000 100 2,450,000 100 725,000,000 725,000,000
Meeting of Shareholders
No. 3/2009

Texport International Corp., Ltd. 1 The Extraordinary 26 October 2009 9 December 2009 500,000 100 125,000 100 31,950,000 31,950,000
Meeting of Shareholders
No. 1/2009

Union Shoes Co., Ltd. 1 The Extraordinary 15 June 2009 21 July 2009 1,000,000 50 1,000,000 24 25,484,134 16,041,246
Meeting of Shareholders
No. 1/2009

Uni-Sole Co., Ltd. 1 The 2009 Annual 24 April 2009 18 June 2009 125,000 100 35,000 100 9,000,000 2,880,000
General Meeting of
Shareholders

Jakkarat Union Footwear Co., Ltd. 1 The Extraordinary 15 June 2009 17 August 2009 2,000,000 10 1,300,000 10 7,000,000 -
Meeting of Shareholders
No. 1/2009

Phon Union Footwear Co., Ltd. 1 The Extraordinary 15 June 2009 18 August 2009 700,000 100 495,000 100 20,500,000 -
Meeting of Shareholders
No. 1/2009

Total 4,578,456,584 4,528,673,896
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Dissolutions

(Unit: Baht)

Company’s name Approved by Approved date Registration date Net cash return from dissolution

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Fashion Apparel Co., Ltd. The Extraordinary Meeting of 17 November 2008 20 November 2008 3,211,679 963,407

Shareholders No. 1/2008

Saha Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. The 2009 Annual General Meeting 8 July 2009 28 July 2009 885,800 -

of Shareholders

Jakkarat Union Footwear Co., Ltd. The Extraordinary Meeting 12 October 2009 22 October 2009 2,043,775 -

of Shareholders No. 2/2009

Banphi Union Footwear Co., Ltd. The Extraordinary Meeting 15 May 2009 29 May 2009 34,129 -

of Shareholders No. 1/2009

Burirum Union Shoes Co., Ltd. The Extraordinary Meeting 18 June 2008 1 July 2008 101,550 -

of Shareholders No. 2/2008

Total 6,276,933 963,407
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The registered and paid-up share capital increasing

1. Saha-Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) increased its registered and paid-up share capital

from USD 40 million to USD 45 million. During the year 2009, the Company paid the full amount and as a result, the

value of its investment in Saha-Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd. increased from Baht 1,402.4 million to Baht

1,572.8 million.

2. Since the last quarter of 2008, Jiashan-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) has increased its

registered and paid-up share capital from USD 8.3 million to USD 10.6 million, with the Company needing to pay USD

1.3 million of this amount. The Company made partial payment for such shares during the year 2008, totaling USD

0.3 million or approximately Baht 9.2 million, and this amount was presented in “Investment in subsidiary awaiting

registration” in the separate financial statements as at 31 December 2008. Subsequently, during the year 2009, the

Company paid the remaining USD 1.0 million or approximately Baht 38.5 million, making total additional share capital

payment of Baht 47.7 million. As a result, the investment in Jiashan-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. increased from Baht

203.4 million to Baht 251.1 million in order to maintain the Company’s interest in the equity of that company.

Disposals of investments and changes in status of investments

1. Union Garment Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) sold 60,000 ordinary shares of its investment in Union Tex-East

Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) to a non-related party at a price of Baht 23.33 per share or a total of Baht 1.4 million. As a

result, its shareholding fell to 39 percent, and Union Garment Co., Ltd. no longer has control over Union Tex-East

Co., Ltd. The status of Union Tex-East Co., Ltd. was therefore changed from a subsidiary to a related party.

Subsequently, Union Tex-East Co., Ltd. increased its registered and paid-up share capital from 0.5 million ordinary

shares with a par value of Baht 10 each, amounting to Baht 5 million to 1.0 million ordinary shares with a par value

of Baht 10 each, amounting to Baht 10 million. Union Garment Co., Ltd. did not purchase any of such additional

registered share capital of Union Tex-East Co., Ltd.  and as a result, its interest in that company fell to 19.5 percent.

2. On 24 April 2009, a Meeting of the Board of Directors of Union Kotec Molds Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary),

which is principally engaged in the contract manufacture and repair of molds, passed resolutions to cease its

operations, effective from 25 April 2009. The reason for the cessation was that Union Kotec Molds Co., Ltd. had been

operating consistently at a loss due to the impact of the current economic downturn. Subsequently, on 11 January

2010, the Meeting of the Board of Directors No. 1/2010 of Union Kotec Molds Co., Ltd. passed a resolution to

dissolve, and it is currently in the process of registering the dissolution with the Ministry of Commerce.

3. Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) and Saha-Union Investments (China) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary)

transferred their remaining investment of Baht 121.7 million in the ordinary shares of Danyang-Union Cogeneration

Co., Ltd., which is principally engaged in the manufacture of a combined cycle power generation in China, and was

being sold in installments to a non-related party. During the year 2009, they have received full payment amounting to

Baht 128.9 million.

4. Since the last quarter of 2008, the Company purchased investment in Jiashan-Union Cogeneration

Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) from Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) and became a direct shareholder. As at 31

December 2008, the Company had completed the transfer of ownership but had not made payment of Baht 203.4

million to Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. The Company presented this transaction as “Payable from purchase of

investments - related party” in the separate financial statements as at 31 December 2008. Subsequently, during the

year 2009, the Company made a full payment to Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. As a result, the balance of “Payable

from purchases of investments - related party” in the separate financial statements decreased.
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In addition, during the year 2008, there were the following significant changes in investments in subsidiary

companies:

Disposals of investments and changes in status of investments

1. Saha-Union International Ltd. (a subsidiary) sold its investment in Union Education Index Co., Ltd. (a

subsidiary), which is principally engaged in investment in an international school, to a non-related party. As a result,

the status of Union Education Index Co., Ltd. changed from subsidiary to other company. Saha-Union International

Ltd. received net proceeds from the sale of such investment amounting to approximately HKD 84.7 million and

recorded a gain on the sale of approximately HKD 42.7 million or Baht 178.1 million. The Company presented this

gain as “Gain on disposal of investments” in the consolidated financial income statement for the year 2008.

2. Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) and Saha-Union Investments (China) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary)

sold its investment in Danyang-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary), which is principally engaged in power

generation in the People’s Republic of China, to a non-related party. The payment and the transfer of ownership were

divided into 3 installments, and the two subsidiaries have to transfer the shares proportionate to the amount of the

payment received in each installment. As at 31 December 2008, Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. had received the first

installment of approximately RMB 10.0 million, and completed the legal transfer process for first portion. In respect of

the first installment, the two subsidiaries had gains on the sale of their investments under the equity method

amounting to approximately Baht 11.8 million, presented as “Gain on disposal of investments” in consolidated income

statements for the year 2008. The Company presented the investment of Baht 121.7 million pending the legal transfer

process as “Investment awaiting for sale” in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2008.

Reductions of registered share capital

Resolutions passed by the Extraordinary General Meetings of Shareholders No. 1/2008 of Union Shoes

Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary), held on 4 August  2008, authorised such subsidiary to decrease its registered and paid-up

share capital from Baht 100 million (1 million ordinary shares of Baht 100 each) to Baht 50 million (1 milllion

ordinary shares of Baht 50 each). As a result, the Company’s investment in Union Shoes Co., Ltd. decreased from

Baht 68.9 million to Baht 38.0 million, but it percentage shareholding was unchanged. The Company received the

return of all capital return during the year 2008.

During the year 2009, the Company reversed the net allowance for impairment of investments in subsidiaries

by Baht 12.8 million. In addition, the Company transferred allowance for impairment of investments in subsidiaries

amounting to Baht 131.2 million to allowance for impairment of investments in associates, in relation to the change

in the shareholding structure of subsidiaries and associates. Consequently, as of  31 December 2009, the Company

recorded allowance for impairment of investments in subsidiaries totaling Baht 1,135.2 million in order to reflect the

actual expected return on investment in the future.



11. Investments in associates

11.1 Details of associates:

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Company’s name Nature of Country of Shareholding Cost Carrying amounts based

business incorporation percentage on equity method

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Overseas associated companies

Saha-Union International (Taipei) Ltd. Supplies raw materials to           Taiwan 42.49 42.49 386 386 2,739 1,610

group companies

Shanghai Saha-Union Spinning Mill No.7 Co., Ltd. Spinning China 50.00 50.00 310,918 310,918 302,451 339,093

Jiangsu Zhonglian-Union Carpet Co., Ltd. Manufacture of automobile China 35.00 35.00 225,404 231,620 253,669 272,199

carpets

Taixing Union Zond Chemicals Co., Ltd. Manufacture of Phthalic China 40.00 40.00 216,285 216,285 201,603 233,120

anhydride & Fumaric acid and

associated products

Jiashan-Union Development Co., Ltd. Real estates China 49.00 - 676,832 - 662,961 -

Jiyang-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. Power generation China 50.00 50.00 222,641 222,641 352,670 328,537

Wuxi-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. Power generation China 45.70 45.70 746,296 746,296 806,037 810,734

Yixing-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. Power generation China 50.00 50.00 1,113,296 1,113,296 1,896,673 1,737,809

Yixing-Union Biochemical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of citric acid China 50.00 50.00 83,470 83,470 248,274 239,082

Shangyu Hangzhou-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. Power generation China 50.00 50.00 514,653 250,329 613,042 354,664

Huanan-Union Spring Cogeneration Co., Ltd. Power generation China 50.00 50.00 127,789 127,789 120,707 125,551

Yunnan Energy Luliang-Union Power Co., Ltd. Power generation China 50.00 50.00 445,914 445,914 389,965 505,750

Yunnan Energy Qujing-Union Power Co., Ltd. Power generation China 50.00 50.00 509,690 509,690 341,397 547,878

1
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Company’s name Nature of Country of Shareholding Cost Carrying amounts based

business incorporation percentage on equity method

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Domestic associated companies

Uni-Agro Co., Ltd. Investment and agriculture Thailand 45.02 45.02 20,465 20,465 14,212 13,567

Uni-Fibre Co., Ltd. Distribution of textiles Thailand 53.08 53.08 55,800 55,800 130,626 122,973

Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd. Investment Thailand 36.20 36.20 52,216 52,216 662,612 661,932

Union Industries Corp., Ltd. Investment Thailand 29.60 29.60 43,502 43,502 299,347 294,591

Union Thai-Nichiban Co., Ltd. Manufacture of tape Thailand 40.27 40.27 19,266 19,266 178,482 166,089

Union Nifco Co., Ltd. Manufacture of plastic products Thailand 39.91 39.90 51,553 51,549 153,457 177,343

Union Universe Co., Ltd. Distributor of Grand Slam shirts Thailand 49.87 49.86 3,751 3,748 63,491 62,724

Union Micronclean Co., Ltd. Manufacture of clothes for Thailand 44.48 44.48 2,550 2,550 18,911 15,882

cleaning room

Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. Manufacture of thread Thailand 52.15 52.14 46,563 46,563 103,944 101,206

Union Capital Co., Ltd. Investment Thailand 26.55 26.55 - - 25,065 18,453

(29.00 percent owned by Union Industries Corp.,

Ltd., 29.00 percent by Union Thread Industries

Co., Ltd., 29.00 percent by Union Business

Management Co., Ltd. and 2.00 percent by

Uni-Fibre Co., Ltd.)

Union Business Management Co., Ltd. Investment Thailand 32.84 32.84 94,999 94,999 60,085 53,364

(51.10 percent owned by Union Thread Industries

Co., Ltd., 29.40 percent by Union Capital Co.,

Ltd., 18.99 percent by Union Textile Industries

Plc. and 0.50 percent by Union Industries

Corp., Ltd.)
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Company’s name Nature of Country of Shareholding Cost Carrying amounts based

business incorporation percentage on equity method

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Domestic associated companies (continued)

Ban Phai Union Garment Co., Ltd. Manufacture of ready to wear Thailand 49.99 49.99 1,000 1,000 975 1,047

(49.99 percent owned by Union Garment Co., Ltd.) clothes

Venus Product Co., Ltd. Retailer of thread and clothes Thailand 25.03 25.03 - - 1,759 1,757

(99.86 percent owned by Union Thread Industries

Co., Ltd.)

Union Distributor Co., Ltd. Investment Thailand 24.83 24.83 - - 901 840

(99.30 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Union Management and Service Co., Ltd. Fuel retailer and employee Thailand 24.96 24.96 - - 752 454

(formerly known as “Union Limousine Co., Ltd.”) bus services

(99.83 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Union Zip Co., Ltd. Manufacture and export Thailand 24.95 24.95 - - 5,904 1,034

(99.79 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.) of zippers

Union Assets Management Co., Ltd. Asset management service Thailand 25.00 25.00 - - 1,160 757

(99.99 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Venus Thread Co., Ltd. Manufacture and distribute Thailand 25.07 25.07 - - 18,266 7,812

(98.96 percent owned by Union Thread Industries of thread

Co., Ltd. and 1.04 by Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd.)

Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Co., Ltd. Production of work and Thailand 24.62 24.62 190,000 190,000 138,571 139,124

(49.35 percent owned by Union Textile Industries Plc.) safety wear fabric

1
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Company’s name Nature of Country of Shareholding Cost Carrying amounts based

business incorporation percentage on equity method

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Dissolved associated company

Sports Ace Co., Ltd. - Thailand - 50.00 - 22,412 - 7,392

Associated company which is in the process

of liquidation

Shanghai Fuji Shima Dyeing & Garments Corporation - China 26.96 26.96 17,236 17,236 14,858 16,714

(44.00 percent owned by Shanghai Saha-Union

Thread Industry Co., Ltd.)

Associated companies of which status is

changed to related companies

Venus Button Co., Ltd. Manufacture of buttons Thailand - 30.00 - 10,000 - 13,605

Union Rubber Plas Co., Ltd. Investment Thailand - 43.00 - 14,700 - 18,015

Total 5,792,475 4,904,640 8,085,566 7,392,702
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Separate financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Company’s name Nature of Country of Shareholding Cost Allowance for Carrying amounts based

business incorporation percentage impairment of investments on cost method - net

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Overseas associated companies

Saha-Union International (Taipei) Ltd. Supplies raw materials Taiwan 42.49 42.49 386 386 - - 386 386

to group companies

Shanghai Saha-Union Spinning Mill No.7 Co., Ltd. Spinning China 50.00 50.00 248,255 248,255 (16,831) - 231,424 248,255

Jiangsu Zhonglian-Union Carpet Co., Ltd. Manufacture of China 35.00 35.00 159,014 165,230 - - 159,014 165,230

automobile carpets

Taixing Union Zond Chemicals Co., Ltd. Manufacture of Phthalic China 40.00 40.00 162,214 162,214 - - 162,214 162,214

anhydride & Fumaric acid

and associated products

Jiashan-Union Development Co., Ltd. Real estates China 49.00 - 538,703 - - - 538,703 -

Jiyang-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. Power generation China 50.00 50.00 328,945 328,945 - (88,505) 328,945 240,440

Wuxi-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. Power generation China 45.70 45.70 475,479 475,479 (3,818) (108,097) 471,661 367,382

Yixing-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. Power generation China 50.00 50.00 1,093,795 1,093,795 - - 1,093,795 1,093,795

Yixing-Union Biochemical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of citric acid China 50.00 50.00 56,507 56,507 - - 56,507 56,507

Shangyu Hangzhou-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. Power generation China 50.00 50.00 257,481 125,445 - - 257,481 125,445

Huanan-Union Spring Cogeneration Co., Ltd. Power generation China 50.00 50.00 96,602 96,602 - - 96,602 96,602

Yunnan Energy Luliang-Union Power Co., Ltd. Power generation China 50.00 50.00 417,271 - (110,695) - 306,576 -

Yunnan Energy Qujing-Union Power Co., Ltd. Power generation China 50.00 50.00 481,017 - (174,292) - 306,725 -

Domestic associated companies

Uni-Agro Co., Ltd. Investment and agriculture Thailand 45.02 45.02 20,465 20,465 (3,896) (5,671) 16,569 14,794

Uni-Fibre Co., Ltd. Distribution of textiles Thailand 53.08 53.08 30,800 30,800 - - 30,800 30,8001
0
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Company’s name Nature of Country of Shareholding Cost Allowance for Carrying amounts based

business incorporation percentage impairment of investments on cost method - net

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Domestic associated companies (continued)

Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd. Investment Thailand 36.20 36.20 52,216 52,216 - - 52,216 52,216

Union Industries Corp., Ltd. Investment Thailand 29.60 29.60 43,502 43,502 - - 43,502 43,502

Union Thai-Nichiban Co., Ltd. Manufacture of tape Thailand 40.27 40.27 19,266 19,266 - - 19,266 19,266

Union Nifco Co., Ltd. Manufacture of plastic Thailand 39.91 39.90 31,556 31,552 - - 31,556 31,552

products

Union Universe Co., Ltd. Distributor of Grand Thailand 49.87 49.86 3,751 3,748 - - 3,751 3,748

Slam shirts

Union Micronclean Co., Ltd. Manufacture of clothes Thailand 44.48 44.48 1,251 1,250 - - 1,251 1,250

for cleaning room

Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. Manufacture of thread Thailand 52.15 52.14 46,563 46,563 - - 46,563 46,563

Union Capital Co., Ltd. Investment Thailand 26.55 26.55 - - - - - -

(29.00 percent owned by Union Industries

Corp., Ltd., 29.00 percent by Union Thread

Industries Co., Ltd., 29.00 percent by Union

Business Management Co., Ltd. and 2.00

percent by Uni-Fibre Co., Ltd.)

Union Business Management Co., Ltd. Investment Thailand 32.84 32.84 - - - - - -

(51.10 percent owned by Union Thread Industries

Co., Ltd., 29.40 percent by Union Capital

Co., Ltd., 18.99 percent by Union Textile

Industries Plc. and 0.50 percent by Union

Industries Corp., Ltd.)
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Company’s name Nature of Country of Shareholding Cost Allowance for Carrying amounts based

business incorporation percentage impairment of investments on cost method - net

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Domestic associated companies (continued)

Ban Phai Union Garment Co., Ltd. Manufacture of ready Thailand 49.99 49.99 - - - - - -

(49.99 percent owned by Union Garment Co., Ltd.) to wear clothes

Venus Product Co., Ltd. Retailer of thread Thailand 25.03 25.03 - - - - - -

(99.86 percent owned by Union Thread Industries and clothes

Co., Ltd.)

Union Distributor Co., Ltd. Investment Thailand 24.83 24.83 - - - - - -

(99.30 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Union Management and Service Co., Ltd. Fuel retailer and Thailand 24.96 24.96 - - - - - -

(formerly known as “Union Limousine Co., Ltd.”) employee bus services

(99.83 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Union Zip Co., Ltd. Manufacture and Thailand 24.95 24.95 - - - - - -

(99.79 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.) export of zippers

Union Assets Management Co., Ltd. Assets management Thailand 25.00 25.00 - - - - - -

(99.99 percent owned by Union Industries service

Corp., Ltd.)

Venus Thread Co., Ltd. Manufacture and Thailand 25.07 25.07 - - - - - -

(98.96 percent owned by Union Thread Industries distribute of thread

Co., Ltd. and 1.04 percent by Union Spinning

Mills  Co., Ltd.)
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Company’s name Nature of Country of Shareholding Cost Allowance for Carrying amounts based

business incorporation percentage impairment of investments on cost method - net

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent

Domestic associated companies (continued)

Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Co., Ltd. Production of work Thailand 24.62 24.62 - - - - - -

(49.35 percent owned by Union Textile Industries Plc.) and safety wear fabric

Dissolved associated company

Sports Ace Co., Ltd. - Thailand - 50.00 - 22,412 - (15,021) - 7,391

Associated company which is in the

process of liquidation

Shanghai Fuji Shima Dyeing & Garments Corporation - China 26.96 26.96 - - - - - -

(44.00 percent owned by Shanghai Saha-Union

Thread Industry Co., Ltd.)

Associated companies of which status is

changed to related companies

Venus Button Co., Ltd. Manufacture of buttons Thailand - 30.00 - 10,000 - - - 10,000

Union Rubber Plas Co., Ltd. Investment Thailand - 43.00 - 7,500 - - - 7,500

Total 4,565,039 3,042,132 (309,532) (217,294) 4,255,507 2,824,838

1
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11.2 Share of income/loss and dividend received

During the year, the Company recognised its share of net income/loss from investments in associated

companies in the consolidated financial statements and dividend income in the separate financial statements as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Share of income/loss from

investments in associates Dividend received

Company’s name during the year during the year

2009 2008 2009 2008

Overseas associated companies

Saha-Union International (Taipei) Ltd. 1,209 (3,033) - -

Shanghai Saha-Union Spinning Mill No.7 Co., Ltd. (22,843) 3,704 - -

Jiangsu Zhonglian-Union Carpet Co., Ltd. 2,610 7,058 - 651

Taixing Union Zond Chemicals Co., Ltd. (18,786) - - -

Jiashan-Union Development Co., Ltd. - - - -

Jiyang-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 40,996 (39,885) - -

Wuxi-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 71,016 (70,211) 17,548 -

Yixing-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 386,753 36,967 124,057 -

Yixing-Union Biochemical Co., Ltd. 28,249 77,387 - -

Shangyu Hangzhou-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 102,846 11,081 18,700 -

Huanan-Union Spring Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 6,344 8,108 - -

Yunnan Energy Luliang-Union Power Co., Ltd. 2,739 (9,239) - -

Yunnan Energy Qujing-Union Power Co., Ltd. (24,467) (35,327) - -

Domestic associated companies

Uni-Agro Co., Ltd. 645 301 - -

Uni-Fibre Co., Ltd. 7,641 7,357 - -

Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd. 10,913 (14,978) 9,024 9,024

Union Industries Corp., Ltd. 7,678 14,858 6,750 6,750

Union Thai-Nichiban Co., Ltd. 39,879 27,497 27,487 33,829

Union Nifco Co., Ltd. 29,182 50,738 39,901 53,705

Union Universe Co., Ltd. 2,295 3,210 1,496 4,488

Union Micronclean Co., Ltd. 7,477 1,368 2,500 2,500

Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. 4,294 4,788 750 750

Union Capital Co., Ltd. 5,721 10,958 - -

(29.00 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.,

29.00 percent by Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd.,

29.00 percent by Union Business Management Co., Ltd.

and 2.00 percent by Uni-Fibre Co., Ltd.)

Union Business Management Co., Ltd. 5,725 5,904 - -

(51.10 percent owned by Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd.,

29.40 percent by Union Capital Co., Ltd., 18.99 percent

by Union Textile Industries Plc. and 0.50 percent by

Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Share of income/loss from

investments in associates Dividend received

Company’s name during the year during the year

2009 2008 2009 2008

Domestic associated companies (continued)

Ban Phai Union Garment Co., Ltd. (71) 12 - -

(49.99 percent owned by Union Garment Co., Ltd.)

Venus Product Co., Ltd. 2 457 - -

(99.86 percent owned by Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd.)

Union Distributor Co., Ltd. 58 94 - -

(99.30 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Union Management and Service Co., Ltd. 297 207 - -

(formerly known as “Union Limousine Co., Ltd.”)

(99.83 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Union Zip Co., Ltd. 5,858 893 - -

(99.79 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Union Asset Management Co., Ltd. 403 124 - -

(99.99 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Venus Thread Co., Ltd. 11,206 1,211 - -

(98.96 percent owned by Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd.

and 1.04 percent by Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd.)

Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Co., Ltd. (25,265) - - -

(49.35 percent owned by Union Textile Industries Plc.)

Dissolved associated company

Sports Ace Co., Ltd. - - - -

Associated company which is in the process

of liquidation

Shanghai Fuji Shima Dyeing & Garments Corporation - - - -

(44.00 percent owned by Shanghai Saha-Union Thread

Industry Co., Ltd.)

Associated companies of which status is changed

to related companies

Venus Button Co., Ltd. (178) 672 150 550

Union Rubber Plas Co., Ltd. 358 (454) 400 380

Associated company of which status is

changed to other

Hangzhou-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. - (69,187) - -

Total 690,784 32,640 248,763 112,627



11.3 Summarised financial information of associates

Financial information of the associated companies is summarised below:

(Unit : Million Baht)

Total revenue Net income (loss)

Paid-up capital Total assets Total liabilities for the year ended for the year ended

Company’s name as at 31 December as at 31 December as at 31 December 31 December 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Overseas associated companies

Saha-Union International (Taipei) Ltd. 5 5 10 8 1 1 3 2 3 (7)

(million TWD)

Shanghai Saha-Union Spinning Mill No.7 Co., Ltd. 128 128 629 780 24 102 468 427 (46) 7

(million RMB)

Jiangsu Zhonglian-Union Carpet Co., Ltd. 56.9 56.9 900 952 167 184 641 567 25 20

(million RMB)

Taixing Union Zond Chemicals Co., Ltd. 16.2 16.2 993 633 489 50 485 - (47) -

(million USD)

Jiashan-Union Development Co., Ltd. 41 - 1,354 - 1 - - - - -

(million USD)

Jiyang-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 17 17 849 822 128 146 581 474 79 (76)

(million USD)

Wuxi-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 44.2 44.2 5,651 6,426 3,828 4,595 2,789 2,375 155 (156)

(million USD)

Yixing-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 60 60 8,571 9,631 4,316 5,694 6,164 5,300 773 75

(million USD)

Yixing-Union Biochemical Co., Ltd. 8.2 8.2 1,930 2,082 1,256 1,426 2,049 2,239 56 155

(million USD)

Shangyu Hangzhou-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 200 100 2,232 2,236 1,009 1,513 1,424 1,426 255 32

(million RMB)
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(Unit : Million Baht)

Total revenue Net income (loss)

Paid-up capital Total assets Total liabilities for the year ended for the year ended

Company’s name as at 31 December as at 31 December as at 31 December 31 December 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Overseas associated companies (continued)

Huanan-Union Spring Cogeneration Co., Ltd. 65 65 1,251 1,241 927 908 555 282 13 16

(million RMB)

Yunnan Energy Luliang-Union Power Co., Ltd. 24.7 24.7 1,029 1,114 19 61 422 319 5 (18)

(million USD)

Yunnan Energy Qujing-Union Power Co., Ltd. 28.1 28.1 1,017 1,130 38 56 345 211 (49) (71)

(million USD)

Domestic associated companies

Uni-Agro Co., Ltd. 65 65 56 52 1 - 5 6 2 2

Uni-Fibre Co., Ltd. 120 120 335 245 10 8 44 46 14 14

Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd. 200 200 2,097 1,972 13 79 119 587 93 68

Union Industries Corp., Ltd. 150 150 1,178 1,058 16 10 62 186 41 79

Union Thai-Nichiban Co., Ltd. 15 15 555 490 112 78 757 851 99 68

Union Nifco Co., Ltd. 100 100 564 627 205 208 643 897 74 134

Union Universe Co., Ltd. 7.5 7.5 140 140 14 14 53 55 5 6

Union Micronclean Co., Ltd. 5 5 75 63 33 28 130 131 17 2

Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd. 200 200 410 444 106 146 493 600 7 9

Union Capital Co., Ltd. 250 250 649 514 128 146 76 30 65 (9)

(29.00 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.,

29.00 percent by Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd.,

29.00 percent by Union Business Management

Co., Ltd. and 2.00 percent by Uni-Fibre Co., Ltd.)
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(Unit : Million Baht)

Total revenue Net income (loss)

Paid-up capital Total assets Total liabilities for the year ended for the year ended

Company’s name as at 31 December as at 31 December as at 31 December 31 December 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Domestic associated companies (continued)

Union Business Management Co., Ltd. 500 500 755 526 115 136 54 27 49 (11)

(51.10 percent owned by Union Thread Industries

Co., Ltd., 29.40 percent by Union Capital Co., Ltd.,

18.99 percent by Union Textile Industries Plc.

and 0.50 percent by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Ban Phai Union Garment Co., Ltd. 2 2 2 2 - - 2 7 - -

(49.99 percent owned by Union Garment Co., Ltd.)

Venus Product Co., Ltd. 2 2 9 9 - - - 10 - 2

(99.86 percent owned by Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd.)

Union Distributor Co., Ltd. 1 1 5 4 - - - 1 - -

(99.30 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Union Management and Service Co., Ltd. 4 4 18 6 11 - 29 14 1 1

(formerly known as “Union Limousine Co., Ltd.”)

(99.83 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Union Zip Co., Ltd. 99 99 186 164 63 61 196 103 23 4

(99.79 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Union Asset Management Co., Ltd. 60 60 66 64 2 1 12 4 2 -

(99.99 percent owned by Union Industries Corp., Ltd.)

Venus Thread Co., Ltd. 300 300 685 785 312 454 899 539 45 5

(98.96 percent owned by Union Thread Industries

Co., Ltd. and 1.04 percent by Union Spinning

Mills Co., Ltd.)

Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Co., Ltd. 385 385 345 469 116 124 321 190 (114) (40)

(49.35 percent owned by Union Textile Industries Plc.)
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(Unit : Million Baht)

Total revenue Net income (loss)

Paid-up capital Total assets Total liabilities for the year ended for the year ended

Company’s name as at 31 December as at 31 December as at 31 December 31 December 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Dissolved associated company

Sports Ace Co., Ltd. - 40 - 32 - 18 - - - -

Associated company which is in the process

of liquidation

Shanghai Fuji Shima Dyeing & Garments Corporation 1.2 1.2 34 40 1 3 5 26 (3) (1)

(44.00 percent owned by Shanghai Saha-Union (million USD)

Thread Industry Co., Ltd.)

Associated companies of which status is

changed to related companies

Venus Button Co., Ltd. 40 40 50 53 - - 4 7 2 2

Union Rubber Plas Co., Ltd. 30 30 32 33 1 - 2 2 1 2

Total 34,662 34,847 13,462 16,250 19,832 17,941 1,645 314

1
1
4
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During the year 2009, there were the following significant changes in investments in associated companies:

Additional investment in associated company

The Company and Saha-Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) invested in Jiashan-Union

Development Co., Ltd., which is principally engaged in the real estate business and has a registered share capital of

USD 41 million. The Company’s holding is approximately USD 15.99 million (39 percent of total shares) while

Saha-Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd. has an investment of approximately USD 4.1 million (10 percent of total

shares). The Company and Saha-Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd. made full payment of the share capital in the year

2009, amounting to Baht 539 million and Baht 138 million, respectively.

The registered and paid-up share capital increasing

Shangyu Hangzhou-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. (an associated company) passed resolutions to increase

its registered and paid-up share capital from RMB 100 million to RMB 200 million and the Company and a subsidiary

already paid in RMB 50 million or approximately Baht 264.9 million, in order to maintain their percentage shareholding.

As a result, the investment in Shangyu Hangzhou-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. increased from Baht 250.3 million to

Baht 514.7 million.

The dissolutions and discontinued operation

1. Sports Ace Co., Ltd. (an associated company) registered its dissolution, in accordance with a resolution

passed by the Extraordinary Meeting No.1/2009 of Shareholders, held on 20 February 2009, and returned the whole

amount of share capital to its shareholders. As a result, as at 31 December 2009, the Company has no investment in

Sports Ace Co., Ltd. In proportion to its equity, the Company received a return of capital of approximately Baht 5.5

million.

2. Shanghai Fuji Shima Dyeing & Garments Corporation (an associated company) ceased its operations

during the year 2009 and is in the process of liquidation.

The disposal of investments and change in the status of investment

1. The Company sold its investment in Venus Button Co., Ltd. (an associated company) (which is

principally engaged in button manufacturing, 0.1 million ordinary shares or 25 percent of total shares are directly held

by the Company) to Union Button Corp., Ltd. (a related company) (which is principally engaged in button manufacturing,

10 percent of total shares are directly held by the Company) at the price of Baht 111.06 per share. The selling price

was based on the net book value of Venus Button Co., Ltd. as at 31 July 2009 and totaled Baht 11.1 million. The

sales of such investment was carried out in accordance with a resolution of Board of Directors Meeting of the

Company No. 9/2009, held on 24 September 2009. The Company has already transferred the shares to Union Button

Corp., Ltd. and received the settlement of Baht 11.1 million. The Company recorded a loss amounting to Baht 2.2

million on the sale of the investment in the 2009 consolidated income statements under the equity method, and

recorded a gain of Baht 1.1 million on the sale of the investment in the 2009 separate income statements under the

cost method.

2. The Company and Union Pioneer Plc. (a subsidiary) sold their investments in Union Rubber Plas

Co., Ltd., (an associated company) (which is principally engaged in investment business, 1.0 million ordinary shares or 25

percent of total shares are held directly by the Company and 0.96 million ordinary shares or 24 percent of total shares are

held directly by Union Pioneer Plc.) to Union Button Corp., Ltd. (a related company) (which is principally engaged in button

manufacturing, 10 percent of total shares are directly held by the Company) at a price of Baht 8.02 per share.
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The selling price was based on the net book value of Union Rubber Plas Co., Ltd. as at 31 July 2009 and totaled Baht

15.72 million. The sale of such investment was carried out in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors

Meeting of the Company No. 9/2009, held on 24 September 2009 and the Board of Directors Meeting of Union

Pioneer Plc. No. 9/2009, held on 23 September 2009. The Company and Union Pioneer Plc. have already transferred

the rights of investment to Union Button Corp., Ltd. and received settlement of the Baht 15.72 million. The Company

and Union Pioneer Plc. recorded loss on the sale of the investments amounting to Baht 2.0 million in the 2009

consolidated income statements under the equity method and recorded a Baht 0.5 million gain on the sale of the

investment in the 2009 separate income statements under the cost method.

Change in shareholder’s structure

1. The Company purchased investments in the following two associated companies from Union Energy

(China) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) to hold the shares directly:

- Yunnan Energy Luliang-Union Power Co., Ltd.

- Yunnan Energy Qujing-Union Power Co., Ltd.

As at 31 December 2009, the Company has completed the transfer of the shares and paid the full

amount of Baht 898.3 million to Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd.

2. Since the last quarter of 2008, the Company purchased investments in the following five associated

companies from Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) to hold the shares directly:

- Wuxi-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd.

- Yixing-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd.

- Yixing-Union Biochemical Co., Ltd.

- Jiyang-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd.

- Huanan-Union Spring Cogeneration Co., Ltd.

As at 31 December 2008, the Company had completed the transfer of ownership but had not made

payment of Baht 2,051.3 million to Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. The Company presented this transaction as

“Payable from purchase of investments - related party”. Subsequently, during the year 2009, the Company paid the

remaining Baht 2,051.3 million payable to Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. and the balance of “Payable from purchase

of investments - related party” as at 31 December 2009 in the separate financial statements has thus decreased.

In addition, during the year 2008, there were the significant changes in investments in associated companies

as follows:

Disposal of investments and changes in status of investments

1. Saha-Union International Ltd. (a subsidiary) sold its investment in Union Education Management Co.,

Ltd. and its subsidiaries (an associated company), which is principally engaged in the management of an international

school, to a non-related party. As a result, the status of Union Education Management Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries

changed from associated company to other. The Company received net proceeds from the sale of such investment

amounting to approximately HKD 55.7 million, and recorded gain on the sale of approximately HKD 22.7 million or

Baht 94.6 million under “Gain on disposal of investments” in the 2008 consolidate income statements.

2. Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) and Saha-Union Investments (China) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary)

sold its investment in Hangzhou-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. (an associated company), which is principally engaged

in power generation in People’s Republic of China , to a non-related party. Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd. received

cash from sales of investments amounting to RMB 101.3 million and Saha-Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd.



117117117

received cash from sales of investments amounting to RMB 11.4 million. The Company recorded a gain on equity

method on the sale of investments of approximately Baht 50.3 million and presented it as “Gain on disposal of

investments” in 2008 consolidate income statement. In addition, the Company purchased 25 million shares of

Shangyu Hangzhou-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. held by Hangzhou-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. amounting to RMB

25.0 million or Baht 127.1 million in order to maintain the percentage of holding.

The additional investment in associated company

1. The Company and Saha-Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) made payments of capital

amounting to USD 4.48 million or approximately Baht 151.4 million, to Taixing Union Zond Chemicals Co., Ltd., which

is principally engaged in the manufacture of Phthalic anhydride and Fumaric acid and associated products, in order to

maintain their interest in the equity of that company at 40 percent.

2. The Board of Directors Meeting of Union Textile Industries Plc. (a subsidiary) approved a joint investment

between Union Textile Industries Plc. and Ten Cate Advance - Textiles BV, a listed company in the Netherlands, to

establish Ten Cate-Union Protective Fabric Asia Co., Ltd. (TCUA), with a registered capital  of Baht 385 million (3.85

million ordinary shares of Baht 100 each). Union Textile Industries Plc. holds a 49.35 percent interest, equivalent to

Baht 190 million. As a result, TCUA became an associated company of the Company and Union Textile Industries Plc.

3. Shanghai Saha-Union Thread Industry Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary) purchased 3.3 million shares of Shanghai

Fuji Shima Dyeing & Garments Corporation amounting to RMB 3.3 million or Baht 17.2 million. As a result, Shanghai

Fuji Shima Dyeing & Garments Corporation became an associated company of the Company and Shanghai

Saha-Union Thread Industry Co., Ltd. with a 26.96 percent interest.

The registered and paid-up share capital increasing

The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2008 of Union Nifco Co., Ltd. (an associated

company) approved an increase in the company’s capital from Baht 40 million to Baht 100 million. Shares amounting

to Baht 30 million were allocated to the Company and Union Plastic Plc. (a subsidiary), equivalent to 50 percent of the

additional  shares. As a result, their investment in Union Nifco Co., Ltd. increased from Baht 21.5 million to Baht 51.5

million, maintaining their interest at 39.9 percent.

During the year 2009, the Company reversed the net allowance for impairment of investment in associates

amounting to Baht 39.0 million and, as described in note to financial statements no. 10, the Company transferred

allowance for impariment of investments in subsidiaries amounting to Baht 131.2 million to allowance for impairment

of investments in associates, which relates to changes in the shareholding structure of subsidiaries and associates. As

a result, as of 31 December 2009, the Company recorded allowance for impairment of investments in associates

totaling Baht 309.5 million in order to reflect the actual expected return on investment in the future.

Share of income from investments in 12 associated companies accounted for under the equity method

amounting to approximately Baht 597 million, as included in the income statements for the year ended  31 December

2009 (2008: 13 companies the share of loss Baht 90 million), was determined based on financial statements which

were audited by the auditors of those associates.

Share of income from investments in 23 associated companies accounted for under the equity method

amounting to approximately Baht 94 million, as included in the income statements for the year ended 31 December

2009 (2008: 23 companies of Baht 122 million) was calculated from financial statements prepared by the management

of those companies, and not audited by their auditors. However, the management believes that there would be no

material difference if those financial statements had been audited by the associated companies’ auditors.



118118

12. Investments in other companies

Investments in other companies consist of investments in ordinary shares and available-for-sale securities

as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

Investments in ordinary shares:

Company’s name Shareholding percentage Cost method

2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent Thousand Thousand

Baht Baht

Union Button Corp., Ltd. 10.71 10.71 13,107 13,107

Imperial Technology Management Service Plc. 0.67 0.67 10,000 10,000

Ratchaburi Power Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 732,500 732,500

P.S.V. Molds Co., Ltd. 25.00 25.00 2,500 2,500

Value Creation Inc. 0.18 0.18 328,280 328,280

Processing Center Co., Ltd. 20.00 20.00 10,000 10,000

Others 9,369 7,419

Total 1,105,756 1,103,806

Less: Allowance for impairment of investments (330,489) (1,705)

Investments in ordinary shares - net 775,267 1,102,101

Investments in available-for-sale securities:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Unrealised gain (loss)

on change in value

Company’s name Cost of investment Fair value

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Plc. 27,508 27,508 127,931 130,611 155,439 158,119

Bangkok Bank Plc. 209,124 204,785 105,709 (19,808) 314,833 184,977

New Plus Knitting Plc. 2,010 2,010 (2,010) (2,010) - -

Electricity Generating Plc. 2,324 2,324 2,969 2,266 5,293 4,590

Thai Plastic and Chemicals Plc. - 4,655 - (1,849) - 2,806

Ratchaburi Electricity Generating Holding Plc. - 37,965 - (2,483) - 35,482

The Siam Cement Plc. 8,414 137,465 6,180 (66,271) 14,594 71,194

ACL Bank Plc. - 24,405 - (16,005) - 8,400

PTT Aromatices and Refining Plc. - 19,990 - (15,632) - 4,358

Thaioil Plc. - 4,607 - (3,191) - 1,416

Asset Plus Asian Special Situation Fund - 50,000 - (25,434) - 24,566

PTT Plc. - 1,618 - (748) - 870

Banyan Tree Indochina Hospitality Fund, L.P. 33,010 33,389 - - 33,010 33,389

Total 282,390 550,721 240,779 (20,554) 523,169 530,167

Total investments in other companies 1,298,436 1,632,268
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Separate financial statements

Investments in ordinary shares:

Company’s name Shareholding percentage Cost method

2009 2008 2009 2008

Percent Percent Thousand Thousand

Baht Baht

Union Button Corp., Ltd. 10.71 10.71 13,107 13,107

Imperial Technology Management Service Plc. 0.67 0.67 10,000 10,000

Ratchaburi Power Co., Ltd. 10.00 - 732,500 -

Value Creation Inc. 0.18 0.18 328,280 328,280

Processing Center Co., Ltd. 20.00 20.00 10,000 10,000

Others 694 694

Total 1,094,581 362,081

Less: Allowance for impairment of investments (334,030) (5,290)

Investments in ordinary shares - net 760,551 356,791

Investments in available-for-sale securities:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Unrealised gain (loss)

on change in value

Company’s name Cost of investment Fair value

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Plc. 27,508 27,508 127,931 130,611 155,439 158,119

Bangkok Bank Plc. 204,402 204,402 104,657 (19,769) 309,059 184,633

New Plus Knitting Plc. 2,010 2,010 (2,010) (2,010) - -

Ratchaburi Electricity Generating Holding Plc. - 18,763 - (1,663) - 17,100

ACL Bank Plc. - 24,405 - (16,005) - 8,400

Asset Plus Asian Special Situation Fund - 50,000 - (25,434) - 24,566

The Siam Cement Plc. - 5,710 - (1,075) - 4,635

Banyan Tree Indochina Hospitality Fund, L.P. 33,010 33,389 - - 33,010 33,389

Total 266,930 366,187 230,578 64,655 497,508 430,842

Total investments in other companies 1,258,059 787,633

On 21 April 2008, Meeting No. 2/2008 of the Board of Directors of Union Energy Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary)
passed a resolution to sell all of its investments in Ratchaburi Power Co., Ltd. to the Company at cost. Union Energy
Co., Ltd. completed the transfer of ownership on 22 January 2009. During the current year, the Company has made
full amount payment to Union Energy Co., Ltd.

During the year 2009, the Company decided to set up allowance for impairment for the full Baht 328 million
investment in Value Creation Inc., which is principally engaged in the energy business. This is because a subsidiary
company of Value Creation Inc. is in the process of filing a petition for business rehabilitation with the Court of Queen’s
Bench of Alberta in Canada and so Value Creation Inc. has to realise the resulting contingent losses in its financial
statements. However, this company is negotiating with a new investor, and if things go according to plan, Value
Creation Inc. will be able to recover in business and financial terms. The result of the negotiation will be known no
later than the second quarter of the year 2010.
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13.  Unused land and improvement classified as held for sale

This represents the book value of certain land and improvement that the following two subsidiaries, Union

Textile Public Company Limited and Union Technology (2008) Public Company Limited do not use in their operations:

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Unused land Deposits received from sales

and improvement of land and improvement

2009 2008 2009 2008

Union Textile Public Company Limited 4,293,509 - 160,299,375 -

Union Technology (2008) Public Company Limited 641,950 - 14,500,000 -

Total 4,935,459 - 174,799,375 -

Union Textile Public Company Limited

On 26 October 2009, an extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders of Union Textile Public Company

Limited (“Union Textile”) passed a resolution approving the sale of the land to a non-related company (“the buyer”) for

approximately Baht 534 million. Subsequently, Union Textile signed a land sale and purchase contract in December

2009 and the transfer of ownership of the land is to be completed within April 2010.

Union Textile received a deposit of approximately Baht 160 million (30 percent of the selling price) from the

buyer upon execution of the agreement, and a further advance payment of Baht 107 million (20 percent) was received

in January 2010. The balance of Baht 267 million (50 percent) will be paid when registration of the transfer of

ownership of the land is completed and the deposit is presented as “Deposits received from sales of land and

improvement” in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2009.

Union Technology (2008) Public Company Limited

In December 2009, Union Technology (2008) Plc. (“Union Technology (2008)”) signed a land and improvement

sale and purchase contract to a non-related company (“the buyer”) for approximately Baht 48 million and the transfer

of ownership of the land and improvement is to be completed within April 2010.

Union Technology (2008) received a deposit of approximately Baht 15 million (30 percent of the selling

price) from the buyer upon execution of the agreement. The balance of Baht 33 million (70 percent) will be paid when

registration of the transfer of ownership of the land and improvement is completed and the deposit is presented as

“Deposits received from sales of land and improvement” in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December

2009.



121121121

14. Property, plant and equipment

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Land and Buildings Machinery

leasehold and and Power

Land improvement facilities equipment plants Others Total

Cost

31 December 2008 411,992 147,053 3,784,409 5,026,936 506,760 2,391,420 12,268,570

Additions - 372 5,678 21,459 49,784 347,364 424,657

Disposals/write-off - (706) (422,919) (494,520) - (241,000) (1,159,145)

Transfers - 120 19,838 92,954 - (112,912) -

Classified as held for sale (4,907) (1,456) - - - - (6,363)

Translation adjustment - - - (714) (22,734) (51,908) (75,356)

Decrease from sales of investment - - - (25,122) - (2,166) (27,288)

in subsidiaries

31 December 2009 407,085 145,383 3,387,006 4,620,993 533,810 2,330,798 11,425,075

Accumulated depreciation

31 December 2008 - 114,437 2,892,175 3,953,221 156,329 1,125,891 8,242,053

Depreciation for the year - 9,711 174,935 251,780 32,500 139,823 608,749

Depreciation on disposals/write-off - (706) (392,896) (438,165) (9,860) (206,315) (1,047,942)

Transfers - - 4,630 (3,005) - (1,625) -

Classified as held for sale - (1,428) - - - - (1,428)

Translation adjustment - - - (420) (8,278) (7,632) (16,330)

Decrease from sales of investments - - - (9,724) - (616) (10,340)

in subsidiaries

31 December 2009 - 122,014 2,678,844 3,753,687 170,691 1,049,526 7,774,762

Allowance for impairment loss

31 December 2008 - 20,181 336,742 44,991 - 62,809 464,723

Additions - - 25,063 17,800 - 425 43,288

Transfers - (8,842) 9,507 - - (665) -

Decrease from disposal - - (6,198) (46,963) - (8,217) (61,378)

Reversal - - (58,266) - - (29,203) (87,469)

31 December 2009 - 11,339 306,848 15,828 - 25,149 359,164

Net book value

31 December 2008 411,992 12,435 555,492 1,028,724 350,431 1,202,720 3,561,794

31 December 2009 407,085 12,030 401,314 851,478 363,119 1,256,123 3,291,149

Depreciation for the year

2008 (Baht 520 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 701,585

2009 (Baht 404 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in selling and administrative expenses) 608,749
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Land and Buildings

leasehold and

Land improvement facilities Others Total

Cost

31 December 2008 211,844 119,435 1,930,108 592,260 2,853,647

Additions - 359 2,130 28,987 31,476

Disposals/write-off - (706) (33,723) (58,558) (92,987)

Transfers - - 4,616 (4,616) -

31 December 2009 211,844 119,088 1,903,131 558,073 2,792,136

Accumulated depreciation

31 December 2008 - 93,202 1,476,110 533,255 2,102,567

Depreciation for the year - 9,299 98,117 20,789 128,205

Depreciation on disposals/write-off - (706) (30,133) (54,024) (84,863)

31 December 2009 - 101,795 1,544,094 500,020 2,145,909

Allowance for impairment loss

31 December 2008 - 20,181 330,544 54,012 404,737

Reversal - (8,842) (99,201) (54,012) (162,055)

31 December 2009 - 11,339 231,343 - 242,682

Net book value

31 December 2008 211,844 6,052 123,454 4,993 346,343

31 December 2009 211,844 5,954 127,694 58,053 403,545

Depreciation for the year

2008 (included in selling and administrative expenses) 181,592

2009 (included in selling and administrative expenses) 128,205

As at 31 December 2009, the Company’s two subsidiaries had machinery, vehicles and equipment under

finance lease agreements with net book values amounting to Baht 91.7 million (2008: Baht 71.3 million).

As at 31 December 2009, certain plant and equipment items of the Company and its subsidiaries had been

fully depreciated but are still in use. The original cost of those assets amounted to approximately Baht 4,456 million

(2008: Baht 5,060 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 1,357 million, 2008: Baht 1,349 million).

The subsidiary has mortgaged parts of its machinery with a total net book value as at 31 December 2009 of

Baht 10.8 million (2008: Baht 21.2 million) as collateral for credit facilities granted by a commercial bank.

In addition, during the year 2009, there are the reversal of allowance for impairment of property, plant and

equipment in consolidated and separate financial statements amounting to Baht 87.5 million and Baht 162.1 million,

respectively, in order to reflect the value in use that the Company and its subsidiaries will be received in the future.
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15. Intangible assets

Details of intangible assets which are computer software are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated

financial statements

2009 2008

Cost 10,731,735 10,142,245

Accumulated amortisations (7,658,857) (6,305,735)

Allowance for impairment (251,301) -

Net book value 2,821,577 3,836,510

Amortisation expenses included in the income statements for the year 1,353,122 1,672,701

16. Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions

 (Unit: Baht)

Interest rate Consolidated Separate

(percent per financial statements  financial statements

annum) 2009 2008 2009 2008

Bank overdrafts Based on MOR 8,029,060 21,111,787 235,693 4,612,623

Short-term loans from financial institutions 1.03 - 2.20 148,584,422 1,184,563,778 56,500,000 786,669,000

Total 156,613,482 1,205,675,565 56,735,693 791,281,623



17. Long-term loans

(Unit: Baht)

Interest rate

(percent Consolidated Separate

Loans per annum) Repayment schedule  financial statements  financial statements

2009 2008 2009 2008

1. Loan from local bank (changed from USD 25.0 million on 17 May 2007 Based on MLR Annual installments from 2007 to 2010 152,230,750 304,534,600 152,230,750 304,534,600

under an agreement dated 26 January 2007)

2. Loan from local bank (changed from USD 3.0 million on 29 January 2007 Based on MLR Annual installments from 2007 to 2011 30,458,333 45,687,500 30,458,333 45,687,500

under an agreement dated 26 January 2007)

3. Loan from local bank (changed from USD 2.5 million on 29 January 2007 Based on MLR Annual installments from 2007 to 2011 36,550,000 54,825,000 36,550,000 54,825,000

under an agreement dated 26 January 2007)

4. Loan from local bank (changed from USD 10.0 million on 30 March 2007 Based on MLR Annual installments from 2007 to 2011 131,490,000 189,930,000 131,490,000 189,930,000

under an agreement dated 22 March 2007)

5. Loan from local bank Based on MLR Annual installments from 2010 to 2015 260,000,000 260,000,000 260,000,000 260,000,000

6. Loan from local bank Based on MLR 3 installments from 2009 to 2010 150,000,000 200,000,000 150,000,000 200,000,000

7. Loan from local bank Based on MLR Annual installments from 2011 to 2014 328,280,000 - 328,280,000 -

8. Loan from local bank Based on MLR Annual installments from 2013 to 2014 42,469,000 - 42,469,000 -

9. Loan from local bank Based on MLR Quarterly installments from 2010 to 2014 250,000,000 - 250,000,000 -

10. Loan from local bank Based on MLR Monthly installments from 2007 to 2010 400,000 2,800,000 - -

11. Loan from local bank Based on MLR Annual installments from 2007 to 2012 - 10,260,000 - -

12. Loan from local bank Based on MLR Monthly installments from 2009 to 2012 8,985,000 12,000,000 - -

1
2
4



Under the loan agreements, there are covenants and restrictions, including in relation to the maintenance of a debt to equity ratio, and negative pledges on certain of the

Company’s assets that are essential for the Company’s operations.

On 6 June 2008, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a local commercial bank amounting to Baht 260 million for investment in the manufacture of automobile

carpets and a small power generation project. The loan is a long-term loan to be repaid in annual installments between 2010 and 2015, and subject to interest at a rate referenced to

MLR.

(Unit: Baht)

Interest rate

(percent Consolidated Separate

Loans per annum) Repayment schedule  financial statements  financial statements

2009 2008 2009 2008

13. Loan from oversea bank Based on Installments within 2010 221,989,500 202,820,650 - -

interest rate of

Bank of China

Total 1,612,852,583 1,282,857,750 1,381,478,083 1,054,977,100

Less: current portion of long-term loans (454,429,917) (299,225,017) (450,009,917) (294,248,017)

Long-term loans - net of current portion 1,158,422,666 983,632,733 931,468,166 760,729,083

1
2
5



18. Liabilities under finance lease agreements

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

2009 2008

Liabilities under finance lease agreements 96,283,561 74,683,553

Less: Deferred interest expenses (3,625,643) (3,410,944)

Total 92,657,918 71,272,609

Less: Portion due within one year (45,189,814) (37,409,558)

Liabilities under finance lease agreements - net of current portion 47,468,104 33,863,051

The subsidiary companies have entered into the finance lease agreements with leasing companies for rental

of motor vehicles and equipment for use in its operation, whereby it is committed to pay rental on a monthly basis.

The terms of the agreements are generally between 3 and 4 years.

As at 31 December 2009, Future minimum lease payments required under the finance lease agreements

were as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Less than

1 year 1 - 5 years

Future minimum lease payments 47 49

Deferred interest expenses (2) (2)

Present value of future minimum lease payments 45 47

19. The Company’s shares held by the subsidiaries
This represents the acquisition cost of the 10,022,694 ordinary shares (3.34 percent of the total number of

shares in issue) of the Company acquired and held by Saha-Union Holding Co., Ltd., Union Equity Co., Ltd. and Union

Textile Industries Plc., subsidiaries.

20. Statutory reserve
Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside

to a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until

the reserve reaches 10 percent of its registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

However, the Company’s regulations require the Company to set aside to the statutory reserve at least 10

percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until such reserve reaches at

least 25 percent of its registered share capital.

21. Expenses by nature
Significant expenses by nature are as follow: (Unit: Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements  financial statements

2009 2008 2009 2008

Salary and wages and other employee benefits 1,563,898,350 1,851,008,772 75,830,575 100,583,246

Depreciation 608,749,258 708,367,351 128,204,794 176,877,416

Allowance for impairment of property, plant and equipment - 133,703,955 - 104,737,000

Amortisation expenses 8,695,653 6,096,850 1,091,482 1,091,482

Rental expenses 44,583,968 40,815,637 14,478,324 15,271,100

Raw materials and consumables used 2,572,788,342 2,717,382,604 12,665,177 17,306,987

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in process (87,746,474) 210,253,952 2,659,195 154,539,270

Loss on exchange - - 13,255,967 -
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22. Promotional privileges

During the year 2009, the Board of investment approved the cancellation of the project of companies in

footwear business group under the Investment Promotion certificate, but have no import tax on machinery and raw

materials that is obliged to repay.

Certain two subsidiaries have been granted the following promotional investment privileges:

Company Privileges Expiry Date

Union Garment Co., Ltd. - Exemption from import duty on imported raw 8 May 2010

materials and essential materials which used in

the production for export

Union Kotec Molds Co., Ltd. - Exemption from corporate income tax on profits, 24 April 2012 (8 years from the date

with the tax exempt capped at 100 percent of revenue was first earned)

investment, exclusive of land and working capital

- Exemption from corporate income tax on 24 April 2012 (8 years from the date revenue

dividends paid from of the promoted operations was first earned)

The Company and its subsidiary’s operating revenues for the years are below shown divided according to

promoted and non-promoted operations.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Promoted operations Non-promoted operations Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenues

Sales

Domestic sales - - 3,352,778 5,020,782 3,352,778 5,020,782

Export sales - - 3,932,585 5,567,232 3,932,585 5,567,232

Service income 14,484 60,988 1,317,719 1,559,620 1,332,203 1,620,608

Total revenues 14,484 60,988 8,603,082 12,147,634 8,617,566 12,208,622

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Non-promoted operations Total

2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenues

Sales

Domestic sales 853,780 2,005,361 853,780 2,005,361

Export sales 529,055 1,176,158 529,055 1,176,158

Service income 998,028 1,256,474 998,028 1,256,474

Total revenues 2,380,863 4,437,993 2,380,863 4,437,993

23. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average number

of ordinary shares held by outside shareholders in issue during the year.
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24. Segment information

The Company and its subsidiaries’ business operations involve four principal segments: (1) textile, computer and electronics components (2) plastic, rubber and metal (3)

power generation and (4) investment and others. The business operations are carried on both in Thailand and overseas. Below is the consolidated financial information of the Company

and its subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 by segment.

(Unit: Million Baht)

For the year ended 31 December

Textile, computer and

 electronics components Plastics, rubber and metal Power generation Investment and others Elimination of inter-segment Consolidated financial

segment  segment  segment  segment revenues statements

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenue from external customers 4,619 7,500 3,532 3,978 380 624 87 107 - - 8,618 12,209

Intersegment revenues 16 21 21 40 - - 2 2 (39) (63) - -

Total revenues 4,635 7,521 3,553 4,018 380 624 89 109 (39) (63) 8,618 12,209

Segment income (loss) 603 773 647 490 76 (18) 2 5 154 223 1,482 1,473

Unallocated income and expenses:

Interest income 23 46

Other income 694 886

Selling expenses (242) (362)

Administrative expenses (1,213) (1,451)

Share of income of associated companies 691 33

Finance cost (92) (118)

Corporate income tax (202) (134)

Minority interest (159) (92)

Net income 982 281

Property, plant and equipment 1,273 1,533 852 953 363 350 716 726 87 - 3,291 3,562

Unallocated assets 15,619 15,998

Total assets 18,910 19,560

Transfer prices between business segments are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.
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25. Provident fund

The Company, its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance

with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The company, its subsidiaries and their employees contributed to the fund

monthly at the rate of 3 percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by Bangkok Bank Public Company

Limited, will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. During the year 2009, the

Company and its subsidiaries contributed Baht 17.9 million (2008: Baht 21.5 million) to the fund.

26. Dividends

                          (Unit: Baht)

Dividend

Dividends Approved by Total dividends  per share

Final dividends for 2007 Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders on 375,000,000 1.25

24 April 2008

Total for 2008 375,000,000 1.25

Final dividends for 2008 Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders on 300,000,000 1.00

23 April 2009

Total for 2009 300,000,000 1.00

27. Commitments and contingent liabilities

27.1 Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries had capital commitments of approximately Baht

7.1 million (the Company only: Baht 0.5 million), relating to the office improvement.

27.2 Operating lease commitments

The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into several lease agreements in respect of the lease of land,

office building space, motor vehicles, machinery and equipment. The terms of the agreements are generally between 1

and 5 years.

Future minimum rentals payable under these leases as at 31 December 2009 were as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

Payable within:

Less than 1 year 47 14

1 to 5 years 53 41

100 55

27.3 Guarantees

(1) As at 31 December 2009, there were outstanding bank guarantees of Baht 184 million issued by banks

on behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries (Separate financial statements: Baht 28 million) in respect

of certain performance bonds as required in the ordinary normal of business.

(2) The Company has provided guarantees to financial institutions against certain obligations of its subsidiary,

charging such company 1 percent of the guarantee amount as a fee. The outstanding guarantees as at

31 December 2009 are Baht 270 million (2008: Baht 270 million).
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(3) The Company has provided a guarantee, proportionate to its shareholding, to secure a loan of USD 6

million provided by a bank in China to Shangyu Hangzhou-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd.

(4) The Company has pledged all of its share certificates of Ratchaburi Power Co., Ltd. with a project loan

lender as collateral for the aforementioned loan to Ratchaburi Power Co., Ltd.

28. Financial instruments

28.1 Financial risk management

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 32 “Financial Instruments:

Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, loans,

investments, and short-term and long-term loans. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and

how they are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts

receivable, loans, other receivable and notes receivable. However, since the companies maintain a prudent credit policy,

and have diversified customer bases, and the majority of their export sales are made on the basis of letters of credit,

the companies do not anticipate material losses from their debt collection. With respect to short-term loans to related

companies, the Company and its subsidiaries do not anticipate losses from debt collection since those companies

have the ability to repay such loans.

Interest rate risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks, loans to related

parties, bank overdrafts, trust receipts, deposits from related parties, liabilities under financial lease agreements and long-term

borrowings. However, since most of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates

or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2009 classified by type of interest rates are

summarised in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified

based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Fixed interest rates

Within 1-5 Floating Non-interest

1 year years interest rate bearing Total

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 540 - 832 1 1,373

Current investments - - 1,038 - 1,038

Trade accounts and notes receivable - - - 1,510 1,510

540 - 1,870 1,511 3,921

Financial liabilities

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans

  from financial institutions - - 157 - 157

Trade accounts payable - - - 646 646

Deposits from related parties - - 256 - 256

Liabilities under financial lease agreements 45 47 - - 92

Long-term loans - - 1,613 - 1,613

45 47 2,026 646 2,764
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(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

Floating Non-interest

interest rate bearing Total

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 184 - 184

Trade accounts and notes receivable - 371 371

Short-term loans to related parties 502 - 502

686 371 1,057

Financial liabilities

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions 57 - 57

Trade accounts payable - 137 137

Deposits from related parties 1,018 - 1,018

Long-term loans 1,381 - 1,381

2,456 137 2,593

Foreign currency risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from trading transactions

and borrowings that are denominated in foreign currencies. The Company seeks to reduce this risk by entering into

forward exchange contracts when it considers appropriate. Generally, the forward contracts mature within one year.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December 2009

are summarised below.

Financial Financial Average exchange rate

Foreign currency assets liabilities as at 31 December 2009

(Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign

currency unit)

US dollar 17 3 33.3688

Euro 2 - 47.7934

Japanese yen 54 7 0.3623

HK dollar 2 - 4.3027

RMB 0.2 - 4.8929

Australia 0.1 - 29.7663
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Foreign exchange contracts outstanding at 31 December 2009 are summarised below.

Bought contractual

Foreign currency Bought amount exchange rate

(Million) (Baht per 1 foreign

currency unit)

US dollar 1 33.14 - 33.49

Sold contractual

Foreign currency Sold amount  exchange rate

(Million) (Baht per 1 foreign

currency unit)

US dollar 43 33.05 - 36.28

Euro 4 45.08 - 50.07

Japanese yen 267 0.36 - 0.38

28.2 Fair values of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Company’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or bear floating interest

rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the balance sheets.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable,

willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of the

financial instruments or by using an appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.

29. Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has an appropriate financial

structure and preserves the ability to continue its business as a going concern.

According to the balance sheet as at 31 December 2009, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 0.28 : 1

(2008: 0.34 : 1) and the Company’s was 0.28 : 1 (2008: 0.58 : 1).

30. Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 26 February

2010.
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.......................................................................................................

Auditor Remuneration

.......................................................................................................

Audit Fee

In the year 2009, the Company’s auditor was Mr. Supachai Phanyawattano and Mr. Termphong Opanaphan

of Ernst & Young Office Ltd.

During the agenda on auditor nomination for presenting to the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting,

the Company proposed a list of 3 auditors from the same office for consideration. The proposed persons were

independent and with no relationship, and / or not a stakeholder with the Company or its subsidiaries, or executive, or

major shareholder, or person related to the stated persons, and having complete qualifications as approved by the

Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

In the fiscal year 2009, the Company and subsidiaries have paid the audit fee to the Ernst & Young Office

Ltd., totaled Baht 7,445,000. The Company and its subsidiaries have not paid any audit fee to the auditor directly, or

to any person, or any business related to the auditor, and the auditor office related to the auditor.

Non-Audit Fee

During the fiscal year, the Company and its subsidiaries have not paid any non-audit fee, and there was

none unfinished service that has to be paid in the following year to the auditor, or to the Ernst & Young Office Ltd.,

or to any person, or any business related to the auditor, and the auditor office related to the auditor.
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Principles on Good Corporate Governance

...............................................................................................................................................................

Section Page

1. Right of Shareholders 41-42

1.1 To propose meeting agenda in advance

1.2 To receive notice of meeting and the annual report with related documents

1.3 To attend the shareholders’ meeting

1.4 Minutes of the shareholders’ meeting and Information disclosure

1.5 Free Float ratio

2. Equal Treatment to Shareholders 42-43

2.1 Voting rights

2.2 Shareholders’ proxy

2.3 Information delivery to shareholders prior to the meeting date with details in company’s website

2.4 Insider’s information

2.5 Related parties transactions; reason and necessity for transactions

3. Stakeholders’ Roles 43-44

3.1 Relating to employee

3.2 Relating to customers

3.3 Treatment to business partners

3.4 Relating to creditors

3.5 Policy and guidelines for equal treatment to shareholders

3.6 Relating to environment

3.7 Responsibility towards community and society

4. Information Disclosure and Transparency 44-45

4.1 Complete, correct and prompt information disclosure

4.2 Shareholding structure

4.3 List of Board of Directors, shareholding, personal record, experience

4.4 Remuneration of each Directors

4.5 Attendance record of Board of Directors

4.6 Financial status with explanation and analysis of the management

4.7 Auditor report

4.8 Risk factors and business operation

4.9 Related parties transactions

4.10 Investors’ relation

5. Responsibility of the Board of Directors 45-48

5.1 Policy and manual on corporate governance

5.2 Business ethics

5.3 Leadership and vision of the Board of Directors

5.4 Board of Directors’ meeting and Company’s secretary

5.5 Board of Directors’ self-assessment

5.6 Aggregation and segregation of positions

5.7 Audit Committee and scope of authorities

5.8 Internal control system and internal audit

5.9 Risk management

5.10 Remuneration and Nomination Committee

5.11 Independent Directors

...............................................................................................................................................................
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Saha–Union Public Co., Ltd.

Company Registration No. 0107537000971

(Formerly Public Limited Company No. 344)

Head Office : 1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong, Bangkok 10260, Thailand

Tel  : (66-2) 311-5111-9, 332-5600

Fax : (66-2) 332-5616

www.sahaunion.co.th

The company is principally engaged in investment holding and distribution of products manufactured by the group

companies. The company had the Registered Capital of Baht 3,000 million which issued and fully paid-up 300 million

ordinary shares of Baht 10 each.

Other References Auditors

Securities Registrar Mr. Supachai Phanyawattano or Miss Siraporn Ouaanunkun or

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. Miss Thipawan Nananuwat

62 The Securities Exchange of Thailand Building Ernst & Young Office Limited

Rajadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110 33
rd
 Floor, Lake Rajada Office Complex

Tel : (66-2) 229-2800, 654-5599 193/136-137 Rajadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110

 Fax : (66-2) 359-1259 Tel : (66-2) 264-0777

Fax : (66-2) 264-0789, 661-9192

Juristic Persons of which the Company’s Shareholding exceed 10%

(For the quantity and type of issued shares, please see “Direct Investment Information of the Company”, page 16-17 )

Manufacturing

Textiles

••••• Union Textile Industries Public Co., Ltd. ••••• Union Micronclean Co., Ltd.

205 Moo 4 Sukhumvit Road Km. 39.5, 1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong,

Bangpoo Mai, Samutprakarn 10280 Bangkok 10260

Tel : (66-2) 323-1085-90 Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9

Fax : (66-2) 710-8808 Fax : (66-2) 332-5616

••••• Union Garment Co., Ltd. ••••• Shanghai Saha-Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd.

1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong, Pudong New Area, Shanghai City, China

Bangkok 10260

Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9 ••••• Zhejiang Saha-Union Feilun Thread Industries Co., Ltd.

Fax : (66-2) 332-5616 Jiashan County Economic Development Area,

Zhejiang Province, China

••••• Union Spinning Mills Co., Ltd

142 Soi Ladphrao 80 (Chantima), ••••• Shanghai Saha-Union Spinning Mill No. 7 Co., Ltd.

Ladphrao Road, Wangthonglang, Bangkok 10310 Nan Hui District, Shanghai City, China

Tel : (66-2) 530-0511-30

Fax : (66-2) 538-4247 ••••• Jiangsu Zhonglian-Union Carpet Co., Ltd.

Luoyang Road, Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, China

••••• Union Button Corp., Ltd.

142 Soi Ladphrao 80 (Chantima),

Ladphrao Road, Wangthonglang, Bangkok 10310

Tel : (66-2) 530-7040-54

Fax : (66-2) 539-6124

General Information
Saha–Union Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiaries
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Plastics, Rubber and Metal

••••• Union Pioneer Public Co., Ltd. ••••• Union Stainless Steel Products Co., Ltd.

Ng. 1 Moo 13 Bangchan Industrial Estates, 11/2 Moo 14 Bangchan Industrial Estates,

Serithai Road, Minburi, Bangkok 10510 Serithai Road, Minburi, Bangkok 10510

Tel : (66-2) 517-0106-8, 517-9052-5, 517-8217-21 Tel : (66-2) 919-8996-8

Fax : (66-2) 517-9056, 517-0345, 517-1016 Fax : (66-2) 517-8167

••••• Union Plastic Public Co., Ltd. ••••• Union Nifco Co., Ltd.

Ng. 11/1 Moo 14 Bangchan Industrial Estates, 99 Moo 5 Bangna-Trad Road, Bangsamak,

Serithai Road, Minburi, Bangkok 10510 Bangpakong, Chachoengsao 24180

Tel : (66-2) 517-0109-14 Tel : (66-38) 842-130-5

Fax : (66-2) 517-0529 Fax : (66-38) 842-129

••••• Union Thai – Nichiban Co., Ltd. ••••• Union Rubber Products Corp., Ltd.

Ng. 12 Moo 13 Bangchan Industrial Estates, 1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong,

Serithai Road, Minburi, Bangkok 10510 Bangkok 10260

Tel : (66-2) 517-0100-3 Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9

Fax : (66-2) 517-0104 Fax : (66-2) 741-4836

••••• Union Zojirushi Co., Ltd. ••••• Thai Rubber Enterprise Co., Ltd.

11/3 Moo 14 Bangchan Industrial Estates, 1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong,

Serithai Road, Minburi, Bangkok 10510 Bangkok 10260

Tel : (66-2) 919-8893-5 Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9

Fax : (66-2) 517-1863 Fax : (66-2) 741-4836

Computer and Electronics Parts

••••• Union Technology (2008) Public Co., Ltd. ••••• Computer Union Co., Ltd.

1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong, 1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong,

Bangkok 10260 Bangkok 10260

Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9 Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9

Fax : (66-2) 332-5616 Fax : (66-2) 311-6881-2, 332-7940, 311-6875,

(66-2) 311-6889 (Server),

(66-2) 311-6869 (Purchasing)

Branch 1 : 99 Moo 5 Bangna - Trad (Km. 38), Branch : 142/1-2 Soi Ladphrao 80 (Chantima),

Bangsamak, Bangpakong, Chachoengsao 24180 Ladphrao Road, Wangthonglang, Bangkok 10310

Tel : (66-38) 842-108-9 Tel : (66-2) 530-0505

Fax : (66-38) 842-109 Fax : (66-2) 530-2940 (Customer Service)

(66-2) 530-1955 (Warehouse)

Branch 2 : 336 Moo 10 Sukhumvit Road, (66-2) 530-2388 (Installation Department)

Bangphra, Sriracha, Chonburi 20110

Tel : (66-38) 341-370-8

Fax : (66-38) 341-380-2
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Energy

••••• Ratchaburi Power Co., Ltd. ••••• Yixing-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd.

1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong, Yicheng Town, Yixing City, Jiangsu Province, China

Bangkok 10260

Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9

Fax : (66-2) 332-3882

Site : 245 Moo 6 Baan Rai Sub-district, ••••• Shangyu Hangzhou-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd.

Damnoen Saduak District, Ratchaburi  70130 Wei Jiu Road, Shangyu Industrial Area, Hangzhou Bay,

Tel : (66-32) 719-300 Zhejiang Province, China

Fax : (66-32) 719-300

••••• Zhejiang Jiashan-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. ••••• Huanan-Union Spring Cogeneration Co., Ltd.

Jiashan County Economic Development Area, Sheng Li Street, Huanan County, Heilongjiang Province, China

Zhejiang Province, China

••••• Zhejiang Jiyang-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. ••••• Yunnan Energy Luliang-Union Power Co., Ltd.

Ping An Road, Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, China Cheng Xi Hua Si, Luliang County, Yunnan Province, China

••••• Wuxi-Union Cogeneration Co., Ltd. ••••• Yunnan Energy Qujing-Union Power Co., Ltd.

Cheng Nan Road, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province, Zhenshui Town Village, Yuezhou, Qi Lin District, Qujing City,

China Yunnan Province, China

Trading, Investment and Services

Trading

••••• Uni–Fibre Co., Ltd. ••••• Union Universe Co., Ltd.

1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong, 52/16-17 Soi Chareonkroong 41, Chareonkroong Road,

Bangkok 10260 Seephraya, Bangrak, Bangkok 10500

Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9 Tel : (66-2) 266-2976-80

Fax : (66-2) 331-5668 Fax : (66-2) 237-6468

Investment

••••• Saha–Union Holding Co., Ltd. ••••• Texport International Co., Ltd.

1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong, 142 Soi Ladphrao 80 (Chantima), Ladphrao Road,

Bangkok 10260 Wangthonglang, Bangkok 10310

Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9 Tel : (66-2) 530-0511-30

Fax : (66-2) 332-5616 Fax : (66-2) 539-6134

••••• Union Equity Co., Ltd. ••••• Union Techonology Co., Ltd.

1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong, 1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong,

Bangkok 10260 Bangkok 10260

Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9 Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9

Fax : (66-2) 332-5616 Fax : (66-2) 332-5616
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••••• Union Thread Industries Co., Ltd. ••••• Union Energy Co., Ltd.

142 Soi Ladphrao 80 (Chantima), Ladphrao Road, 1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong,

Wangthonglang, Bangkok 10310 Bangkok 10260

Tel : (66-2) 530-0511-30 Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9

Fax : (66-2) 539-6153 Fax : (66-2) 332-5616

••••• Union Industries Corp., Ltd. ••••• Union Energy (China) Co., Ltd.

142 Soi Ladphrao 80 (Chantima), Ladphrao Road, 1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong,

Wangthonglang, Bangkok 10310 Bangkok 10260

Tel : (66-2) 530-0511-30 Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9

Fax : (66-2) 538-3292 Fax : (66-2) 332-5616

••••• Uni–Agro Co., Ltd.

142 Soi Ladphrao 80 (Chantima), Ladphrao Road,

Wangthonglang, Bangkok 10310

Tel : (66-2) 530-0511-30

Fax : (66-2) 538-3292

Services

••••• Union Printing Co., Ltd. ••••• Venus Shoes Co., Ltd.

1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong, 1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong,

Bangkok 10260 Bangkok 10260

Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9

Fax : (66-2) 332-5616 Branch : 99 Moo 5 Bangna-Trad Road (Km. 38),

Bangsamak, Bangpakong, Chachoengsao 24180

••••• Union Human Resources Development Co., Ltd. Tel : (66-38) 842-108

1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong, Fax : (66-38) 842-109

Bangkok 10260

Tel : (66-2) 311-5111-9, 332-5600 ••••• Union Sime Darby (Thailand) Co., Ltd

Fax : (66-2) 332-5616 20
Th
 Floor, Vanissa Building, 29 Soi Chidlom,

Lumpinee, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330

Tel : (66-2) 251-5288

Fax : (66-2) 254-6383

Overseas

••••• Saha–Union International Ltd. (Hong Kong) ••••• Saha–Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd.

1A Yuk Yat Street, 6/F, Fook Shing Building, #31A-C, No. 18 Cao Xi Road (North),

12
th
 Floor, Bangkok Bank Building Shanghai 200030, China

Tokwawan, Kowloon, Hong Kong Tel  : (86-21) 5459-0378, 5459-0678, 5459-0526

Tel : (852) 2365-0211-2 Fax : (86-21) 6427-9117

Fax : (852) 2363-2641

••••• Taixing Union Zond Chemicals Co., Ltd.

12
th
 Floor, Bangkok Bank Building Taixing Economic Development Area, Jiangsu Province, China

No. 28 Des Voeux Road, Central, Hong Kong

Tel : (852) 2521-2260 ••••• Yixing-Union Biochemical Co., Ltd.

Fax : (852) 2521-0021 Yicheng Town, Yixing City, Jiangsu Province, China

••••• Saha–Union International (Taipei) Ltd. ••••• Jiashan-Union Development Co., Ltd.

15
th 
Floor, Bangkok Bank Building Hengshan Road, Huimin Avenue, Jiashan City,

No. 121 Sung Chiang Road, Taipei 10429, Taiwan Zhejiang Province, China

Tel : (88-62) 2506-7264-5

Fax : (88-62) 2506-9712
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Domestic

••••• Head Office

1828 Sukhumvit Road, Bangchak, Phrakanong, Bangkok 10260

Tel  : (66-2) 311-5111-9, 332-5600

Fax : (66-2) 332-5616

••••• Ladphrao Operations

142 Soi Ladphrao 80 (Chantima) Ladphrao Road, Wangthonglang, Bangkok 10310

Tel  : (66-2) 530-0511-30

Fax : (66-2) 538-4247, 539-6153

••••• Sriracha Operations

336 Moo 10, Sukhumvit Road, Bangphra, Sriracha,

Chonburi 20110

Tel  : (66-38) 341-370-8

Fax : (66-38) 341-380-3

Overseas

••••• Hong Kong

Saha–Union International Ltd. (Hong Kong)

12
th
 Floor, Bangkok Bank Building

No. 28 Des Voeux Road, Central, Hong Kong

Tel  : (852) 2521-2260

Fax : (852) 2521-0021

••••• Taiwan

Saha–Union International (Taipei) Ltd.

15
th
 Floor, Bangkok Bank Building

No. 121 Sung Chiang Road, Taipei 10429, Taiwan

Tel  : (88-62) 2506-7264-5

Fax : (88-62) 2506-9712

••••• Shanghai

Saha–Union Investment (China) Co., Ltd.

#31 A-C, No. 18 Cao Xi Road (North), Shanghai 200030, China

Tel  : (86-21) 5459-0378, 5459-0678, 5459-0526

Fax : (86-21) 6427-9117

Office Locations
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